EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10 30

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC

John R.Pike
02110
100
100 Federal Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02110,
U.S.A.

03 6212 8316

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Cayman

100 536

2020
31 UFJ
105.36

1/262



Putnam Diversified Income Trust Cayman

DIT
DIT
DIT
100 536
2020 31
105.36

3.575 3.25
300 10

2020 10 31 2021 10 29

21262

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC

UFJ



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

https://www._smbcnikko.co.jp/
03-5644-3111 8 40 17 10

https://www.smbc.co.jp

0120-56-3143 03-5745-5051 06-6258-0012
00 21 00
10
11
12
2005 13 2006 18

3/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

DIT

2017 12 19

100

2000 12 29
2005 13
2005 18
2005 22

2015 10 16

5/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Zrvk

A < fieS R A
FpreyTr A Fodhbe bTAE

A= T

Pt F gt B

W

o FFRE (=1

G [

A= Ty K

W pti bty =T K I — .

AAFNXr 21X .
{AICHEN R ST
(752 FOSTERRD

o B L P, | P, i [P0
(% 7 2 o el il - L,
AR RElT. WEL)

[ 528
HRfvER— i
(it
IR R
AF—heRAPU—Forid
AF=pe RApN=F odrfaii. TikRe hFA R« hrrsizm—
EF A b s Prusio— Y25y (7 o FE R RS
(BFRUFCTREES)
B A % SRR TR
BRI

T L an

AT A IR o e A .

PR L e e F = g
FoAPYEa—F—X IF ok

B gl

] s 04, R
(A 0 TS ) REBDLRER
WEE R ITRE)
(LTS SRR
TS R

SMB C B HEE SRS
(AxlzBARTESBRE)

6/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2005 13 2005
18
The Putnam Advisory Company, 2015 10 16
LLC
2005 13 2005
18
MaplesFS Limited 2015 10 16
2007 10
State Street Bank and
Trust Company
2007
2007
State Street Cayman Trust 10
Company Limited
2005 22
Citibank Europe plc
2006 18
2005 22
Putnam International
Distributors, Limited.

71262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC

1937

2020 1,820
19.2 10 170

2020 15,383,445

16

2000 12 29

100
Putnam Advisory Holdings 11, LLC

02110
100
100 Federal Street, Boston,
Massachusetts 02110, U.S.A.

2020

2020

1925

8/262



CIMA

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50
150
2018
2018
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
2020
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIM

9/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA
CIMA
CIMA
2020
2020
PricewaterhouseCoopers
10 30 30 CIMA
2006 30 30

10

EDINET

10/262



26

EDINET

198

11/262

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



CIMA

CIMA
CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA

12/262

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CIMA

CIMA

CIMA



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

27 RO{LEH

TAX/EBINNTF L
TAN—VTPA A h LSRR

8 nx

IR LeF oI =T 7 AR
AHIBSARMTAR)RAIY— TR

P z=

Wit RSEOIF b NMNSEE HNESLUEN
IR B 55 3 T (B FF R B A R 2 (/ \ o — )LL)
Boh-EM(GEFEFENL L) OBBEET L0

15 65

13/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ICE BofA

14/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

80

15/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MAnARiE Y 2 2

o i, HifE, h—F
-l .
S B [T o el 4 |

EmUAS
« Hoilt
— Rl LT A — e F
R ekt sy 2
— ko — AR LT
MERE—Y iR
Ll B |
—SElEE R L Uy —
il

MREmE ) 22

s R T— A —

v T e 4O (L0 FEE 5

« 10 §E#ds LR PO RS

< i L R s
b ORI S T i T

ik ik L B

- EEE R Y

SRR Y A kMR  RTE Y =
SR LA AF L B

16/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

RMBS CMBS

CMO

10

17/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

18/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15

25

SicEICBT SRMBNIA

| @ HESiE. FAEEONBEFRED BREROHRENSELONETOT. ARESVELONDE, TOSMELS. B |
-8R EEEE OO ET.

HERBRTIEEFEILONS A=Y

@ SiclE. SECR MM APIC SR £ L Ol (i PHER SR OIS H IR 5 L UFER T X O GR) BEI TEHNONSBS
HHOFT . TOWRS. S5 WM X B ORI F— D2 R EMSENESEH REMEELETTETS
CECHDET . F. SREEOKERE. EFLESERRRMICBI 77 VFORBEERT O TREDFERA.

AESREHEEME CRELERSEEATELDONIES

nEyERcHENEENS miE HacH g S
FEN—OIchHREGEES LR L EES FHEISN—O3 D REEEED 8 LIEEsS
1,000%FL < SOHKIL & 1,000
SONEE N b
S50NEIL . DOO¥EIL a
&
LBOREL | L oowki
SO 1) BOOHEL
e SeH AREER SRR El WEHE e HEEREE b gl Eat]
HuENFE R b HEEm e iR i

() o, HES HCEDF AEHRRL SELONEYT, TEECHLTARAETELEE (BLENE R, 2r2 il is s s Ty,
JiR-EOMOELENLE A, ) . BRSSP ERENS T S U HRa il Lo NoElmsLET.

# LB X —UTED. EROSE SN R2aEN — DS OERRERETET SOOTREDERADTOHEB T XL,
| @ BEEDTrUROMABRICLTE. HESO—BEVLTTH. RENICRTAO—BLRELICIELT DWANSEDET. |

AicEO—aibmEO—SHLRLICIESTES AREOSENTEO—EILELICESTHES

Tk ey
BEED
woem i
S B O b
HARER

GE) SO CH T 2WRICTUTE. B0 (4 FREWRORE DS WE FOREL | EFeETICL.

19/262



12

50

20/262

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

15



10

10

21/262

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20

120

22/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

23/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

24/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

BBB

CCC

BBB

25/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LIBOR
LIBOR

30/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

31/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LIBOR
LIBOR

32/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CMo

FHLB

ARM

ARM

33/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ARM
ARM ARM
ARM
ARM
ARM
ARM ARM
ARM
ARM
ARM ARM
ARM
ARM
ARM
ARM
ARM
LIBOR
LIBOR

2008

34/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CMO CMo
CMO
CMO
CMo CMo
CMo
CMO
CMO
CMo
10
PO 10
10
10
PO
PO

CMO

35/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

36/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CFTC

SEC

37/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

LIBOR
2017 27 LIBOR FCA 2021 LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR LIBOR

LIBOR

LIBOR
2021

38/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

RPAG RPAG

RPAG

RPAG

RPAG

RPAG

UCITS

39/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

< Jrv FOSREEEER > <. JFaFEIORERATEREYSRED

—O& Y HREEE - FEREEOER

FERES=OHS

2015829 A ~2020FE 8 A DS EMITHIT 27y E0SF7IELEMICET I FHREE (FAF
FOSREeEERE OS5 #EEEE SRR RS OFSLENEL. 7y - FLloREt

£) L. FRREE (ERFES)
LD THD.

DiEEEFTLE EESFFARIOBTHEELELDTERE, DD F
THEH. TP AERTTRES T AEERRCE
ETEALIICEELELOTRA,

400 SEN au s s RS b s 20 1 50 i Py ot

IS AMBHTE
E ] () (2015897 ~202058R)
14,00 : 100
 [= e E i~ DR (W) 3R]
12.00 [j= ZRREF(EH) BO e
10.00 '_-.--..-x.ﬂ'_' e
000 [y — 40 gzz 948 323
6.00 | ] 2ol
a
{ -20

2.00 |

14.8 B4 1.4 192
pae. 88 B8 . B8 | e mgor. ©H
38

- w
=118 123

. L -
=20 175 ~18.1

tooe

0.00 ; x ; A0
2015898 2016858 2017#5F8 2018F3F8 2019%98 20208488 S352M HExh ZAER FAER B3EW STUEA ERER

tHFT @S, Bloombarg LP BLTHEMBH S OF —FE RIS AR SR MR e

S&P Bloomberg L.P.

FTSE

FTSE FTSE
London Stock Exchange Group plc

FTSE International Limited FTSE Fixed Income LLC London

Stock Exchange Group plc

40/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

3.25

3.575 3.25

4.0
3.0
2.0
1.0
0.0

41/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.0
3.0
2.0
1.0
0.0
1.20
1.80
1.00
1.60
2020 30 2,377,079
0.02 15,000 60,000
2020 30 60,000

42/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 30 4,664,380
5,000
2020 30 6,430
0.10
2020 30 8,268

75,000

2020 30 90,696

43/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 30
89,693
2020
20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
15.315
2038 15
20.315 15.315 2038

20 15

44/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

15.315
2038 15

20.315 15.315 2038
20 15

45/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

81
50
US IGA 100
OECD CRS us
1GA AEOI
US 1GA CRS AEOI
AEOI us
1GA CRS
AEOI
AEOI
AEOI
CRS
AEOI
AEOI US I1GA
GIIN IRS
CRS
IRS

AEOI

46/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

90

47/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020
457,649,249 100.15
698,865 0.15
456,950,384
100.00
48,144
2020

- 73,995,175 7.13 527,645,018 6.18 457,649,249 100.15

2020

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 03.5000 10/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 02.5000 09/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 02.0000 10/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 02.0000 09/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 03.5000 09/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 02.5000 10/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 04.0000 10/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 04.0000 09/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 05.5000 09/01/2050

FNMA FN30 TBA UMBS 04.5000 09/01/2050

2020 31 57.19

2020

2020
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2020
8.45 890
1,418,003 149,401
2011 8.51 897
7.70 811
1,210,337 127,521
2012 7.76 818
7.98 841
1,134,757 119,558
2013 8.05 848
8.04 847
1,335,204 140,677
2014 8.11 854
10 7.51 791
1,179,159 124,236
2015 7.58 799
11 6.64 700
587,539 61,903
(2016 ) 6.72 708
12 6.88 725
561,947 59,207
(2017 ) 6.97 734
13 6.94 731
508,057 53,529
2018 7.03 741
14 6.58 693
467,247 49,229
2019 6.68 704
15 5.90 622
439,560 46,312
2020 5.99 631
6.63 699
2019 475,011 50,047
6.73 709
6.63 699
10 485,540 51,156
6.73 709
6.66 702
11 492,545 51,895
6.76 712
6.71 707
12 498,719 52,545
6.81 718
6.68 704
2020 501,042 52,790
6.79 715
6.62 697
499,062 52,581
6.72 708
5.79 610
434,355 45,764
5.88 620
5.90 622
439,560 46,312
5.99 631
6.03 635
449,429 47,352
6.13 646
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6.12 645
457,401 48,192
6.22 655
6.08 641
452,942 47,722
6.18 651
6.10 643
456,950 48,144
6.20 653
0.670 70.59
2010 2011 30 0.614 64.69
0.510 53.73
2011 2012 30 0.464 48.89
0.464 48.89
2012 2013 30 0.416 43.83
0.444 46.78
2013 2014 30 0.396 41.72
10 0.435 45.83
2014 2015 30 0.387 40.77
11 0.408 42.99
2015 2016 30 0.360 37.93
12 0.408 42.99
2016 2017 30 0.360 37.93
13 0.408 42.99
2017 2018 30 0.360 37.93
14 0.404 42.57
2018 2019 30 0.357 37.61
15 0.348 36.67
2019 2020 30 0.312 32.87
0.030 3.16
2019
0.027 2.84
0.030 3.16
10
0.027 2.84
0.030 3.16
11
0.027 2.84
0.030 3.16
12
0.027 2.84
0.030 3.16
2020
0.027 2.84
0.026 2.74
0.023 2.42
0.026 2.74
0.023 2.42
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0.026 2.74

0.023 2.42

0.026 2.74

0.023 2.42

0.026 2.74

0.023 2.42

0.026 2.74

0.023 2.42

0.020 2.11

0.017 1.79
2010 2011 30 12.19 11.48
2011 2012 30 2.73 3.28
2012 2013 30 10.02 9.40
2013 2014 30 6.54 5.85
10 2014 2015 30 1.19 1.79
11 2015 2016 30 6.26 6.70
12 2016 2017 30 10.08 9.34
13 2017 2018 30 7.03 6.20
14 2018 2019 30 0.72 0.16
15 2019 2020 30 5.43 6.02

(i) (EESs (%) =100 X [ HHQ&EA 1 ]
U ENAY
NAV 1

NAV NAV
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2009 50,730 136,640 1,027,000
50,730 136,640 1,027,000
2010 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
2010 61,110 136,840 951,270
61,110 136,840 951,270
2011 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
2011 53,440 168,310 836,400
53,440 168,310 836,400
2012 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
2012 35,020 167,200 704,220
35,020 167,200 704,220
2013 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
2013 15,900 94,550 625,570
15,900 94,550 625,570
2014 30 ( ) ( ) ( )
10
1,650 116,400 510,820
2014
1,650 116,400 510,820
2015 30
11
6,530 60,100 457,250
(2015 (6,530) (60,100) (457,250)
2016 30 ) ’ ’ ’
12
3,990 37,850 423,390
(2016 (3,990) (37,850) (423,390)
2017 30 ) ’ ’ ’
13
2017 3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
3,132,640 168,260 3,387,770
2018 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
14
2018 6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
6,954,910 307,260 10,035,420
2019 30
15
2019 9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
9,931,980 1,040,690 18,926,710
2020 30
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2000 110,204,960 49,370,961 147,178,639
110,204,960 49,370,961 147,178,639
2010 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2010 74,801,470 56,329,982 165,650,127
74,801,470 56,329,982 165,650,127
2011 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2011 51,130,390 61,583,745 155,196,772
51,130,390 61,583,745 155,196,772
2012 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2012 39,869,440 54,745,820 140,320,392
39,869,440 54,745,820 140,320,392
2013 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
2013 49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
49,810,680 26,097,865 164,033,207
2014 30 ( ) ¢ ) ¢ )
10
2014 42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
42,544,700 51,449,721 155,128,186
2015 30
11
(2015 8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
8,210,370 76,323,921 87,014,635
2016 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
12
(2016 7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
7,588,070 14,399,919 80,202,786
2017 30 ( ) ¢ ) ¢ )
13
2017 4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
4,407,620 15,701,116 68,909,290
2018 20 ( ) ( ) ( )
14
8,861,870 60,047,420
2018
8,861,870 60,047,420
2019 30
15
5,285,895 54,761,525
2019
5,285,895 54,761,525
2020 30
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180

120

30

30

30
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2020

31

2020

23

2019
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30

23 103

25 193

UFJ 105.36
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2020 30 2019 30
3,4,8,12 927,902,509 97,763,808 753,872,904 79,428,049
8 103,732,960 10,929,305 156,206,166 16,457,882
6 2,655 280
4,8 18,240 1,922
4,8 251,152 26,461
4,890,638 515,278 4,579,519 482,498
3,8 27,914,910 2,941,115 48,007,361 5,058,056
1,064,694,824 112,176,247 962,684,190 101,428,406
3,4,8,12 245,836,079 25,901,289 225,015,880 23,707,673
8,11 369,505,963 38,931,148 266,876,665 28,118,125
6 398,707 42,008 7,337 773
4,8 80,143
4,8 347,941 36,659
8,9 516,376 54,405 583,334 61,460
3,8 4,743 500
8,9 286,094 30,143 209,822 22,107
8 8,140,577 857,691 2,252,736 237,348
8,9 312,090 32,882 359,684 37,896
625,076,029 65,858,010 495,658,142 52,222,542
8 439,618,795 46,318,236 467,026,048 49,205,864
439,559,645 46,312,004 467,247,168 49,229,162
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2020 30 2019 30
24,900,994 2,623,569 29,094,361 3,065,382
(17,826) (1,878) (75,077) (7,910)
(45,526, 155) (4,796,636) (20,587,023) (2.,169,049)
3,817 402
(20,642,987) (2,174,945) 8,436,078 888,825
9 7,041,534 741,896 7,422,102 781,993
9 157,445 16,588 170,027 17,914
9 69,585 7,331 76,107 8,019
9 390,696 41,164 392,369 41,340
9 82,500 8,692 82,420 8,684
9 86,435 9,107 90,082 9,491
9 101,406 10, 684 112,300 11,832
7,929,601 835,463 8,345,407 879,272
(28,572,588) (3,010,408) 90,671 9,553
(22,938,194) (2,416,768) (25,776,217) (2,715,782)
(51,510,782) (5,427,176) (25,685,546) (2,706,229)
(4,216) (444) (32,440) (3,418)
(51,514,998) (5,427,620) (25,717,986) (2,709,647)
(51,514,998) (5,427,620) (25,717,986) (2,709,647)
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2019 30

467,026,048 49,205,864 508,329,541 53,557,600
(51,514,998) (5,427 ,620) (25,717,986) (2,709,647)
65,670,846 6,919,080 46,645,322 4,914,551
(34,923,482) (3,679,538) (60,199,820) (6,342,653)
(6,639,619) (699,550) (2,031,009) (213,987)
24,107,745 2,539,992 (15,585,507) (1,642,089)
439,618,795 46,318,236 467,026,048 49,205,864
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2020 30 2019 30
(51,514,998) (5.427,620) (25,717,986) (2,709,647)
3 (37,356,709) (3,935,903) (39,224,844) (4,132,730)
3,5 4,216 444 32,440 3,418
7 22,938,194 2,416,768 25,776,217 2,715,782
12,451,499 1,311,890 10,098,043 1,063,930
17,826 1,878 75,077 7,910
(53,459,972) (5,632,543) (28,961,053) (3,051,337)
8 52,473,206 5,528,577 (61,096,393) (6,437,116)
8,11 102,629,298 10,813,023 104,549,116 11,015,295
4,8 18,240 1,922 (6,345) (669)
4,8 (251,152) (26,461)
8,9 76,272 8,036 113,283 11,935
4,8 80,143 8,444
4,8 (347,941) (36,659) 316,500 33,346
8,9 (66,958) (7,055) (757,731) (79,835)
3.8 (4,743) (500) 4,743 500
8 5,887,841 620,343 612,892 64,574
8,9 (47,594) (5,015) 31,701 3,340
3,4,8,12  (174,029,605)  (18,335,759) (57,512,054) (6,059,470)
3,4,8,12 20,820,199 2,193,616 100,022,065 10,538,325
(46,222,766) (4,870,031) 57,316,724 6,038,890
24,589,875 2,590,789 30,290,805 3,191,439
(21,632,891) (2,279,241) 87,607,529 9,230,329
7 (22,938,194) (2,416,768) (25,776,217) (2,715,782)
6 65,668,191 6,918,801 48,323,580 5,091,372
6 (41,171,731) (4,337,854) (62,898,470) (6,626,983)
1,558,266 164,179 (40,351,107) (4,251,393)
(20,074,625) (2,115,062) 47,256,422 4,978,937
3,8 48,007,361 5,058,056 826,016 87,029
(17,826) (1,878) (75,077) (7,910)
3,8 27,914,910 2,941,115 48,007,361 5,058,056
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2020 30
2020 30 439,618,795
2019 30 467,026,048 2019
2020 30
2005
18 2005 18
2005 13
2005 13

2020
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90

12

60
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2019
15,264 0.01
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2020 30 2019 30
1,065 170,771
140,083 56,028
27,773,762 47,780,562
27,914,910 48,007,361

57,413,760 2019 32,409,480
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to be announced

39
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2020 30 2019 30
2020 30 2019 30
300 10
50,000
1,000,000 10,000,000
10,000
50,000
3.25
4.00
300 10
2020 2019 2020 2019
30 30 30 30
56,053,237 58,906,726 1,086 1,086

5,373,805 2,880,875
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(3,505,517) (5,734,364)
57,921,525 56,053,237 1,086 1,086
2020 2019 2020 2019
30 30 30 30
60,047,420 68,909,290 10,035,420 3,387,770
9,931,980 6,954,910
(5,285,895) (8,861,870) (1,040,690) (307, 260)
54,761,525 60,047,420 18,926,710 10,035,420
2020 30
100 2019 100 2020 30
100 2019 100 2020
30 100
2019 100 2020 30
100 2019 100
22,975,132
0.4031 2019 25,805,905 0.4486
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2019



15

2019

65

17,944,018
0.357
2,903,446

91

4,994,176
0.404

2019
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0.312 2019 22,872,771
0.348

86
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2020 30 2019 30
237,000,000 200,000,000
74,007,245 16,252,149
1,227,422,845 1,101,844,603
265,000,000 200,000,000

48,904,647
706,596,055 997,917,082
1,275 491
401,370,471 364,195,334
15,088,031
1,947,958,635 1,776,974,754
56,636,901 74,871,720
260,136,439 242,931,825
38,813,000 36,471,000
115,552,000 100,740,000
17,930,000

* 2020 30
11.97 2019 30
15.43 12.11
10
** 2020 30 1,275
267,134,407 2019 30
491 71,810,927

2020 30 2019 30
116,700,000 209,500,000
75,700,000 41,100,000
1,099,500,000 1,976,400,000

153,200,000 318,200,000
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65,000,000 20,600,000
701,600,000 1,629,200,000
1,000 400
291,900,000 442,800,000
1,200,000 4,100,000
1,915,400,000 2,948,000,000
65,500,000 81,800,000
199,700,000 239,300,000
143,900,000 129,700,000
9,600,000 16,500,000

530,500,000 2019 56,400,000

99

2020 30 0.92
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2019 30 0.48
2020 30 6.29 0.09 6.31
2019 30 3.30 0.11 3.31
2020 30

167,314 167,314
92,322 693,996 786,318
173,120 3,690,474 3,863,594
1,447,337 1,447,337

40,933 40,933

201,717 201,717

1,977,112 9,708,807 11,685,919
1,504 1,504

459,819 459,819

59 59

1,247,119 1,247,119

882,507 882,507
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228,307 228,307
71,584 71,584
1,526,736 1,526,736
16,616 16,616
2,409,868 20,217,515 22,627,383
608,753 608,753
2,745,664 2,745,664
590,272 590,272
24,592 24,592
753,478 753,478
11,970,668 11,970,668
31,079 31,079
820,368 820,368
64,680 64,680
173,196 173,196
3,564,273 3,564,273
288,866 288,866
14,792 14,792
237,581 237,581
21,888,262 21,888,262
6 6
354 354
5 5
41 41
659 659
1,065 1,065
2019 30
340,764 340,764
96,181 96,181
360,462 291,479 651,941
259,579 259,579
9,830 9,830
63,636 63,636
23,650,446 4,821,711 28,472,157

663 663
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4,415 4,415
1,037,645 1,037,645
110,112 110,112
39,731 39,731
763,091 763,091
99,791 99,791
24,351,672 7,597,864 31,949,536
1,254,438 1,254,438
969,992 969,992
89,791 89,791
131,218 131,218
7,410,325 7,410,325
259 259
525,283 525,283
242,723 242,723
331,833 331,833
111,902 111,902
195,424 195,424
11,263,188 11,263,188
82,115 82,115
1,465 1,465

6 6

44 44

87,141 87,141

170,771 170,771
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2020
30 15,164
2020 30
27,773,762 141,148 27,914,910
103,732,960 103,732,960
2,655 2,655
251,152 251,152
4,890,638 4,890,638
114,108,748 68,426,824 742,168,188 3,198,749 927,902,509

142,133,662 68,426,824 742,168,188 111,966,150 1,064,694,824

369,505,963 369,505,963

398,707 398,707

80,143 80,143
5,926,000 1,558,759 655,818 8,140,577
516,376 516,376

286,094 286,094

312,090 312,090

7,021,725 16,180,507 217,903,805 4,730,042 245,836,079
13,027,868 17,739,266 218,559,623 375,749,272 625,076,029
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2019 30

47,780,562 226,799 48,007,361
156,206,166 156,206,166
18,240 18,240
4,579,519 4,579,519
59,730,540 64,711,313 627,005,824 2,410,063 753,857,740
107,529,342 64,711,313 627,005,824 163,422,547 962,669,026
266,876,665 266,876,665
7,337 7,337
347,941 347,941
1,102,822 907,755 242,159 2,252,736
583,334 583,334
4,743 4,743
209,822 209,822
359,684 359,684
4,749,794 4,766,077 214,204,192 1,295,817 225,015,880
6,200,557 5,673,832 214,446,351 269,337,402 495,658,142

2020 30 2019 30
541,443 1,234,458
24,359,551 27,859,903
24,900,994 29,094,361

2020 30 2019 30
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2019 30 15,164

2020 30

199,262,303 30,474,807 834,957,714 1,064,694,824

369,505,963 369,505,963
398,707 398,707
80,143 80,143
5,926,000 2,214,577 8,140,577
516,376 516,376
286,094 286,094
312,090 312,090

600,785 7,387,746 237,847,548 245,836,079

377,626,158 7,387,746 240,062,125 625,076,029
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2019 30

235,107,113 25,018,409 702,543,484 962,669,026

266,876,665 266,876,665
7,337 7,337
347,941 347,941
982,000 1,270,736 2,252,736
583,334 583,334
4,743 4,743
209,822 209,822
359,684 359,684

467,492 1,233,568 223,314,820 225,015,880

269,839,018 1,233,568 224,585,556 495,658,142

57,413,760
2019 32,409,480
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2020 2019
30 30
78.77 40.26
1.71 2.19
1.33 0.92
12.77 10.08
20.32 24.28
9.52 11.65
3.80 4.52
12.70 14.42
12.78 6.79
(53.70) (15.11)
100.00 100.00

2020 30 2019 30
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17,703,733 2019 6,229,441
17,694,645 2019 6,290,068
10
2020 30
46.31 418,352,725 2019
40.61 320,534,643
11.02 86,952,874

2020 30 2019 30

99/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
ooooodoooinoooooodd

805,169,570 698,294,207
56,288,000 31,774,000
. 63,011,766 22,077,861
27.914,910 48,007,361
103,732,960 156,206, 166

2.655
4,890,638 4,579,519
18,240

251,152

12
2020 30 2019 30
12
2019 2019 22

2019 30
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2020 30

9,235,869 9,235,869
5,926,000 2,214,577 8,140,577
638,099 638,099
1,409,274 1,409,274
3,065,762 3,065,762
1,749,941 1,749,941
60,329 60,329
954,067 954,067
2,973,325 2,973,325
9,685,375 9,685,375
741,179 741,179
328,329 328,329
8,075,110 8,075,110
7,092,712 7,092,712

11,237,929 11,237,929
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16,695,149 16,695,149
5,455,076 5,455,076
13,413,438 13,413,438
10,701,468 10,701,468
7,654,983 7,654,983
3,386,696 3,386,696
399,578 399,578
3,615,115 3,615,115
45,118,384 45,118,384
82,539,182 82,539,182
33,473,895 33,473,895
44,284,129 44,284,129
1,707,513 1,707,513
20,516,845 20,516,845
788,580 788,580
1,698,202 1,698,202
556,957 556,957
2,240,010 2,240,010
864,187 864,187
118,880 118,880
81,255 81,255
520,793 520,793
141,955 141,955
126,100 126,100
84,420,500 84,420,500
437,775,181 437,775,181
5,926,000 877,755,928 883,681,928
3,198,749 3,198,749
22,388,844 22,388,844
621,120 621,120
18,011,868 18,011,868
44,220,581 44,220,581
927,902,509

27,773,762 27,773,762
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37,950,949 37,950,949

6,032,412 6,032,412

12,165 12,165
4,730,042 4,730,042

11,969,251 11,969,251

244,673 244,673

38,540,769 38,540,769

55,484,735 55,484,735

169,689,843 169,689,843

1,403,012 1,403,012

19,258,489 19,258,489

245,836,079

40,754,830 40,754,830

6,965,593 6,965,593

628,191 628,191

2019

30

104/262
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2,333,000 2,333,000
982,000 1,270,736 2,252,736
966,198 966,198
1,449,191 1,449,191
3,016,232 3,016,232
1,456,527 1,456,527
665,674 665,674
916,163 916,163
3,217,533 3,217,533
7,364,011 7,364,011
204,359 204,359
404,041 404,041
10,440,125 10,440,125
4,920,657 4,920,657
12,800,825 12,800,825
15,957,909 15,957,909
4,022,652 4,022,652
21,117,772 100 21,117,872
12,978,770 12,978,770
9,397,215 9,397,215
3,460,822 3,460,822
416,098 416,098
3,737,346 3,737,346
53,564,039 53,564,039
91,563,627 91,563,627
46,344,220 46,344,220
50,910,453 50,910,453
267,538 267,538
13,781,466 13,781,466
468,589 468,589
457,759 457,759
3,252,693 3,252,693
132,016 132,016
697,380 697,380
147,928 147,928
300,338 300,338
51,425,173 51,425,173
307,040,498 307,040,498
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982,000 742,867,573 15,264 743,864,837
2,410,063 2,410,063
254,017 254,017
4,415 4,415
168,938 168,938
7,170,634 7,170,634
10,008,067 10,008,067
753,872,904

47,780,562 47,780,562
9,475,265 9,475,265
3,142,260 3,142,260

91,641 91,641
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1,295,817 1,295,817
2,546,136 2,546,136
141,657 141,657
13,473,437 13,473,437
17,457,047 17,457,047
196,861,721 196,861,721
217,345 217,345
10,479,767 10,479,767
225,015,880
12,040,306 12,040,306
2,413,596 2,413,596
1,453,338 1,453,338
103,417 103,417

2020 30 2019 30
27,773,762 47,780,562
768,896,493 676,122,760
15,164
56,288,000 31,774,000

2019

28,132,500 19,651,173
66,444,939 24,057,071
8,140,577 2,252,736
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955,676,271 801,653,466
2020 30 2019 30
13,362,582 (16,477,601)
(58,906,578) (4,180,682)
(45,543,996) (20,658,283)
2.00 0.60
1.60 1.00
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4,664,380
2019 5,013,009

1.80 1.20

22,500

0.02
60,000 15,000

0.10

0.10
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67,500
0.0030
5,000
2020 30 2019 30
300,000
75,000
2020 30

2019 3,817
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11

12

2020

COVID-19
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Bank of America Barclays Bank Barclays Capital Inc. BofA Securities, Citibank,
N.A. PLC (clearing broker) Inc. N.A.
2020 30
§ 1,082,998
*# 7,682 346,865 73,270
§ 351,744
*#
*#
220,442 407,203 111,887
# 3,037,130 280,122 2,828,860
**H 443,919 1,958,947
il 180,871 114,927
*x 56,288,000
3,446,125 1,478,109 1,434,742 56,288,000 5,087,891
§ 981,295
* # 76,801
§ 202,295
*# 754,650
*#
181,114 219,814 168,147
# 1,084,740 109,424 943,120
# 796,491 2,270,287
# 64,976 43,110
2,085,480 1,202,530 1,183,590 3,424,664
1,360,645 275,579 251,152 56,288,000 1,663,227
# (3 1,345,910 56,288,000
## (il 275,579 1,663,227
14,735 251,152
TBA i 1,345,910
TBA ekl 290,000 1,800,000
57,413,760
TBA i
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Citigroup Global Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA,
Markets, Inc. International Bank AG International National Association
2020 30
§
*# 97,735 70,418
§
*#
* # 3,667,753 4,041,224 1,419,700
166,731 550,039 190,177
# 3,107,227
kol 1,141,734
x4 248,682
Kk
3,667,753 4,305,690 6,537,800 190,177
§
* # 17,546 4,422 47,019
§
*# 7,832,104 7,745,901 5,873,207
* #
370,635 1,134,597 331,161
# 1,209,880
# 710,669
# 62,650
7,832,104 8,134,082 4,422 9,038,022 331,161
(4,164,351) (3,828,392) (4,422) (2,500,222) (140,984)
## 15 (3,966,217) (3,794,930) (2,500,222) (100,980)
(198,134) (33,462) (4,422) (40,004)
TBA folel
TBA *x
TBA el (3,966,217) (3,794,930) (2,520,413) (100,980)
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JPMorgan Chase JPMorgan  Merrill Lynch Morgan Stanley &NatWest Markets
Bank N.A. Securities LLC International Co.International PLC PLC
2020 30
§
*# 20,043 5,107
§
*#
*# 4,390,240 2,170,606 2,257,425
327,981 133,469
9,269,188 2,727,428
**H# 4,352,733 11,284,945
il 1,163,033
Kk
15,132,978 4,395,347 2,170,606 16,269,798 133,469
§
* # 10,750 88,135
§
*# 8,205,645 1,436,106 6,628,236
*#
80,143
1,032,706 369,521
5,447,232 1,940,184
# 3,540,118 10,063,021
# 1,232,276
11,263,082 8,373,923 1,436,106 18,631,441 369,521
3,869,896 (3,978,576) 734,500 (2,361,643) (236,052)
# (3 734,500 (2,361,643) (236,052)
## (il 3,800,000 (3,838,561)
69,896 (140,015)
TBA ** 756,293
TBA i 3,800,000 36,000
TBA * (3,838,561) (2,707,767) (250,952)

114/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

State Street Bank Toronto-Dominion WestPac
and Trust Co. Bank UBS AG Banking Corp.
2020 30
§ 1,082,998
* 4 621,120
§ 351,744
*#
* # 17,946,948
582,370 235,163 139,780 133,507 3,198,749
# 1,138,889 22,388,844
**H# 123,020 1,211,547 20,516,845
x4 1,707,513
wox 56,288,000
582,370 358,183 2,490,216 133,507 124,102,761
§ 981,295
* 4 244,673
§ 202,295
*# 38,475,849
* #
80,143
655,646 79,470 152,313 34,918 4,730,042
# 1,234,671 11,969,251
# 327,747 1,550,156 19,258,489
# 1,403,012
655,646 407,217 2,937,140 34,918 77,345,049
(73,276) (49,034) (446,924) 98,589 46,757,712
## 15 (49,034) (403,847) 98,589
(73,276) (43,077)
TBA folel 112,374 2,214,577
TBA ** 5,926,000
57,413,760
TBA el (110,978) (403,847) (17,694,645)
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Bank of America Barclays Bank Barclays Capital Inc. Citibank, Citigroup Global

N.A. PLC (clearing broker) N.A. Markets, Inc.
2019 30
*#
8§ 768,316
* # 4,377 34,727 4,783
§ 168,291
*#
* # 582,037
§
110,432 227,927 268,611
# 106,031
> f 1,265,816 134,731
kol 28,539
**k
1,409,164 368,685 936,607 408,125 582,037
* #
§ 1,028,888
*# 32,929
§ 244,371
*# 251,705 1,481,356
* #
§ 11,289
# 123,631 131,565 93,532
# 296,031 82,229 414,863
# 156,906
#
671,367 246,723 1,284,548 665,301 1,481,356
737,797 121,962 (347,941) (257,176) (899,319)
## (il 737,797 (232,416) (899,319)
#t 10 121,962
(347,941) (24,760)
TBA ** 784,127
TBA i 130,000
TBA i (232,416) (912,293)
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Credit Suisse Deutsche Goldman Sachs HSBC Bank USA, JPMorgan Chase
International Bank AG International National Association Bank N.A.
2019 30
* # 4,415
§
* # 52,630 55,906 11,786
§
*#
* # 1,573,166 638,657
§
119,151 202,508 188,764 240,237
# 83,942
il 995,432 7,413,187
w4 238,999
**k
1,744,947 1,896,918 188,764 7,988,151
*#
§
* # 14,582 1,570 26,411 8,701
§
* # 2,236,912 1,610,772
*#
§
# 49,214 235,772 163,046 175,150
# 235,981 1,298,845
# 1,010,276 5,809,450
# 217,345
2,300,708 1,570 3,199,212 163,046 7,509,491
(555,761) (1,570) (1,222,294) 25,718 478,660
## 10 (516,516) (1,156,851)
a4 7] 380,000
(39,245) (1,570) (65,443) 25,718 98,660
TBA **
TBA *x 380,000
TBA il (516,516) (1,156,851)
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JPMorgan Merrill Lynch Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Morgan Stanley & NatWest
Securities LLC International Fenner & Smith, Inc. Co.International PLC Markets PLC
2019 30
*#
§
*# 4,729
§
*#
* # 911,297 338,875 364,374
§
26,503
283,856
# 64,044
il 3,972,300
*k #
ok 31,774,000
942,529 338,875 31,774,000 4,400,718 283,856
*#
§
* # 57,464
§
* # 3,039,689 299,185 1,791,590
*#
§
8,263
# 118,242
# 218,187
# 3,503,135
#
3,105,416 299,185 5,512,912 118,242
(2,162,887) 39,690 31,774,000 (1,112,194) 165,614
## 10 (2,187,887) 39,690 31,717,000 (1,112,194) 35,614
## 15 25,000 57,000 130,000
TBA ** 117,292 124,867
TBA i 25,000 57,000 130,000
32,409,480
TBA il (2,232,236) (1,239,756)
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WestPac
UBS AG Banking Corp.

360,443

*k H

*k 4

Fk

4,415

768,316

168,938

168,291

4,408,406

26,503
2,410,063
254,017
13,781,466
267,538
31,774,000

331,194 76,940

360,443

331,194 76,940 54,031,953

# 104,337

1,028,888

141,657

244,371

10,711,209

11,289
8,263
1,295,817
2,546,136
10,479,767
217,345

76,811 24,517

104,337

76,811 24,517 26,684,742

256,106

254,383 52,423 27,347,211

## [ 244,450

#t 15

254,383

11,656

52,423

TBA *x 244,450
TBA *x

TBA **

1,270,736

260,000 982,000
32,409,480

(6,290,068)
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6,242,052
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2020

14
2020

2020 30
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Combined statements of financial position

End of each reporting perad
April30

ASSETS
Current Assets Naotes. 200 19
Financial assats at falr value thraugh profit or loss” 3,4,8,12 §827,002,509 5751872904
Solesof ivestmenisowaitig setlement o 8 e 103732360 156206166
Subseriptions of ualis pwaiting Setthement & 1655 -
Receivable forvariation margn on fulyres contracts 48 = 18,240
Hect‘wablnlnmlia_nog\rlna_r;i't on certrally cleared swap contracls ) 48 ) 251152 -
Inerest and ather receivasies - U .. .. 475
Cash and cash equivalents 1E i )  #TAs310 -ﬂB.ﬂﬂ'fSE.
Total Aszets - o 1,064,694, 824 962,684,120
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Financia! [abditses at fair value through profitor bass” 34812 245, E36,0T9 125,015,880
Pur:hasﬁo{ims:mu_ awaiting«m:t_lemml_ ) ) i ) a, _11 ) 365,505,553 TEEATEBES
Aedenplions of units awgitng settiement [ 358,107 1331
Payatle bor varation margan an fuluies conleacls 48 80,043 -
Paryaate for variation margn on gentrally cleared swag contracts 48 - 347,841
Payabde for management fees ) 8.9 ) 516,376 583,334
Payable to custodian 18 ) ) - 4,183
Payable for custody and administrative fees B9 286,024 09822
I:nllmu'a[unm.rtshd-qﬁvath-gcnnu.a:.ls...a.l?viue. B 8,140,577 1,152,136
Other acorued expensos B9 312,000 359,684
Total Liabilities [excluding ntl'.m;t& :t.:h‘-ihulihl‘.d to holders .
of redeemalile wnits) 625,076,029 495,658,142
Hatﬂ.-._ul::mlhm;ahl.etnhnlder:nl’mdumdileuniluthi:lfa.iltpri:es 4 5439,618,755 MET,EI?_.E!.MS
HetAssets attributable to holders of redeemable units of the:
Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) 5435 555845 S467,.247 158

* See Mote 3(bi)

The accompanying notes ase an integral partof these financia) statements.,

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds [Cayman) 6
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Combined statements of comprehensive income (loss)

For the years ended
Aprilan

OPERATING INCOME/{LOSS) Mote 2020 019
Intenest from financial assets and financial labilities at fairvalue through profit or koss 3 £24,000,994 £20,094,351
et realived and unrealized poing{loss) of sssets and liabiftes in foreigncurrencies ) {iTE26 {F5,077)
Mt realioed and unrealized gainfloss) on financial assets and financial liabilities a2 l2'r valuwe
through profitor loss 145,526,155) (20587023
Netincrease{rom payments by affiliates - o . - 3817
Total Operating Incomef{Lass) (20,642,287} 8,436,078
OPERATING EXPENSES
Management fees 9 7041534 R
Custody fees 9 wiees e
Administrative fees 9 9,385 1B, 107
Transber apent fees 3 390,696 392,369
Tmstee_Fees 9 50 .. 82420
m!-citfees 9 85,430 90,082
Other gxpenses ) o 5 101406 ) R
Total Dperating Expenses T.929,600 B, 345,407
ﬂpgra‘tln_g Prafit/{Lass) [28,572,568) 90,671
Finance Costs
Distributions (o holders of redeemabie unils _ 1 {22,938,184] {25,176,217)
Lagz afer distributions and before tax ) (51,510,783)  [25,685,546)
Withnalding tanes 1.5 {2, 216) (32440
Loss after distributions and tax [51,514,998) [25,747,585)
Increasaf{Docrease] in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
fram operations [55\1,5.14,39&; o (515,747, 506)

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these inancial statements.

Putnarm Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman] )
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Combined statements of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable units

Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable units at the beginning of year

Increase/{Decreasa) in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units
from operaticns

~REDEEMABLE UNIT TRANSACTHOMNS—— — —— e e e

Proceeds from units issued

Class )

Class M
Value efunits redeemed

Class J

Class M )
Increasef{Decrease) in net assets resulting from redeemable unit transactions
Het Assets attributable to holders of redeemable un!ls nFthe end of year ]

EDINETOOOO
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Forthe years ended
April 30

Hate 020 2018
$467,026,048 £508,329,541
(51,514,998} [25,717,988)

B - -
E BEET0345 46,545,322
& 132,923,482} (50,195,620
] {6,635.61%) {2.001,00%)
24,107,745 [15,585,507)

| 5435,618,795 $467,026,048

The accompanying notes are anintegral part of these inancial staternents.
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Combined statements of cash flows

Forthe years ended
April3n

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Hotes 2020 2019
Increase/[Decrease) n net assets attributable to holders of redeamatie units Irom operations  (651.514,908) ($25,717,986)
Adpustmant o rgconci e operating profit/loss] for the Final period 1o
netcash generated framyiused ) operating activities

interest from financlal assets and linancial liabilisies at fair valve through profit or loss 3 (37,358,708 (39,224 844)

Withholding tases. L 335 421 R

Distributions i the halders of redeemable units o ) T CIEERIse ISTTSRIT

Metamortization of pagmivms . 12451409 10098043

Exchange gains/losses) on cash and cashequivalents ) 17,825 7507

. (s3459,972) (28,361,053

Nt [nrease)/decroas in sales ol imwestments awaiting sattlament g 524713,206  [BL0%5,393)
Het increasefidecrease] in purchases of investmants aweiting setlement E 1L 102,629,258 104,549,116
Met (increase)/decreasein receivabie for varlation margin on fulures contracts 4,8 18,210 [6,345)
it fincrease]idecrease in receivable for variation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts 4.8 [251,152) -
Melincrepsefdecrense] in pavable for custody 2nd administrative faes 8.9 16,272 113,283
Melincreasefidecrease) in payable forvariation margia on fulures contracts 4.3 80,143 -
MetIncrease/igecrease) in payable forvariation margin on centrally Ceanks Swap contracts 4,8 [347.941) 316,500
Metincreasefidecrease) In payable for managament fees ) 8,9 (56,958 (757,731
et Increasefldecrease) in payable to custodian ) 3.8 (4743 4143
Metincrease/decrease) in collateral aa Cortain derivative contracts, at value 8 5,!!-5'[154_1 ) 512.35_12
Nt increase Tdecrease) in payable lor other accrued expenses 8,9 [41.554) 3101
Met {increasel/decrease [n financial assets atfairvalue through prafiter loss 34,812 {174,029,605) (57,512,054}
Met increasefidecrease] in financlal llabilities at fairvalue through prefit or loss 34,812 0,820,153 100,022 065
Cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities [45,222,766) 57,218,724
Inkaest recared 24,589,875 30,250,805
Met cash generated from/(used in) operating activities {21,632,891) §7,607,529
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distributions paic v the holders of receemalyle units 7 (22.938,194) (25.176.217)
Proceeds from redeematle units ) & £5668,191 48,323,580
Redemplions ol redeematiounits & (41,171,731} {62, BIBATE)
Het cash ganeratad from/[used in) financing activities 1,558,266 (40,351,107}
Het increase/{decrease] in cash and cazh equivalents {20,074,615) 47,256,422
Cash and cash equivalients at beginning of year 3a 48,007,361 816,016
Exchang (gaing/losses on cash and cash equivalents ) 17828 (75077
Cashand cash equivalents atand afyear iE 417,914,910 548,007,361

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statements,

Putnam Diversified tncome Trust Funds {Cayman) g
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Notes to combined financial statements 4/30/20

1. ORGANIZATION

Within the loflowing Notes to combined financial statements, references to "State Street”, if any, represent State Street Bank and Trust Company
and references to *OTC, If any, reprasent over-the-counter, References to “funds’ net assets” are based on net assets of $439,618,795 at April 30,
2020, $467,026,048 at April 30, 2019, Unless otherwise noted, the “reporting period” represents the period fram May L, 2009 through April 20, 2020,

Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman]} Master Fund {the "Master Fund”) is a series trust of the Putnam Offshore Master Seres Trust (the
“Master Trust”™), pursuant o a Master Base Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005 and a Master First Supplemental Trust Deed dated August 18, 2005
between CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayrman) Limited and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (PAC). Putnam Diversified Incomie Trust
{Cayman) (the “Feeder Fund®) is 2 series trust of the Putnam Offshore Feeder Serbes Trust (the “Feeder Trust”), pursuant to a Feeder Base Trust
Deed dated July 13, 2005 {5 amended) and a Feeder Supplemental Trust Deed dated July 13, 2005 (as amended) between MaplesFs Linited
and The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC, The Master and Feeder Trusts are registered ungder the Mutual Funds Law (2020 Revision] of the
Cayrnan Istands.

The Master Fund and Feeder Fund aperate as a mastenTeeder fund structure (collectively the *funds”) [each individually a *fund ™) whereby
substantially all of the net assets of thie Feeder Fund ane invested in units of the Master Fund, These combined financial statements ane in respect
of the funds, comprising the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund,

Separate books and records are maintained for each fund in order to determing the net asset value lor the Feeder Fund, The Feeder Fund has the
same inherent rishs as the Master Fund.

The manager of the funds i The Putnam Advisery Cornpary, LLC (the “Manager”), a limited liability company erganized under the laws of the State
of Deleware, L.S.A. State Streel (the *Custodian) is the custodian of the funds.

The investment objective of the funds is to seek as high 2 level of current income 25 the Manager believes is consistent with preservation of
capital. The Manager will seek to achieve the funds’ objective by investing mainly in bands that are securitized debt instruments and ather
obligations of companies and govemments wordwide, are eitherinvesiment-grade or below imestment-grade (highyield bonds), and have
intermediate to long-term maturities (three years or longer).

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These combined financia’ statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standerds ("IFRS") as published
by the International Accounting Standards Baard (IASB"). The principal accounting policies have been applied consistently by the funds for all
perings presented, unless otherwise stated, Prior period amounts may have been reclassified to conform to the current pericd presentation,

Current period and prior year combined financial staternents of the funds are presented on a combined basis as management considers that
the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund represent one reparting entity given the manner inwhich the entities are managed. References to the
financial staternents hereafter are to be considered on a combined basis. Intragroup balances and transactions, including Income, expenses and
dividends, are eliminated in full,

The Manager makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. Estimatas
are-continually evaluated and based on historical expesience and other factors, including expectations of futere events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from those estimates and ditferences could be material.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fallowing i a summary of the signilicant accounting and reparting polices used in preparing the financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and liabilities clas-
sified at fair value through profit or loss. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS, requires management to make esti-
rnates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported inthe financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from
these estimates.

(a} Standards and amendments to existing standards:

IFR59 — “Financial Instrements’ — IFRS 9 s the first standard issued az partof a wider project to replace [AS 33, IFRS 3 retains but simplifies the
mixed measurement model and establishes two primary measeremant categories for financial assets; amortized cost and fair value, The basis of
classification depends on the entity’s business model and the contractual cash llow characteristics of the financial asset. IFRS 9 has been applied
retrospectively by the funds and did not resultin 2 change to the classification or measurement of inancial instruments, Financial assets and
lizbiiities will continue to be measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Putnarn Diversified Income Trust Funds {Czyman] 10
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{b) Financial instruments
(i) Classification

The Master Fund classifles lts investments based on both the Master Fund's business model for managing those financial assets and

the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of inancial assets is managed and performance s evalu-
ated on a fairvalue basis. The Master Fund is primarily focused on fairvalue information and uses that information to assess the assets”
performance and to make decisions. The Master Fund has not taken the option toirrevocably designate any equity securities as fairvalue
through other comprehensive Ingome. The contractual cash flows of the Master Fund’s debt securities are solely principal and interest,
hewever, these securities are neither held for the purpese of collecting contractual cash llows and is anly incidental to achieving the
Master Fund's business model's objective. Consequently, 2ll investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Derivative
coniracts that have a negative fairvalue ase presented as Labilities at [2ie value through profit or loss. As such, the Master Fund classifies all
of its investment portfolio as financial assets.or liabilives at fairvalue through profit or loss,

(i} Recognition/Derecognition

Purchases and sabes of investrnents are recognized on the trade dete - the date on which the Master Fund commits to purchase or sell the
imvestment, Investments are derecognized when the rights to receive cash fiaws from the investments have expired and the Master Fund
has transfesred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership, Securities purchased or sold on a delayed delivery basis may be settled at
afuture date beyond customary settlement time; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the securities, Losses may acise due to
changes in the fair value of the underlying securities orif the counterparty does not perform under the contract.

Purchases and sales ofinvestments awailing settlement represent payables for securities purchased and receivables for securities soid
that have been contracted for but mot yet settled or delivered on the statement of linancial position date respectively. The due from
brokers balance is held for collection. These amounts are recognised initially 2t fair valve and subsaquently measured at amartised cost,
At each reporting date, the Master Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the [ife-
time expected cradit lesses if the credit risk has increased significantly sirce Initizal recognition, If, at the reporting date, the credit risk has
notincreased significantly sinceinitial recognition, the Master Furd shall measure the loss allowance at anamount equal to 1 2-month
expected credit losses. Significant financial difficulties of the broker, probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorgani-
sation, and default in payments are all considered indicators that a loss allowance may be required. If the credit risk increases to the point
that it is considered to be credit impaired, interest income will be calculated based on the gross carrying amount adjusted for the loss
allowance. Asignificant increase in credit risk is defined by management as any contractual payment whichiis more than 30 days past due.
Ay contractuzl payment whichis more than 90 days past due is considered credlt impaired.

{iii} Measurement

Financiai assets and Financial liabilities at fair value throwgh profitor loss are initially recognized at fairvalue. Transaction costs are
recorded in the Statements of comprehensive income (lossk. Subsequent o initial recagnition, all financial assats at fair value through
profiterless are measured al Fairvalue. Gaing and losses arising from changes in the f2irvalue of the ‘Financial Assets or Financlal
Liabilities aL fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) in the period in
whiich they arise.

Irvestrments for which market quatations are readily available are valued at the last reported sales price on their principal exchange, or
afficial closing price for certain markets, and are classified as Level 1 securities under IFRS T Fair Violue Meosurements ond Disclosuras
{IFRS 7). If no sales are reported, as in the case of some securities that are traded OTC, & security is valued atits last reported bid price and
is generally categorized as a Level 2 security.

Market quotations are not considered to be readily avallable for certaln debt obiigations [including short-term investrments with remaining
maturities of 60 days crless) and other investrments; suchimestments are valued on the basis of valuations furnished by an independent
pricing service approved by the Manager or dealers selected by the Manager. Such services or dealers determine valuations lor normal
instituticnal-size trading units of such securities using methods based on market transactions for comparable securities and various rela-
tionships, generally recognized by insttutional traders, between securities iwhich cansider such factors as security prices, yields, matur-
ities and ratings). These securities will generatly be categorized &5 Level 2. Certain securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided
by & single source. Securities quoted in foreign currencies, if any, are translated into L5, Dodlars at the current exchange rate.

The quated market prices used for financial 2ssets held by the Master Fund are the current bid price; the appropriate quoted market price
used for the financial liabilities is the current asking price, however quoted market prices for both finzncial assets and financial Febilities
held may fall within the bid/ask spread.

To the extent a pricing service or dealer is unable tovalue a security or provides a valuation that the Manager does not believe accu-
rately reflects the security's fair value, the security will be valued at fair value by the Manager in accordance with policies and procedures
approved by the Manager. Certain investments, including certatn restricted and illiquid securities and derivatives, are also valved at fair
value lollowing procedures approved by the Manager. These valu ations consider such lactors as significant market o specific security
events such asinterest rate or credit quality changes, various relationships with cther securities, discount rates, U5, Treasury, U.S. swap
and credityields, index levals, convexity exposures, recovery rates, sales and other multiples and resale restrictions. These securities are
classified as Level 2 or as Level 3 depending on the prioeity of the significant inputs.
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irvestrnents in collective or other investment funds are valued with reference to their respective net asset value per unit on the relevant
valuation date.

Attheend of the reporting period, no secwrities or derivatives were fair valued by the Manager (2019: 515,264 of the Master Fund's assets
and SNl of liabdlities, or <0.01% of the Master Funds’ net assets).

(c) Off-setting financial instruments

Financial assets and Eabilities ase ofiset and the net amount is reported in the Statements of financial position when thereis a legally enforceable
right to off-set the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

{d} Inceme from financial assets and liabilities at fair value through prefit or loss

Interest is recognised on a time-proportionate basis using the effective interest method., Interest income includes interest from cash and cash
equivalents. Interest from financial assets at fairvalue through profit or loss includes interest from debt securities, Income received from collective
o other investrment fynds is recorged on the ex-date and retain the character of income as eamed by the undedying investment, All premiums,
discounts are amortized/accreted on a yield-to-maturity basis. The Mastar Fund earned certain lees in cannection with its senior loan purchasing
activities, These fees are treated as market discount and are amartized inta income in the Statements of comprehensive ingome (loss),

{e) Distribution policy

Distributions to the unithalders from aperating profinioss) of the Master Fund will be distributed to wnitholders of the Feeder Fund, subject to the
approval of the Manager. Income distributicns, if any, will be made monthly, Distributions to unitholders of the Feeder Fuad are recognized a5 2
fimance costin the Statemants of comprehensive income (ioss). Distributions from capital gains, if any, are recorded on the ex-dividend date and
paid at least annually,

(f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current deposits with banks, including foreign currencies. Cash equivalents are short-terrm highly liquid investments that are
readily cormeertihle ta known amounts of cash, are subject bo an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash needs rather than for investments or other purposes. Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown as payable to custodien in the
Staternents of financial position.

April 30
i Cashand cash equivalents 2020 2008
* Forelgncash ' 51,065 §170771 |
! uS0cash 0083 56,008 -
. Cash quivalents FIREER ] 41780562 -
Totalzazh and casheguivalents £27,914,900 $48,007,361

(g} Repurchase agreements

The Master Fund, through its custodian, receives delivery of the underlying securities, the fair value of which at the time of purchase is required to
bein an amount at least equal to the resale price, including accrued interest. Collatera! for cartain tri-party repurchase agreements, which totaled
£57,413,760 (2019; $32,400,450) at the end of the reporting period, is held at the counterparty’s custodian in a segregated account for the benefit
af the Master Fund and the counterparty. The Manager is respansisle for determining that the value of these underying securities is at 2!l times at
ieast equal ko the resale price, including accrued interest. In the event of default or bankruptey by the ather party to the agreemaent, retention of
the collateral may be subject to legal proceedings.

{h) stripped securities

The Master Fund may irvest in stripped securities which represent 2 participetion in securities thet may be structured in classes with rights to
receive different portions of the interest and principal. Interest-only securities receive all of the interest and principal-only securities receive all of
the principal. if the interest-only securities experience greater than anticipated prepayments of principal, the Master Fund may {ail to recoup fully
its indtial irmvestrment in these securities. Conversely, principal-onty securities increase invalue if prepayments are greater than anticipated ard
decline i prepayments are slower than anticipated. The fair value of these securities is highly sensitive to changes in interest rates,

(I} Forelgn currency translation

{i} Functional and Presentation Currency

The accounting records of the Master Fund and Feeder Fusd are maintained in U.S. Dollars, the currency in which they receive subscrip-
tions and facilitate redemptions of their redeaematlz units. The Manager considers the U.S. dollar the currency that mast faithfully
represents the economic effect of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The U.S. dollar is the currency in which the funds
measure thelr performance and report their results, This determination also considers the competitive envirenments in which the funds
arecompared 1o other investment products. The financial statements are presented in U5, dollars,
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{ii) Transactions and Balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the trans-
actions, The cost of each security is determined using historical exchange rates. Income, expenses and withholding taxes are translated
at prevailing exchange rates when earned or incurred, The Master Fund does not isclate that portion of realized or unrealized gains or
Insses resuiting from changes in the loreign exchange rate on investrents from fluctuations arising from changes in the market prices

of the securities. Forelgn exchange gains and losses arising from translation and foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and
cash equivalents are presentad in the Statements of comprehensive income ([ass) as Net realized and unreglized gainfiloss) of assets and
liabilities in foreign currencles. Translation differences on forward currency contracts and non-menetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities at fairvalue through profit and loss are recognized in the Staterments of comprehensive income (loss) as Met realized and
unvealized gainy{ioss) on financial 2ssets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Investments in foreign securities invabve
certain risks, including thase related to econamic instability, unfavarable palitical developments, and currency fluctuations, not present
with domestic investments.

{j} TBA commitments

The Master Fund may enter into TBA (to be announced) commitments to purchase sacurities for a fived unit price at a futwre date beyond
custarnary sattlement time. Although the unit price and par amount kave been established, the actual securities have not been specified,
However, itis anticipated that the amount of the commitments will not significantly differ from the principal amaount. The Master Fund holds, and
maintains until settlernent date, cash or high-grade debt obligations in an amount sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the Master Fund may
enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other securities it owns. Incorne on the securities will not be earned until settlerment date.

The Master Fund rmay also enter into T2A sale commitments to hedge its portfolio positions, to sell mortgage-backed securities it owns under
delayed delivery arrangements or 1o Lake a shost pasition in mortgage-backed securities. Proceeds of THA s2le commitments are not recelved
until the contractual settiement date. During the time a TBA sale commitment is cutstanding, either equivalent deliverable securities or an offset-
ting TBA purchase commitment defverable on or before the sale commitment date are held a5 "cover” for the transaction, or other liquid 2ssetsin
#namoun: equal to the notional value of the TBA sale commitment are segregated. If the TBA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition
of an offsetting TBA purchase commitment, the Master Fund realizes a gain or loss. If the Master Fund delivers securities under the commitment,
the Master Fund realizes a gain or 8 loss from the sale of the securities based upon the unit price established at the date the commitrnent was
enibered inta,

TBA commitments, which are accounted for as purchase and sale transactions, may be considered securities themselves, and invalve a risk of loss
due to changes in the value of the security prior to the settlement date a5 well as the risk that the counterparty to the transaction will not perlorm
its obligations. Counterparty risk it mitigated by having a master agreement between the Master Fund and the countenparty.

Unsettled TBA commitments are valued at their [airvalue accarding to the praceduses described under “Measurement” above. The contractis
marked to marke: daly and the change in [airvalee is recorded by the Master Fund as an unealized gain orloss, Based on market circumstances,
the Managerwill determine whether to take delivery of the underlying securities or to dispose of the THA commitments prior to settlement.

4, DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

Derivative contracts may servie a3 s component of the Master Fund's investment strategy 2nd are utilized prmarily to structure and econcmically
hedge imvestments wo enhance perfarmance and reduce risk to the funds, or for other investrent purposes. The Master Fund does not designate
any derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting purposes as described under IFRS 9and hence these derivative financial instruments are classi-
fied at fairvalue through profit or loss, The derivative contracts that the Master Fund may hald orissue include, but are not limited to, forwards,
futures, eptians, certain currency ransactions and swap contracts.

The Master Fund may enter into options contracts, Losses may asise from changes i the value of the underlying instruments if there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracts, if inberest or exchange rates mewe unexpesbdly oo if the counterparty bo the cantract is unable to perform. if
awritten call option is exercised, the prermium originally received is recorded as an addition to sales progeeds, if awritten put option is exercised,
the premium criginally received is recorded as a reduction ta the cost of investments. Exchange-traded options arevalued at the last sale price
o, if o sales ane reported, the last bid price for purchased options and the l2st ask price for written options. OTC traded options are valued using
prices supplied by dealers. Options on swaps are similar o opthons an securities except that the premium paid or received is o buy or grant the
right B enter inta a previously agreed upon interest rate or eredit default eontract, Forward premium swap apticn contracts include premivms
that have extended settlement dates. The delzyed settlement of the premiums is factered into the daily valuation of the option contracts. In

the case of interest rate cap and floor contracts, in return for a premivm, ongoing payments between two parties are based on interest rates
exceeding a specified rate, in the case of a cap contract, or falling below a specified rate in the case of a floor contract,

The Master Fund may enter into futures contracts. Losses may arise fram changes in the value of the undertying instruments, if there is an illiquid
secondary market for the contracis, if interest or exchange rates move unexpectedly or if the counterparty to the contract is unable to periorm.
With futures, there is minimal counterparty credit risk to the funds since futures ane exchange traded and the exchange's clearinghouss, ascoun-
terparty to all exchange traded futures, guarantees the futures against default, Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of finan-
cial position. When the contract is closed, the Master Fund records a realized gain or loss equal to the difference between the value of the contract
at the time it was opened and the value at the time it was closed. Fulures contracts are valued at the quoted daily settlement prices estadlished
bry thee exchange on which they trade, The Master Fund and the broker agree to exchange an amount of cash equal to the daily fluctuation in the
value of the lutures contract. Such receipls or payments are known as “variation margin.”
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The Master Fund may buy and sell forward currency contracts, which are egreements between two parties to buy and sell currencies ata set
price on a future date. The U.5. dollarvalue of forward currancy contracts is determined using current forward currency exchange rates supplied
by & quotation service. The fairvalue of the cantract will fluctuate with changes in currency exchange rates. The contract is marked to market
daily and the change in fair value is recorded as an unrealized gain o loss. The Master Fund recards a realized gain or loss equal to the diference
between the value of the contract 2t the time it was opened and the value 2t the time it was closed when the contract matures or by delivery of
the currency. The funds could be exposed to riskil the value of the currency changes unfavarably, if the counterparties to the contracts are unable
to meet the tesms of thelr contracts or if the Master Fund is unable to enter into 2 closing position, Risks may exceed amounts recognized on the
Staternents of financial position,

The Master Fund may enter into OTC and/for centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts, which are arrangements between two parties to
exchange cash flows based on a notional principal amount. An OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap can be purchased or sold with an
upfront premium, For OTC intenest rate swap contracts, an upfront payment received by the Master Fund is rezorded as a liability on the Master
Fund’s books, An uplront payment made by the Master Fund is recorded a5 an sset on the Master Fund's books, OTC and centrally cleared
interast rate swap contracts are marked to market daily based upen quotations fram an independent peicing service or market makers, Any
change is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss on OTC interest rate swaps. Dadly fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared intenest rate swaps
are settled through 2 central clearing agent and are generally recordad in variation marginon the Statements of financial position and recorded
a5 unrealized gain or loss. Payments, including upfront premiums, recelved or made are recorded as realized gains or losses at the resetdateor
the closing of the contract, Certain OTC and centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Paymants related
to these swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds cowld be exposed to cradit or market risk due to unfavorable
changes in the luctuation of interest rates or if the counterparty defaults, in the case of OTC interest rate contracts, or the central clearing agency
ora clearing membar defaults, in the case of centrally cleaned interest rate swap Contracts, on its respactive obligation to perform ynder the
contract, The funds” maximum risk of less from counterparty sk or central clearing risk i the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated
far OTC inviarest rate swap contracts by having a master netting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and far centrally
clearad interest rate swan contracts through the daily exchangs of variation margin, There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally
cleared interest rate swap contracts due ta the clearinghouse guarantee fund and othar resourcas that 2re available in the event of a dlearing
member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial pasition.

The Mester Fung may enter inte OTC and/for centrally cleared total return swap contracts, which are arrangements to exchange a market-linked
raturn for a periedic payment, both based on a notional principal amount. To the extent that the total return of the security, index or ather finan-
cizl measure underlying the transaction excesds or falls short of the affsetting intarest rate obligation, the Master Fund will receive a payment
from or make a payment to the counterparty. OTC andfor centrally cleared total return swap contracts are marked to market datly based upon
quotations from an independent pricing service or market makers. Any changais recorded as an unvealized gain or kass on OTC total return swaps.
Duaily fluctuations in the value of centrally cleared total return swaps are settled through 2 central clearing agent and are gererally recarded in
variation margin on the Statements of financial position and recorded as unrealized gain or boss. Payments received or made are recorded as
realized gains or losses, Certain OTC and/for centrally cleared total return swap contracts may include extended effective dates. Payments related
tothese swap contracts are accrued based on the terms of the contract. The funds could be exposed Lo credit or market risk due to unfavorable
chargas in the fluctuation of interest rates or in the price of the underlying security or index, the possibility that there is no liguid market for these
agreements or that the counterparty may default on its obligation to perform. The funds’ marirmum risk of loss from counterparty risk orceniral
clearing rigk is the fairvalue of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC total return swap contracts by having a master netting arrangs-
ment between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared total return swap contracts through the daily exchange of variation
rnargin. There is minimal counterparty risk with respect to centrally cleared total retusn swap contracts due to the clearinghouse guarantee fund
and ather resources that are available in the event of a clearing member default. Risk of loss may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements
of linzn.cial position.

The Master Fund may enter into OTC andfar centrally cleared credit default contracts. In OTC and centrally cleared credis defauls contracts, the
protection buver typically makes a periodic stream of payments to a counterparty, the protection seller, in exchange for the right to receie a
contingent payment upon the occerrence of 2 credit event on the reference obligation or 2l other equally ranked obligations of the reference
entity. Credit events are contract specific but may include bankruptcy, failure to pay, restructuring and obligation acceleration. For OTC cradit
default contracts, an uplrant payment received by the Master Fund is recorded as 2 lizbdlity on the Master Fund's books. An upfront payment
made by the Master Fund is recorded a5 an asset on the Master Fund's books. Centrally cleared credit default contracts provide the same rights

1o the protection buyer 2nd seller except the payments between parties, including uplront premivms, are settled through 2 central clearing agent
throughvariation margin peyments. Upfront and periodic payments received or paid by the Master Fund for OTC and centrally cleaned credit
defzull contracts are recorded as realized paing or losses at the reset date ar close of the contract. The OTC and centrally cleared credit default
contracts are marked w market daly based upon quotations fram an independent pricing service or market makers, Any change in value of

OTC credit default contracts is recorded as an unrealized gain or loss. Daily luctuations ia the value of centrally cleared credit default contracts
are generally recorded in variation marginon the Statements of finandal position and recorded as unrealized gain or loss. Upon the occurrence
of a credit event, the difference between the parvalue and fairvalue of the reference ohligation, net of any proportiona! amaount of the upérant
payment, i recorded as a realized gain or bass. In addition to beasing the risk that the credit event will pocur, the funds could be exposed to market
risk due to unfavorable changes in interest rates or in the price of the underlying security of index or the possibility that the Master Fund may be
unable ta close sut its position at the same time or at the same price 25 if ithad purchased the underlying reference obligations. In certain circum-
stances, the Master Fund may enterinto offsetting OTC and centrally cleared credit default contracts which would mitigate its risk of loss. Risks

of lass may exceed amounts recognized on the Statements of financial position, The funds’ maximum risk of loss from counterparty risk, sither

25 the protection seller or as the protection buyer, is the fair value of the contract. This risk may be mitigated for OTC credit default contracts by
having a master netting arrangement between the Master Fund and the counterparty and for centrally cleared credit default contracts through
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the dally exchange efvariation margin, Counterparty risk is further mitigated with respect to centrally cleared credit default swap contracts
due 1o the clearinghouse guarantee fund and ether resources that are available in the event of 2 clearing member default. Where the Master
Fund is 2 seller of protection, the maximum potential amount of future payments the Master Fund may be required o make is equal to the
notional ameunt.

Income related to swap contracts is accrued based on the terms of the contract. Receivables and payables related to closed swap contracts
are presented in the Fingncial assets or Financial lizkilities at fairvalue through profit or loss line items on the Statements of financial position.
Realized and unrealized gains and losses on derivative contracts areincluded in Net realized and unrealized gain/{loss) on financial assets and
financlal lizbfities at fair value through profit or loss,

The notional amounts of certain types of financial instruments provide 2 basis for comparison with instruments recognized on the Statements
of financial position, but they do not necessartly indicate the amounts of future cash flows ivolved or the current fair value of the instruments
and do not therefore indicate a fund’s exposure to credit or market price risks. The derivative instruments become favorable (assets] or unfavor-
able (iabilites) a5 a result of fluctuations of market prices or foreign exchange rates relative to their terms. The aggregate contractual or notional
amouns of derivative financial instrements on hand, the extent to which instruments are favorable or unfavorable, and thus the aggregate fair
walues of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly fram time to time.

5. TAXATION

Thie Master Fund invests in securities issued by entities which are primarily domiciled in cowniries other than the Cayman lslands. Many of these
foreign countries have tax laws that indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non-residents, such as the funds. Typically, these
capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a sell-assessmaent basis ard, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Master Fund's
brokers on 2 withhaiding basks,

In accordance with IAS 12 = income Taxes, the funds are reguired to recognize a tax liability when it is probable that the tax laws of loneign coun-
tries requine a tax iability to be assessed on the funds’ capital gains sourced from such foreign country, assuming the relevant taing autharities
nave full knowledge of all the facts and dircumstances, The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid o the relevant
taxation authorities using the Lax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period, There s
sometimes uncertalnty about whetheror not a tax liability will vitimately be paid by the funds. Therafora, when measuring ary uncertain tax
liab#lities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances availzble at the time which could influence the Fhelihood of payment,
including amy formal or informal practices of the relevant tax authorities.

A April 30, 2020 and April 30, 2009, the funds had no significant uncertain tax liability positions with respect to foreign capital gains taxes.

6. UNIT CAPITAL AND REDEEMABLE UNITS

At the end of the reparting periads, April 30, 2020 and April 30, 2019, the Master Fund had Class S and Class | Units avallable for issue. Unless the
Manager cetermines otherwise, the minimum initial investment for Class 5is 300 Units and the minimum subsequent subscription shall be 10
Units, provided that the absolute ménimum initial imvestments shall be 15550,000 or its equivalent in the relevant subscription currency. Unless
the Manager determings otherwise, the minimum rumber of Class | Units that can be subscribed for by way of initial investrnent shall be 1,000,000
Units, the mininum aggregate value of the initial imestment shall be 15510,000,000 and the minimum number of Units that can be subscribed for
by way of subsequent imvestment shall be 10,000 Units, The absolute minimum aggregate value of the initial investment in Class | Units that the
Manager may determine shall be US550,000.

The Feeder Fund has unlimited Urits of capital. Each Unit will represent an undwvided beneficial interest in the Feeder Fund. MaplesFS Limited
{the “Feeder Fund Trustee"), at the direction of the Manager, shall kave the power to designate and issue Units from time to time by reference toa
separate Class and/for series and determine the manner inwhich Units of any Class and/or series differ from Units of any other Class and/for series.
The Feeder Fund currentiy has two Classes of Units, Class J and Class M Units, which are investors into Ciass S of the Master Fund. Class M Units
are sobd with a maximum frent-end $ales charge of 3.25% and do not pay a contingent defermed sales charge (COSC) Class J Units do not pay a
frant-end sales charge and are subject to a COSC of up to 4,009 if those Uinits 2re redeemed within five years of purchase. Unless the Manager
determines atherwise, the minimum initial investment far Class J {C05C) and Class M Units shall be 300 Urits and the minimurn subsequent
subscriptions shall be 10 Units.

The net 2sset value of each class is caleulated by dividing the net 2ssets attributable ta the halders of redeemable units of a particular elass of
units, with the total number of outstanding redeemable units of that class. In accordance with the provisions of the funds’ governing documents,
imestment positions are valued based on the bid/fask market price for the purpose of determining the net asset value per unit for subscriptions
and redernptions. Proceeds and payments for receemable participating units issued and redeemed are shown as movemenis in the Siatements
of changesin net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units. The Feeder Fund generally provides its unitholders with the
right b redesrn theirinterest in the Feeder Fund at any dealing date (penerally 2aily} for cash equal to the proportionate share of the net agset
value of the Feeder Fund, The Manager, the Transfer Agent or other delepate of the Manager reserves the right to reject any application for Units
withaut stating ary reasan for daing so. The Feeder Fund issues redeemable units, which are redeemable at the holder's option and are classifisd
as financial liabilities, The redeemable units are carried at the redemplion amount that is payable at the end of the reporting period, if the halder
enercises the right to put the unit bazk to the funds.
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Unit transactions for the years were as follows:

Masterfund =T " Classs ) Classl
' April 30 April 30
; 2020 | 2018 2020 2013
Unils outstanding a1 beginaing of year ' 56053237 ¢ SBOORTE . T 1086
e e i 1 e L T
Unitsredeemed T C@Esoss | (5T - -
. Units outstandingat end of year ! C5T921,525 56,083,297 © 1,086 _ 1,086
FI;JQI‘“.I;'IJ v cl]!l]” o T ) cl‘l‘i“ i
April 30 April 30 !
; 2020 | s 2020 | s
. Units autstending 2t beginning of year o 0047420 | eBSOS.290 0 10035420 3287770
' unitsissued o - ! oo 3831380 GiaaL
© Unitg redeemed ! (5285805 | 8618700 - {1.590,640) (207,260}
Units outstanding at end of year : 54,761,525 | §0,047420 18,525,710 10,035,420

At April 30, 2020, 100% of the Feeder Fund's Class J redeemable units were held by one unaffiliated investor (2019: L00%&). At April 30, 2020, 100%
of the Feeder Fund's Class M redeemable units wese held by one unaffiRated imestor (2019: 100%). At April 30, 2020, 100% of the Master Fund's

Class 5 redeemabde units were held by the Feeder Fund (2019: 100%). At April 30, 2020, 100% of the Master Fund's Class | redeernable units were
held by an affiliate of the Manager (2009: 1009&).

7. DISTRIBUTIONS

Distributions to the unitholders are made at the discretion of the Manager in an amount and at such time as determined to be appropriate. At the
end of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Master Fund Class 5 amounted to 522,975,132 or $0.4031 per unit (201%: $25,805,905 or 504486
per enit), At the end of the reporting period, there were no dividends paid to Class | (2019: SNil).

AL the end of the reporting period, dividends paid by the Feeder Fund Class ! and Class M amounted to 517,544,018 or 50,312 per unit {2019;
S22.872,TTL or $0.357 per urit) and 54,934, 176 or 50,348 per unit (2009: 52,903 446 or 50.404 per unit), respectively. Distributions from the Feeder
Fund are recogn’zed in the Statements of comprehensive income (loss) as a finance cost.

8. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Thie funds have imestrient guidelines that set out their everall buginess strategies, thedr tolerance for risk 2nd their general risk management
philosophy, The funds’ inancial 2ssets and liabilities 21 fair value comprise the Master Fund's financial instruments which may include:

«  Investrents including fived-income securities, lloating rate securities and equity securities;
«  Bands that ane securitized debt instruments and other obligations of companles and governments workdwide;
«  Cashand short-term investments; and

+  Derivative transactions which the Master Fund enters into to manage the interest rate and currency risks arising from the Master Fund's
irwestment activites.

{a) Market price risk

While it is the intention of the Manager to implement strategies which are designed to minimize petential losses, there can be no assurance that
these stratepies will be successful. 1tis possible that an invester may lese a substantial prapartion o all of its imvestment. A3 2 result, each investor
should carefully consider whether it can afford to bear the risk of investing in the funds.

The funds are exposed to market risk (which includes market price rigk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk), liquidity risk and credit or default
risk, The funds’ risk management process consists of g multi-layered and cross functional review that provides a system of checls and balanges.,
The Manager performs pericdic reviews and agrees on policies lor managing each of these risks and they &re summarized below. These policies
hawve rernained substantially wnchanged since the beginning of the period to which these financial statements relate,

Market risk arises mainly fram uncertainty about future prices of financial Instrurnents held. [t represents the potential loss the funds might suffer
through holding market positions in the face of price movements caused by factors specific to the individual investrment or factors affecting all
instruments traded in the market The Manager considers the 2sset alloc ation of the funds in erder to minimize the risk associated with particuiar
countries o industry sectors while continuing to foliow the funds” investrment objective through 2 careful selection of securities and other finan-
cial instruments within specilied limits. Market risk can also potentially be mitigated through derivative conteacts entered into by the funds. The
Manager measures both the Master Fund's total risk a5 well a5 their risk of underperformance versus their stated benchmark.
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Under narmal market conditions, the Manager expects to invest 15%-65% of the Master Fund's net assets in gach of these three sectors;
L5, and investment-grade sector - U.5, governmant secuvities and invastment-grade bonds of ULS. companies, High yield sector - lower-rated
bonds af L5, companies, and Internatiaonal sector - bonds of lareign governments 2nd companies, including both investment grade and

lower-cated securities.

At the and of the reporting period, investments in LS, securities were approximately 91% (2019 approwimately 86%),
Az the end of the reporting periods, the funds’ notional exposure on derivative contracts was as follows:

Purchased interast rate TBA commitment option contracts fcontract amount)
Puichased curency aplian cantracts [contract amaunt)
Purchased inbenest rate swap oplion contradls (contract amount

Wiritien inbesest rate TEA commitment oation contracts [oontract amount)
- Wiritten currency optiaon contracts [Contradt amount)
i Wirithen inbenest rate swap option contracts [contrct amount)
Futures contracts (number of contracts) ™
Farward curency contracts (contract amount) ”
¢ OTC iaterest rate swap conbradis [netional)
Centrally cleared Interest rate swap contracts {netional)
I OTC sotal return swag conlractks (national)
Centrally cleared total return Swad contradts (national)
. OTC credit default contracts - protection purchased {notional)
OTC credit defizult contracts - protection sold {notional)
Cantrally cleared oredit defau't contracts = pectection purchased {notional)

April 30

2020 L 2015
 §237,000000 £200,000,000
§74,.007.245 §16.252,149
$L237.422845 51101844803
5265,000,000 $00000000
46,904,647 5= :
06596055 swreiTos |

1275 i 481
S003T04T1 §354,195,304

4= $15,088,031
$1,047,958635 S1T16.974,754
$56,636.501 | swETLTO
5260136439 | snsnEns
$38,813000 §36,471,000
515,552,000 S100,740,000

§— $17.930,000

" Farthe yea: eaded Apiil 30, 2020, thie Magter Fund's notional exposure as.a percent of net asses value was as follows: Eura sells: 11.57%. For the year ended
April 30, 2009, the Master Fund's notional exposune a5 a pereent of net aseet val ue was a5 follows: Ewro sells: 15.43%, Japanese Yen selis 12.11%. There are no
other concentrations bt currency risk in excess of 109 of MAY a5 3 result of farward Cerivative notionals.

" For L weas ended April 30, 2020, the Master Fund held LS. Treasury sequrithes with number of contracts totaling 1,275 and notional amownts tataling,
S267,134,007. For the year ended Aprl 30, 2003, the Master Fund held U.S. Treasury, UK, Gilt and Evro-5chetz securities with number of contracts totaling 431

and notional amounts totaling $71,810,927.

The volume of activity for the reporting periods for any derivative type that was held during the period is listed below and was as follows based on

an averape of the holdings at the end of each fiscal guarten

Purchased TEBA commitment ootion contrels [conract amaount)
Purchasad currency eption contracts [contract amaynt)
Purchased swap option contracts (contract amount]

Written T34 commitment option contracts (Contract amsunt)
Wrilten currency option contracts {contrack amount)

Wrilten swap ¢ption contracts {oontract amount)

Futues contracts (aumber of contracts)™*

Farward currency contracts (eontract amount)

OTE interest rabe swap contracts (rotioas)

Centrally cleared interast rate swap contracts (notional)

OTC total return swap cantracis [notional)

Centrally cleared tatal retum swap contracts (notionaly

OTC credit delault contracts [notianal)

Centrally cleared credit default contracts {notional)
Warranits [number of warranis)

April 30
2020 2019
$116,700,000 5209 500,000
§75,700,000 $41,100,000
51,099, 500,000 £1,976 400,000
S153,700,000 $318,200,000
$65,000,000 $20,600,000
§701,600,000 §1,629,200,000
1,000 400
$291,900.000 542,800,000
$1,200,000 4,100,000
51,915400,000 %2,943,000,000
$65,500,000 $51,800,000
195,700,000 $239,300,000
$143,900,000 §129,700,000
59,600,000 $16,500,000

' Forthe reporting period theve were no holdings a6 the end of each liscal quarter and the transactions were considered minimal.
** Fof th reporting period, averape of the Futures hoteings at notlonalvalues was $530,500,000 (2009: 555, 400,000].
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Aggregate Value at risk

The Value at Risk (VaR) risk measure estimates the maximum expected loss in pre-taxation prodit over a given holding period for 2 specified condi-
dence lavel. The Var methodology is a statistically defined, probability-based approach that takes into account market volatilities as well 2s risk
diversification by recognizing offsetting positions and comelations between products and markets, Risks can be measured consistently across
all markets and products, and risk measures can be agaregated to arrive at a single risk numbes. Given the interdependencies between market
varizbles, the Master Fund also estimates the Vak or threshold loss that is not expected to be exceeded 2t the 99th percentile confidence level
overa L-day horizon. The Manager uses a proprietary multi-factor model ko estimate the active risk {also referred to as tracking error] from wihich
VaR estimates can be analytically derived, The VaR estimates presented below are point-in-time and vary over time as a function of market 2nd
portfolio composition changes and are representative of activity during the period.

Given its reliance on historical data, VaR is most effective in estimating risk expasuras im markets in which there are no sudden fundameantal
changes or sudden shifts in market conditions. An inherent limitation of VaR is that the distribution of past changes in market risk factors may
not produce accurate predictions of future risk. Different VaR methodologies and distributional assumptions could produce a materially different
VaR. Moreover, VaR calculated for a one-day time horizon does not fully capture the market risk of positions that cannot be liguidated or offset
with hadpes within one day. Changes in VaR between reporting pericds are penerally dustochanges in levels of exposure, volatilities and for
correlations among asset classes,

The table belaw shows the VaR of the Master Fund Tor bath start and end of the review pericd.

Portfalio - Benchmark* ** ; Ratio**
Al 30, 2020 092 afa i na
© April 30, 2018 | 048 nfa | 2

* ICE BodA U5, Treasury Bill Index
** The Mpster Fund uges a cash equivalent benchmark, therefiore VaR of the benchmark and VaR ratio are nol rglevant.

The factor risk breakdown for the Master Fund for both start and end of the review period is presented in the table below. The risk decomposition
is based on expected annualized volatility (L standard deviation), Active Risk {or Estimated Tracking Errgr “TE™} measures the predicted stan-
dard deviation of the return difference between the portfolio and the benchmark using the current positions of each and the risk model's factor
covariance matrix,

: Partfolio Benchmark® Estimated TE
April 30, 2020 Tatal Risk £329 009 i 6,31
April 30, 2019 Total Risk 330 &1L ' 331

" ICE Boff LS. Treasury Bil Index

{b) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency inwhich they are measured. A porticn

of the funds’ assets are held in currencles other than the base currency with the result that the funds” Statements of financial position can be
significantly affected by currency movements.

Hor-base currency exposures (excluding the notional impact of forward currency contracts) are detailed in the tables below. Monetary assets
represent investments that can be converted inte monetary terms in @ very short period of time, In the tables below, Non-Manetary assets include
the fair value of the Master Furd’s portiolic investments, Monetary assets and liabilities include the unrealized appreciation and depreciation of
TEA sale commitments and derivative contracts. Forward currency contracts are entered into a5 a method of reducing currency risk,
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- Foreign Currency Risk atthe end of the reporting period April 30, 2020

' Assets Hon-Monetary i Monetary Tatal
| AgemiicePeso $16731¢ | = | S1enas
Aystralan Dollar 23R I 693,996 786,318
British Pound 173,120 | 3,600,474 3,863,504
Canacian Dollar - . 1447337 1,441,337
ChinesaYuan (Offshare} - i 40,333 40913
Corach Koruna -— I 20!,'{1_? L 3]1_.?1?_ )
Eura 1877112 5,708,807 11685919
! Hong Kong Dollar - 1,504 1,504
: JapaneseYen - 455,819 453,519
Wiw Taiwan Dallar - - =
. New Zealand Dollar - LTIE 1,247,119
Forwegian Krone = 882,507 882,507
© Pugsisn Auble - Pk 228,307
Singapore Dallar - 71584 71584
| Swedish rona - . 1,526,135 1,526,736
Swiss Franc - : 16,616 15516
§2,409,868 i 520,217,515 $22,627,383
Liabilities Non-Monetary i Monetary Tatal
- Australian Dollar §— : $608.753 $608.753
" Brilish Pound - i 275,654 2,745,664
Canadian Dollar - : 590,272 590,272
Chines Yuan (Olifshone) - 24,592 4852
© Coech Keruna - 153478 753,478
Eura - 1!.’9?4_]._5@3 11,970,668
. Hong Kong Dollar - 31,019 31079
laganese Yen - B20,368 830,358
hew Tawan Datlar - 64,680 £4,650
* Mew Zealand Daliar - 173,155 173,196
Morwegian Krone - 3,564,273 3564273
Russian Ruble - 283 856 188,965
Swedish Krona - 14,792 14,792
© Swiss Frang - 237,581 237,581
§= $21,888,262 §21,888,262
' Currency Hon-Monatary Menetary Total
Argenting Pest 5= 56 56
British Pound - 35 154
+ Canadian Dollar - 5 5
Czech Koruna - Al 4l
Euro - 59 659
§= 51,065 51,065
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Forslgn Curvency Mk st the snd of the reporting pariod April 30, 2028 - ~ i

| Assets i Non-Monetary ) Menetary Ty Ctetal
AgeinePeso | swomes i s= sz |
* Australion Dollar i - 96,181 ’ 96,18 ,
¢ British Pound 360,462 i 291,479 | 51,941 i
| CanacianDollar P - I 253,579 | 259,57 i
" ChinesaYuan [Offshore) f - i 9,830 i 9830 .
| Caoch Koruna ] - ! 61636 i 635635 5
o : 23650446 5 4820711 | ATLIST :
| HongHong Dollar i - : 663 | 863
| tsrael Sheke! . = : 4415 i 4415
Japanese ven _ 1 - 5  LOIEAS P 1037645
 New Zealand Dallar : - . 110,112 E 110,012
Norwegian Krone ' - ' 1731 : 19731
- Swedsh Krena . f - 763091 ; 763,091
Suiss Franc : - : 59731 i %9791
. f §24,351,672 ! 47,597,864 ; 31,948,535
" Liabllities : Non-Monatary Monetary ; Total
Australan Dollar ' 5— | 51,254,438 | 51,254,438 |
" British Pound : - B0, ' 559,992 i
| Canadian Dollar ' - sa7a : 89,191 i
' Caech Kouna - 131,218 B 131,218 |
" Buro - 710,325 : TA10,325
 Hong Kang Doliar ; - ' 355 259
. JapaneseYen ' - 525,283 ! 535263
| Mew Zealand Dollar - : M2723 ] M7
Morwegian Krone - 331,833 331,833
Swadish Krona e 11e0z 118
Swiss Frang - 195,424 105,424
; §— §11,263,188 §11,263,148
Currency Nen-Maonetary Monetary . Total
Argentine Peso i— 482115 ; 582,115
eitish Pound - 1465 1485
Canadian Dollar - 3 3
Crech Koruna ' - 44 &4
Euro - 87,141 87,141
' [ P £170,771 _ £170,771

{c} Interest rate risk

Intarest rate risk is defined as the risk that the fairvalue of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluztuate because of changes in markat
interest rates, The risk arises on financial instruments whose fairvalue or future cash flows are affected by changes in intenest rates. Short-term
securities are less sensitive to interest rate changes than longer-tenm securities, but they alsa usually offer lower yields. A portion of the Master
Fund's financial assets and liabilities ane debt instruments with foating intenest rates, which, in the Manager's opinion, are ganerally less sensitive
tointerest rate changes but may declingin value if their interest rates do not rise a5 much, or as quickly as interest rates in general. Comersely,
floating rate instrurments will not generally increase in value if interest rates decline, Changes in interest rates will also affect the amount of interest
income the Master Fund earns on its floating rate investments.
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High yield securities risk

The Master Fund invests in fixed income securities rated Baa3 or lower by Moody’s or BBB- or lower by S&F [commanly known as *junk® ar “high
yield™ bongs). These securities are considered speculative and, while generzlly providing greater income than imestment in higher-rated secu-
rities, imvohse greater risk of principal and income (including the possibility of default or bankruptey of the issuers of such securities) and may
imvolve greatervolatility of price {especially during periods of economic uncertainty or change) than securities in the higher rating categories.
Because yields vary over time, no specilic level ofincome can ever be assured, These lower-rated, high yielding fxed income securities genesally
tend to raflact economic chanpes (and the cutlock for economic growth), short-term corporate and industry Sevelopments and the market’s
parception of their cradit quality (especially during times of adverse publicity) to a greater extent than higher-rated securities which react primarily
to fluctuations in the general level of interest rates (although these Yower rated fixed income securities are also affected by changes in interest
rates). In the past, econcmic downturns or an increase in interest rates have, under certain circumstances, caused a higherincidence of default by
the issuers of these securities and may do soin the luture, especially in the case of highly leveraged issuers,

Payment risk

The isswersof debtsecurides held by the Master Fund may be able to <all 2 bend or prepay principal due on the securities, particularly during
pericds of declining interast rates. The Master Fund may not be able to reinvest that principal at attractive rates, reducing income to the Master
Fund, and the Master Fund may lose any premium paid, The Master Fund would also lose the benefit of falling interest rates on price of the prepaid
bond, On the athes hand, riging interast rates may cause prapayments b ocour at slower than expected rates, This effectively lengthens the
maturities of the affected securities, making them maore sensitive to interest rate changes and the Master Fund's net asset value maore volatile,
Securities subject to prepayment risk generally offer less potential for gains when interest rates decline, and may offer greater potential for loss
when interest rates rise.

The tables below present the interest rate profile of the Statements of inancial position categorized by maturity dates. (dpril 30, 2019 table values
do notinclude Commaon Stocks fair value of $15,164)

Interest Rate Risk f . : mptan200

| Less than . Qver Hon-interest

I Lyear 1-5years  Syears bearing  Total
Azsets i
Cashand cashequivalents | $27773,762 5= i - $141148 527,914 910
Sales ol imvestmenis awaiting | i
setilement ! - - - 103,732,960 103,732,960
Subscriptions of wnits avwalting | :
seltlement - - - 1555 2,655

Recevable forvariation margin |
oncentrally cleared swap

CONrBCLS : 251,152 - -1 - 251,152
Imerest and ather receivables i - - - 4,550,638 4,850,638
Financial Assets at fair value i

thraugh profitor loss ; 114,106,744 68426824 742,166,188 3,158,749 S27.902,509
Total assets $142,133,662 $68,426,824 §742,168,188 $111,966,150 §1,064,694,624
Liabilities

Purchases of inwestments

awaiting settlament 5 §— i 4369,505,963 $369,505 363
Redemptions of units awaiting |

sptthernent i . - = 398,707 358,107
Payabla for variation margin on )

futures cantracts 60,143 - - - 50,143
Collateral on certain derivative -

contracls, alvalue 5506000 1,558,759 655,818 | ) - 8,140,517
Payable lor masagement fees | - - - 516,376 515,378
Payable for custody and i

adminigtrative fees - - - 285,094 286,094
Other acorued expenses - - - 32,050 320
Fingacial Lizbiliies at fair value

through prafit orloss TORLTES 16,180,507 217,303,505 4. 730,042 245,835,079
Total liakilities (excluding

net assets attributable to

halders of redeernable units) $13,027.868 $17,739,266 4218,559,623 4375,749,272 §625,076,029
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! Interest Rate Risk i April 30,2009
E Lessthan Over | Hon-interest
1year 1-5years | 5 yaars | baaring Total
© ASSERS ! -
| Coandcamshecuivlents | STTR0SR = 5= 522679 $48,007351
: Smsﬂnm:mcmmmm i
| setiement ] o = ) - =1 156,208,155 156,206,166
Receivable for variation ﬂrﬁn-
. on futures contracts [ 1B.240 ) ) - ) =1 = 18240
| Wnerestondother eceivables ; - =i et 4319518 ASTSD
Financia: Assets at fairvalue | :
| troughprofterloss @ S8F30560  BATILAIS L 6AT005E2¢ | 2,410,063 ~ TaaEsiien
. Total asets £107,529,342 $64,711,313 | suw,ms,,u; j §163,422,547 $962 669,026
| Lisbilities : :
. Purchoses ol investments |
| awaiting seltiement = 5= — $266 876,665 5266,876,565
' Hedynpd.aoﬂsofumtsa-«aﬂng L
setliement - - - T337 1337
Payablelorvaration margin )
ancenirally cheared swap
T OONRrACLS 347841 - - - 347,841
! l:um-alonccﬂ.amdtrwumc : i
i gontracts, atvalue 1,102 822 S07T55 242,159 - 2,252,136
| Payable for maragement fees | - - - s - S84
| Payablete custodian : - - =i amz 4243
: Pa:.rzbi-i’nrmmymd ;
administrative foe - - ) - 00,822 09,632
* Dtheractrued expenses i - - - ! 350,604 150,684
Financial LisbFties at fair value: ' i
throwgh profit o loss o ATaRTe 4,765,077 114,204,192 - 1,295,817 235,005,880
Tatalliabilities {excluding :
net assets attributabloto :
halders of redeemable units) | 56,200,557 55,673,832 §214, 446,351 5£269,337,402 £405,658,142

Man-base interest rate exposures (excluding the notional impact of interest rate swap contracts) ane detailed in the tables above. intenast rate
swap contracts are entered into a5 2 method of reducing interest rate risl,

April 30
Interest Income 2020 2009
Cash ang cash equivalents * 5541,443 51,234,458
- Debtsecuritles:
At Fair wahoe thiough prefit or loss 4,330,551 17,852,902
Takal 524,900,934 £29,094,361

* TheMasier Fund had no interest income from imvestments In affilizted kssuers for the periods ending April 30, 3020 and 20049,

{d) Liquidity risk

This is the risk that the funds will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations asseciated with financial liabilives. The main llability of the funds

is the redemption of any units that investors wish to seli, The Master Fend's linancial instruments that include investments in OTC derivative
cantracts, if amy, which are not traded in an ceganized public market, may be iliquid. As a result, the Master Fund may not be able to promptly
ligyusd abe sawme of their irvestments in these instruments at an amaount chose to thelr fairvalue In orderto rmest their liguidity requirements orto
respond to specific events such as detericration in the credit worthiness of any particular issuer.

To minimize or mitigate the effect of liquidity risk where deemed necessary, the Manager can either re-pasition the portfolio or adjust the
allocation to obtain a higher cancentration of mare liquid and viable securities as detailed in the investment objective.

Pursuant ta the funds’ imvestment policy, the Manager is to monitar on an angeing basis the funds’ Bquidity position. Redeemable enits
are redeemed on dernand at the holder's option. Howeves, the Manager does not foresee that the contractual maturity disclosed will be
representative of the actual cash outflows, as holders of these instruments typically retain them for the medium to long-term.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) 2

139/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

The tables below analyze the funds” aseets and labilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the rermaining pedod at the Statentents of
financizl position date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. (April 30, 2019
tale values do not include Common Stocks fair value of 515,164)

Llquidity Risk S April 20, 2020
' Lessthan Greaterthan | :
1 Month | 1-3 Months 3 Months Total |
Total Assets 519,262,303 | $30,474,807 $834,957,714 §1,064,694,824 |
! Uiabilities | '
Purchases of investments awating settiement 369505963 | 000 = = 3505963 |
: .Eh_eﬁe.mpﬂansnfuni:sa;aaiﬁngmﬂfnm. ! | 393;11? ; . i . = . mm :
| Payabledorvadiaticn margia on fuluses comracts ! BOL43 | - - 89,143
© Collataral on certain derivative cantracts, at valu § 5926000 | - 224577 o BlDETT |
. Payablefor managementfees i 516376 - - 816376 |
" Bayable for custody and administ-ative fees i 206004 - - 286094 |
Inm.r“Mdmw - .. e . 31:.t|9-u :. | = - ” === | . Mm .
¢ Fimancigl Liabilities at [aie valug through profitor loss G00,TES TAETT46 237841548 - 245,836,079 |
| Total Liabilities - 517?,515',.1-53 : sr,an;r;s s:m,.oﬁz,u.s ' ' SEE.IE;,,{.GE:,DJ..'! .
| UiquidityRisk ' - April 30, 2018
: o : ' h ;' Lessthan | T Gresterthan i
LMenth | 1-3 Months AMonths Total |
! ‘.ruhl.ﬁ.mh . o .Sias_..:i.ﬂ?.:l.-aa. ' Sﬁ:ﬂi!dﬂ& 51"@2.-543-.454. . $952,669,026 |
 Liabilities - . ' : |
Mimufimnﬁlmentsmai'ﬁ'}gsztﬂement i 266816555 - - 16687665 |
Redemptions of units awalting settlement ! 7337 . - - T
Payable lorvariatian margin an centrally cleased swap i i
cortracts 347941 - - 34T L]
Collateral on certain dervative contracts, at value 982,000 - L2maTie 2,252,136
Payable lor management lees 583,334 - - 583 334
. Payable to custodian 4,743 - - 4143
Payable for custody and administrative fees 29822 - - 2084882
Other accrued expenses 359584 - - 359584
Financial Liabilities at fairwalwe through prefitar loss agraee | 1,233,568 223,314,820 215,015,880
Tetal Liabilitles $269,839,018 ' §1,233,5686 §224,585,556 §495,656,142 |
{e) Credit risk

The funds will be exposed to a credit sk on parties with whom they trade and will 2lso bear the risk of settlement default. The risk of default on
securities traded is considered minfmal 2s delivery of securities sold Is only made when the broker has received payment. Payment is madeon a
purchase when the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if aither party fails to meet its obligation.

The funds seek to mitigate their cradit risk by undertaking transactions with broker dealers, banks and regulated exchanges which the Managar
considers of high credit ratings and that it considers to be established. Risks associated with derivative contracts, il amy, involve the possibility that
the counterparty to the contract may defaclt on its obligation to perfarm.

The fair value of collateral that has been accepted by the Master Fund related to outstanding repurchase agreements is 357,413,760
(2019: 532,409,480}
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The Master Furd generally invests in financial assets which have a credit rating assigned by well-known rating agencies.

Percentage of Net Assets

* Rating . o April3a .
: ' | S e o |
PAAMARY L . R - L. i i |
| ArfRa S . 111 ! FTEI i '
o AR 133 : 052 i
| BBA/Ea : TRy | 1008 ‘
BB L 232 f o un
" BB 9,52 ' N 1165
| CCC/Can and below | AE0 ' 4.52
dals 1270 I 1A
' Al 1278 ' 619
| Unested” 53.70) i {1511}

100.00% : 100.00%

* In order to manitor the ceedit guality of the "Unratec™ undedlying debt securities, the Manager, an the basis of the Intesnal rescarch, prepares its own ratings for
Une varsows instruments for which publacly svailable credit ratings are ned avasable, The Manager reviews the key linancial metsics of the issue and structural
features of theinstruments in order 1o caboulate the imatied ratings kor cach of these instruments. Cash, derivative Instruments and niet other 255808 are shown
inthe Unarated category. Payables and receivabies for TBA mortgage comeitme nts ane ‘nchuded in the Unrated categary and may result in negative weights.
Unrated debt securites have been assessed by the investment manager (o have credit quality consstens within B8 ang COC/Caa and below rated securities.

Credit qualities are shown as 2 percentage of the Master Fund's net assets as of April 30, 2020 and 2019. A bond rated Baa or higher (Prime-3
or higher, for short-term debt) s considered imestrment grade, This chart reflects "best” retings between Moody's, Standard & Poor's (S&F)
and Fitch, showing ratings based on S&P lettering, THA mortgage commitments, if any, are included bazed on their issuer ratings. Ratings and
portiolio credit quality witl vary over tine.

Thi funds themsalves have not been rated by an independent rating agency.

The credit erisis could have an impact on the Master Fund's remaining securities i other counterparties are forced to file for barkruptey or are
otherwise unable to perform their obligations. The funds are expesed to credit risk, which is the risk that a countarparty will be unable to pay
arnaunts in full when they fall due,

The funds are also exposed to counterparty credit risk on trading derivative products, cash and cash equivalents, and armounts due fram brokers
and other recefvable balances, The funds’ maximurm risk of loss from counterpasty risk, either as the protection sellar or 25 the protection buyer,
is the fair value of the derivative coniracts. This risk is mitigated, but not eliminated, by having a master natting arangerment between the Master
Furd and the counterparty, Where the Master Fund is 2 seller of protection, the maxdmum potential amouns of future payments the Master Fund
may be required to make is equal to the notional amount of the relevant derivative contract

The Master Fund is a party to ISDA (International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc.) Master Agreements that gowvern OTC derivative and
foreign exchange contracts and Master Securities Forward Transaction Agreements that govern transactions involving mortgage-backed and
other asset-backed securities that may result in delayed delivery (Master Agreements) with certain counterparties entered into frorn time 1o time.
The Master Agreements may contain provisions regarding, among other things, the parties’ general obligations, representations, agreements,
collateral requirements, events of default and sarky termination. With respect to certain counterparties, in accordance with the terms of the
Master Agreerments, collateral posted to the Master Fund is held in a segregated account by the funds’ custedian, The Master Fund's collateral is
delivered to the countarparty by either pledging or transferring collateral ta the countarparty. Coliateral can be in the form of cash or debt secu-
rities issued by the U5, Government or related apencies or other securities as agreed to by the Master Fund and the applicable counterparty.
Collateral requirements are determined based on the Master Fund's net position with each counterparty. With respect to IS0A Master Agreements,
termination events applicable to the Master Fund may ocour upon 3 decline in the Master Fund's net assets balow a specified threshold over a
certain pericd of time, Termination events applicable to counterparties may ocour upan a decling in the counterparty's long-term gr shori-term
erediL ratings below a spacified level. neach case, upon occurrence, the ather party may ele<t te terminate early and cause settlement of all
derivative and foseign exchange contracts outstanding, incleding the payment of any losses and costs resulting from such early terménation, as
reasonably determined by the terminating party. Any decision by one or mare of the Master Fund's counterparties to elect early tesmination could
impact the Master Fund's future derivative activity,

At the elose of the reporting perind, the Master Fund had a net liahility position of 517,703,733 (2019: 56,229 441) on open derivative contracts
subject to the Master Agreements, Collateral posted by the Master Fund at period end for these agreements totaled 17,694,645 (2019; 56,230,068)
and may include amounts related to unsettled agreements.
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Thie Master Fund's main credit risk concentration is spread between debt securities and trading derivative products. Less than 109 of the fair
valueof favorable contracts outstanding arewith a single issuer, with the exception of Uniform Mortgage-Gacked Securities, which were valued
at §418,352,725 or 46.31% of fair value at the end of the reparting period April 30, 2020 (2019: Federal Mational Mortgage Association, which were
valued at §320,534,643 or 40,6156 and Gowernment Mational Mortgage Association, which were valued at 586,952,874 or 11.02% of fair value).

The funds are exposed to credit risk associated with the Custodian wha helds 4 poction of the lunds' inancial as2ets and US. cash balances, The
Custodian provides clearing and depositary sperations forthe Master Fund's investment transactions, The Custodian also provides some of the
short-term lending facilities to the Master Fund. The funds were also exposed to Custodian risk on cash and cash equivalents that the Custodian
has fziled to treat correctly in accordance with procedures agreed 10 by the funds.,

Thie riaxirnum siposwne 1 credit risk 25 of the reparting date can be analyzed as follows at the end of each reporting period:

et . S e = .
' Fixed income investments f $805,169,570 §695,204,207
| Repurchase agreements | 56,286,000 31,774,000
! Cash and cash equivalents ; 21914910 48,007,361
| Sales ofinestments awaiting settiement T aimse 156,106,166
| Subscriplions olunils awailing settleneat ! 2655 -
i Interest anc other receivables ' 4,590,638 4576515
Recavalie farvarmation margs on fulures contrscts ) | - 18,240
 Receivable forvariation margin on centrally cleared swap contracts i 251,152 -

" Derivateg assets arecomprised of forwasd contracts, OTC swap contracts, fanward premium swap oplion contracts, purchiased options, purchased swag
opticns, written opticns, and written swap options, The masimurm credt risk o 0 writhen options 3nd writton Swap opEns i evaluated on 3 security basis,
based on the value of premiums pald on each sacurity. The masimum credit risk on certain dervative assetsis mitigated as a result of the Master Fund's
enforceatale master netting aerangermint {Mewes Band 12},

The Master Fund measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probability of delault, exposure at default and loss given delauit.
Managemant considers both historical anzlysis and forward looking inflormetion in determining any expected credit loss. At April 30, 2020 and
Agpril 30, 2018, 21l other recaivables, amounts due from brokers, cash and short-term deposits are held with counterparties with a credit rating of
Anfia orhigher and are due to be settled within 1 week. Management considers the probability of default to be close to zero as the counterpar-
ties have a strang capacity to meet their contractual abligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised based an
12-menth expected credit losses as any such impairment would be wholly insignificant to the Master Fund,

State Street Sank and Trust Company had a credit rating issued by Moody's atyear end of Aa3 (2019: Aad3), As of July 22, 2019, the Master Fund
changed from trading bank leans with Deutsche Bank AG to IHS Markit Lvd. IH5 Markit Ltd, had a eredit rating issued by Moody's at year end of Bal.
Deutsche Bark AG had a credit rating isswed by Moody's at April 30, 2019 of A3,

Senior loans are purchased or sold on a when-issued or delayed delivery basis and may be settled 2 month or maore after the trade date, which
fromn time to time can delay the actual investrment of available cash balances; interest income is accrued based on the terms of the securities.
Senior loans can be acquired through an agent, by assignment from another holder of the loan, or as a participation interest in ancther holcers
partion of the loan, When the Master Fund invests in a loan or participation, the funds are subject to the risk that an intermediate participant
between the Master Fund and the borrower will fail to meet its obligations to the Master Fund, in addition to the risk that the barrower under the
|m@n may éefault on its obligations.

Bursuant to the funds' investment policy, the Manager is to monitor on an ongoing basis the funds' credit position.

{f} Financial derivative instruments

The Master Fund may employ various isvestment techniques and instruments for investment purposes or for efficient portfolio management of
their assets for hedging agains: market movements, currency exchange, interest rate risks or otherwise. Any such instruments are used under
the cenditions and within the limits laid down by the Manager, The Master Fund utilized forwards, futures, options and swap contracts during the
reporting period, and 2ny resulting galns or losses were reported in the Statements of camprehensive incame (|oss).

[g) Fair valuation estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of other recefvables and payables are assumed to ap proximate their fairvalues. The fairvalue of
finanzial iabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flow at the current marke! interest rate that is
available to the Master Fund for similas financial instruments,
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Amendment o IFRS T Financisl fnstruments: Disclosure” reguines the Mester Furd to classily fairvalue measurements using a fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

»  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or labilities (Level 1)

«  Inputs ather than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 2sset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, darved fram prices) (Level 2)

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {that is, unobservableinputs) (Level 3).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety is determined on the basis of the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement it its entirety. For this purpase, the significance of an inpat is assessed against the fair
value measurement inits entirety, [ a fairvalue measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable
inputs, that measurement is a Level 3 measurernent. Assessing the significance of a particularinput to the Tairvalee meascrement in its entirety
requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability,

The determination of what constitutes “observable” reguires significant judgment by the funds. The funds consider abservable data to be that
macket data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent
sources that are actively invalved in the relevant market.

Investrnents whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within Level 1, include active I'sted equi-
ties, exchange traded derivatives, U.5. government treasury bills and certain non-L.S. sovereign obligations. The Master Fund does not adiust the
qucted price for these instruments.

Fingnclal instruments that trade in markels that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted markel prices, dealer quotations
or aliernative pricing sources supparted by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include investrent-grade corporate bonds and
certain non-L.5, sovereign obligations, listed equities and OTC desivatives. As Level 2 imestments include positions that are not raded in active
markets andfor are subject 1o transler restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect liquidity and/or non-transferability, which are generally
based on available market infesmation.

Forfinancial instruments for which there is no active market, te Master Fund may vse internally developed models, which are usually based on
valuation methods and techrigues generally recognized as standard within the industry. Inputs for assets and liabilities that are not based on
observable market data are classiied within Level 3.

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman) i
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The following table analyzes the fair value hierarchy of the Master Fund’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of the
reparting period April 30, 2020,

| Fairvalue — Finsncilassets R el ez | tewls  Teml
| Investment in securitios: ] :
| Asseibeckedsecwres - LS L mamme BT =)
I Collateral on certain derivative contracts, Mvalue 5926000 | T.214,577 - 8,140,577
I"” Convertivle bonds andnotes _ i
Capital goods - 538053 | - §38,059
Communicationservices . = L LA0e2n - LAD9.2M
. Comemereyieals ... =l .. 3ot | - 3,065,767
 Consumer staples R - Lmssa | - Lmssa
Eremy o - . eas | - 60329
Finaacialy ) - o as4 057 - 954,067
 Haaltheare . o - . umas - 2873325
Technalogy - QEEEITE - 9,685,375
Transpertation -1 ML - 741,179
LMiTtes and power - 328339 - 328,339
Corporate bonds and notes . . !
Basic materials _ - BOTSII0 | - 8,075,110
Capital goods _ - wenz | - T
Communication services - laarss - 1237889
Consumar cyclicals - 16,695,149 - 16695149
Consumer staples - | 5455076 - | 5455076
Enargy - 13413438 - 13,413,438
Fnancials - 10,700,468 - 10,701,468
Health care - 7,654,983 - T.554,983
Technolegy - 336669 | - 3,386,696
Transporiation - 349578 - Ha5TE
Utilities and power - 3,515,115 - 1515115
Faoreign gavernment and agency onds and nates - 45,118,384 - 45,118,384
Martgage-backed securities
Agency collateralized mortgage obligations - 82,539,182 = 82,539,182
Commercial marigage-backed securities - 3IATIEES .- 33,473,805
Residentia! morigage-oacked securities - 44,384,129 - 44,384,179
Purchased options Gutstanding o LT0T5IE - 177513
Purchased swap options outstanding - 20,516,845 - 20,516,845
Senior [0ans .
Basic materizls - 186,580 - 748,590
Capital gaods - ) L5596,202 - 1698002
Communiiation services - 38T - 338,337
Consumes cyclicals - 2001 - 2,240,000
Consumer staples - BE4LET - 864,187
Energy - 118,880 - 118,880
Financials - 81,255 - E1,255
Health care - 2098 | - 520,723
Techlogy _ _ - 141855 | - 141,955
Transportation - 126,100 - 126,100
Shortterm investments - 84,420,500 - B4,420,500
LL5. government 2nd agency morigage obigations - ) 431,715,181 - 437,775,161
Tatal investrnentin securities _ 5525000 877,755,928 - £63,681,928
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Fadr Value — Financial assets cont. Levell Lewel2 | Level3 Total
wmm;“ - . | - - : . S s

| Forward contracts — | 53198749 5— §3,198,149

. Forward premium swap opuon contrects _ - massew - ;s

 OTC Total return swap contracts o - B . =
OTCCreditdefaultcontracts _ - | 18010868 = sougss

| Total derivatives - 44,230,581 - i 44,220,581

. TotalFinancial assets at fairvalue through profitor loss £927,9032,509

! FairValue — Financial assets o Levell ~ Lewelz |  levels  fotal |

| Cosnequiaiens o $- e | s samm |

| Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracls - 31,930,949 ) - 37,550,949 .

? Centrally cleared total retum Swap contracts . - 6032412 - 6032412

f Futures contracts . ; es o = e Tn 12,165

 FalrValue — Financial liabilities Levell | C Lewelz  Level3 Total

! Derivatives: . |

. Foreard conteacts §— sa1I0042 s $4,120,042
Forwasd premium swap agtion contracts - 11,963,251 i - 11,969,251
OTC Total return Swap conlracts - M4BT -_ 244 673
OTC Credit default contracts - . 38540788 - 38,540,759
Tetal derivatives - 55,484,735 - 55,484,735
TBA sale commitments - i 165,569,843 - 1E9.655,842
Written aptions gutstanding - 1403002 - 1403012

© Writter swap ootions outstancing - 19258089 - 19,258,489
W'I.i.i.Flﬂll'ldilllllﬂlliﬂllltilir'\l‘lhﬂﬂﬂ'ﬁulhH'Dﬂtﬂrlﬂil M.MB
FairValue — Financial Habilities Levell Level Level3 Total
Centratly cheared intenest rale swap coniracts - $40,754,830 §— §40,754,830

* Centrally chedred Lot relurn Swap coniracts - 699550 - 6,965,593
Futunes contracts 623,191 - - 28,191

Al otiher assets and liabilites not measured at fairvalue but for which fairvalue is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of
financial position for a breakdown of assats and [iabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation techniques.

At the start and cloge of the reporting period, Level 3 investmentsin securities represented lags than 196 of the funds’ net assets and were not
condidered a significant portion of the Master Fund's portfolio.
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The following table analyzes the fairvalue hisrarchy of the Master Fund's inancial assews and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of the
reparting period Apsil 30, 2019,

. Fair Value — Financlal assets

- S tewel Lo Levlz o Levely 0 Total |
Investrent In secwrithes: ] i
Energy o = = 25164 o ssaee |
Fixed income: '
Assat-sacked secuites o 2333000 | = 23000
; Collaseral on certain cerivative contracts, atvalue 982,000 1270736 | - o 22807%
Convertisie bondsand notes ! , i . ;
Cagital goods - 966,08 | - 556,195 |
 Communicationservices . T R VU - L4satsL |
_Consumercyclicals ) - we2m | - w2 |
Consumerstaples - | 1456507 - 1ASEST
Energy - BESEN | - 65674
Financials _ - 16165 | - 916,163
Health care - INTEIE - 3217533
Technalagy - 738400 | - 7,364,011
Transparialion - 4358 - 04,358
Utlities and sower - = apspn . _ anagal
Corporate bonds and nates ‘ !
Basic matarisls . . - 0440125 | - 10,420,125
Capilal grods . T AJ20657 - 4920651
Communscation services - ' 12800825 . - 12,800,825
Consumer cyclicals - ! 15957909 - 15,957.909
Consumes staples = 4002 552 - £ 032,652
Energy - 21319772 104 2LAITET2
Financials - 12978770 - L2BTH
Health care - 5,397,215 - 8,397,215
Teehralogy - IAB0EIE - 3460822
Transpartation - 416,098 - 416,008
Utilties and power - 3TIIE - 3131346
Foreign goverament and agancy bonds and notes - 53,564,039 - 53,564,039
Morigape-backed securities !
Agency collateralized mostgage obligations - 91,563,627 - ) 91,563,627
Commercial morigage-backed secuitios - 46,344,220 = 45,344.220
Residential mortpage-Backes securities - 50,910,453 - 50,920,453
Purchased options outstanding - 67528 - 167516
Purchased swap aations outstancing - 13,781,466 - 13781466
Senior loans ) :
EBEEETI':IBI.ET:!E - ~‘-6858§ — 468,589 I
Capital goods - 4577159 - 457759 |
Consumer cycicals - 3252883 - 3252693
Consumer staples - moms - 132,016
Energy - 657380 = 657,260
Health care _ - 147,928 _ - 147928
Technology ' = 00,338 = 00,338
Shart-term investments - 51425073 - 51425073
15 everament and agency marigage obligalions - W70 - 107,040,459
Total investrment in securities 982,000 742,867,572 - 15,264 743,564,837
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. Falrvalwe — Financisl assets cont. Level 1 Lovalz | Level3 Tatal
Derivatives: ' ' oo T -
: Forward coniracts = | 52,410,063 l = £2.410,063
- Forward premium swap option contacts - a7 | - s
OTE Interestrate swapcontracss . - i CoAas | - . s
| 0T Total eturn swap conwracts : =0 weem | - 16953 |
:UTCErm-dlfaultcuntruu - | AT0EM | - T3 |
! Total derivatives - i 10,008,067 | - 10,008,067 |
;TMHF'm:.n.dil:uutntfﬂrw_lu&ﬁruu;hwuﬂturlﬁsl o $753,872,004 |
| FalrValue—Financlalassets T Lewelz CLewelz | Lewelz  Total |
| Cashequivalens ' = . gamase . &= sertease2
| Centvally cleared imerest rate swap contracts ' - oatsaes | - gaTs,285
" Centallycleared otal return swop contracts . T s | < a2
 Furescontracts o B . T el I - SLeaL
FairValue — Financlal labiitles . Levell | Levelz | Leyel3  Total |
Deivatives: o : R T
Forwaed cantracts 5— 51285817 - £128581T
* [Fowrward promium swap oplion conracts - 2546135 - 2,546,135 |
! OTC Total return swap contracts ' ' — migsr - 141657
i GTCCreditdafa-u:lmnua:ls - 13473437 - 13473427
' Total derivatives - 1T 457,047 | - 17,457,047
i T saie commitments - 156,861,721 - 196,861,721
1 ‘Written aations outstanding - 217,345 | - 2AT345
Written swap cptions outstanding - 10,475,767 - 10479767
TﬂtilFleﬂﬂ.i“fIMmIIitl’l|r“|llll|‘lrﬂughpl‘ﬂﬂlﬂl’lﬂii $225,015,880
Fair Value — Financial liabilities Lewel 1 ) Lavel2 Lewvel 3 Tatal
Centraliy cleaned intevesd rate swap coniracls §= 512,040,306 o S12.040,306
* Contrally cloared total return swag contracts - 1413596 - 2,413,596
Centrally cleaned credit defaylt contracts - 1453338 - 1453338
Futures contracts 103,417 - - 103,417

Al other assets and liabilities not measuned at Fair valwe but for which fair value is disclosed are classified as Level 2. Reler to the Statements of
financial position lor 2 breakdown of assets and [Eabilities and to Notes 3 and 4 for a description of the valuation technigues.

At the start and close of the reporting period, Level 3 investments In securities represented less than 1% of the funds” net 2ssets and were nat,
considered a significant portion of the Master Fund's portfalio.
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Financial Assets at fairvalue through profit o bass:

April30 i
! p0aH 008
Financial assets held for trading:
Cash equivalents SITITIIEL | $47.780,562
' Debi securves - ' o  isesssass §76,122,760
Eq..,i.._r;mnuu . E . . . . . ol ‘ .15.15.4
Repurchase agreements S - 56,286,000 AT
LS. ireasury bills and commercial paper :
(2009 U.5. treasury bills and shart-term foreign gowernment securities) 28,132,500 15650073
Darlvatives B6 4445 | M057071 |
Collataral on certain dervathee contracts 8,140,577 2,252,136 '
'I_'rbf-l_l_lna_r.xhlml:itfalrﬂl.uuthrou::;.l_iEmﬂtnr!ﬁuﬁ!fﬂdudhﬁ:lmrﬂ_qulwlmﬂ ) ) 955,676,171 _. sm,as:,m
April 30
2020 018
| Otharnet changes in fairvalue on iinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
| Realized 513,362,592 S[IBATTEOL |
'thangem uasealized o . . gsa.gop.s-_'r's] L B {‘"m B
| Toulgainsfosses o | Slssases)  s(osses)

(h) Capital risk management

The capital of the funds is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, The amount of net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units can change significantly on a daily basis, as the funds are subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the
discretion of unitholders, The funds” objective when managing capital is to safeguard the funds’ ability to continue as a going congernin cader
to provide returns forunithoiders and maintain a capital base to support the developmen: of the investrment activities of the Master Fund. The
Manager, at its discretion, may scale down a significant redemption that it deems would materially prejudice the management of the funds in
accondance with its investment objectives,

Ir order to malintain or adjust the capital structure, the funds” policies are to periorm the following:

«  Monitor the level of daily subseriptions and redemptions relative to the assats it expects to be able to liquidate within a day and adjust the
armount of gistributions. (if any) the funds pay to redeermnable unitholders.

Bedeem and issue new units in 2ccordance with the constitutional documents of the funds, which include the 2bility to restrict redemptions
and require certain minimum heldings and subscriptions.

The Manager monitors capita| on the basis of the value of net assets attributable to redeemable unithodders.
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9. FEES AND EXPENSES

{a} Transactions with Related parties who have significant influence

Management fees

The Manager, an affiliate of the funds, may be entitled to an annuzl fee of up to 2.00% for Class S Units and 0.60% for Clzss | Units payable out
of the assets of the Master Fund. For the fiscal year, at the descretion of the Manager, the management fee was not assessed to Class S Units
associated with the Master Fund, The Manzger will receive an annual fee of up to 1609 for Class J Units and 1.00% for Class M Units, the Uinits
associated with the Feeder Fund, per annum on the average moanthly net assets of each Class of the Feeder Fund.

Distribution fees

The Manager shall pay Putnam International Distributors, Ltd. (the Distributor), an affiliate of the funds, a fee as agreed between the Manager and
the Distributor out of the Manager's fee, The Distrfbutor may share its fees with other parties such as other sub-distributors in such manner and to
such extent as it sees fit [rom tme Lo time, AL the end of the reporting pericd, the Manager paid the Distributor 54,664,380 (2015 55,013 004).

Itis currently expectad that the tolal expense ratio (suluding amortized organizational expense) for Class JUnits will not exceed 1.80% and
Class M Units will not exceed 1.20% per annum of the average monthly Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund, The Manaper reserves the fight to
rnadily this total expense ratio at any time.

Trustee fees

Pursuant to the Master Fund Trust Deed, QIBC Bank and Trust Compary [Cayman]) Limited {the Master Fund Trustee) is entitled to be paid out of
the assats of the Master Fund a fee of up b 522,500 per annum subject to an annual review where the fee may be Increased lorvarous reasons
such as inflation without Unitholder consent as long as the fees are still considered to be at normal commaercial rates.

Such fees will accrue daily and be paid quarterly in arrears. The Master Fund Trustea shall be reimbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket
expenses incurred by the Master Fund Trustee in relation to the Master Furd out of the Master Fund's assets.

Pursugni to the Feeder Fund Trust Deed, the Feeder Fund Trustee is entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up to 0.02%
per annum on the average daily Net Asset Value of the Feeder Fund up to 560,000 per annum and subject to a $15,000 minimurm per year. Such
feeswill accrue daily and be pasd quarterly in arrears, The Feeder Fund Trustee shall be reimvbursed for all reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the Feeder Fund Trustee in relation to the Feeder Fund out of the Feeder Fund's asssts,

(b} Transactiens with Nen-Related parties

Custedian fees

The Manager shall pay to State Street Bank and Trust Company (the Custodian), out of the assetsof the Master Fund, a fee of up to0.10% per

annum on the average manthly Net Asset Value of the Master Fund, accrued daily and paid monthly in arrears, The Manager shail also pay to

the Custodien, out of the assets of the Feeder Fund a fee of up 1o 0.10% per ansum on the average monthly et Asset Value of the Feeder Fund

?ttl‘u&d daily and paid monthly in arears, The Manager shall discharge reasanable out-of-pocket expenses payatile to the Custodian out of the
unds’ gs5ets.

Sub-Accounting Agent fees

The Custodian has appointed State Street Cayman Trust Company, Ltd., (State Street) (the Sub-Accounting Agent) to act as sub-accounting agent
in relation to the funds. For administrative services performed by the Sub-Accounting Agent, the Manager shall pay to the Sub-Accounting Agent
outof the assets of the Master Fund a fee up to 567,500 plus 0.0030% per annum with respect to the Net Asset Value of the Master Fund. Additional
manthly per quote pricing fees will apply. This fee will accrue daily and be paid manthly in arrears. The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-
pocket expenses payeble to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the funds’ assets, The Manager shall also pay the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the
assets of the Feeder Fund an administrative fee of approximately $5,000 per annum plus monthly per quote pricing fees. This fee 35 included with
the Custody Tees on the Statements of comprehensive income (loss), and will accrue daily and be paid monthly in arrears. The Manager shall
discharge reasonable out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Sub-Accounting Agent out of the funds’ assets,

The funds may enter into expense offset arrangements with State Strestwhereby State Street’s fees are reduced by credits allowed on cash
balances, For the years ended April 30, 2020 and April 30, 2019, the funds’ expenses were not reduced as a result of expense offset amrangements,
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Transfer Agent fees

The Manager shall pay Citibank Eurape ple (the Transfer Agent), out of the assets of the funds, a fee based on the volume of transher agent activity,
subject to-a $300,000 minimum per anaum on the Master Fund and 2 575,000 minimun par annum ca the Feeder Fund, accrued daily and paid
raonthly in asrears, The Manager shall discharge reasonable out-of-pochet expenses payable to the Transier Agent out of each fund's assets.

Other Expenses

In addition, each respective fund bears all other expenses incidental o its operations and business, including, amongst athers all compliance
costs and the fees ofits auditors and legal advisers; custody charges: interest 2nd commitment fees on loans and debt balances: anyincome,
withha!ding or other tawes; cost of communication with Unitholders and prospective investors.

Each fund may be required to pay subscription and redemption charges in connection with investments in other investment companies. Each
fund may be required to pay brokerage commissions in relation to portfolio transactions.

10. PAYMENTS BY AFFILIATES

During the reporting period ending April 30, 2020, no reimbursements were made to the Master Fund (2018: $3,817) for certain trades in
connection with a settlement by an affiliate with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The effect of the reimbursement by the Manager of
such amount had no material impact on total retumn,

11. MARKET CONDITIONS

In the normal course of business, the Master Fund trades firancialinstruments and enters into financial transactions whese risk of potential loss
ansts due to changes in the market (market risk) or failure of the contracting party to the transaction to parform (credit risk]. The Master Fund may
be exposed to additenal credit risk that an institution or other entity with which the Master Fund has unsettled or open transactions will default
as discussed in previous nates.

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and may continue to experience significant volatility resulting from the
soread of a novel coronavirus that can cause a disease known as COVID-19. The pandemic has resulted in travel and barder restrictions, quarans
tines, supply chain disruptions, lower consumer demand and general market uncertainty, The pandemic has and may continue to adversely affect
the global econarmy, the economies of certain nations and individual issuers, all of which may negatively impact the Master Fund's performance.
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12. OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL AMD DERIVATIVE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following tables summarize any derivatives, repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements, at the end of the reparting
jperiods, that ane subject to an enforcezble master netting agreement or similar agreement. For seurities lending transactions or borrowing
transactions associated with securities sold short, if any, see Note 3, Forfinandial reporting purposes, the Master Fund does not offset finzncial
2ssets.and financial liabilities that are sulaject to the master netting agreements in the Statements of financial position.

! Y -
% I :
3 é ééf 4 £
i =2 -.g = . F
April 30, 2020 2=z a2 BEE Sk &
 Contrlycloared nrestate swap contracsh s s aones 5= $-
o DTG Total retunn $wag cantracts™ I 7682 | 346,865 - = 73,370
i -'.;.Eﬂtraflgrcleamﬁ tadalreturn swagcontractst ST | B - .:. o 35.IM4 . -
| OTC Credit default contracts - pratection sold™ i -, - - - -
i OTC Cracil default coritracts - pratection purchased™* i - - - - -
| Futwrescontracts® o - - = = | - =
| Farward currency cantsacts® 220452 A0TH03 o= et 111,887
+ Farward premium swap optien coniracts’ 3,037,030 W®0132 - - 2,828,560
[ Purchased swap options™™ ' - 443819 | — i - 1858947
. Purchased options* . 160871 — - - 114,927
Aepurchase agreaments”” ! - - — | 56,288,000 -
Tatal Azsots $3,446,125 - 51,478,109 51,434,742 - $56,288,000 45,087,891
Liabllities: ! : D
' Centrally cleared nlenest rate swap contracis? - = SELEGS | - -
OTC Total return swap contracts™ - 75,801 - - -
. Centrally cleared iotal return swap contractsh - - 02285 - -
OTC Credindelault contracts - protection sold™ 154,650 © - - - -
| OTC Credit default contracts - probection punchased ™ i - - - - -
. Futures contracts? . - - - - -
Forward currgncy conbracts® i 181,114 219814 - - 168,147
Forward premium swap option contracts” L084T20 108,434 - - 43,120
Wrtlen swap options® - 195,491 - - 220,287
Writlen options’ 64578 - - - 43,110
" Tatal Liabilities £2,085480 51,202,530 ©  $1,183,500 §— 53,424,664
Total Financlal and Derivative Met Assets 41,360,645 575,579 551,152 - 556,288,000 ) $1,663,227
Total financial instruments received (pladged)™t 51,345,910 G- = - 556,288,000 §=
Total cash collateral received (pledged)™t §— $175,579 - 5— $1,663,227
Het amount §14,735 - §— . 4251152 §— §—
Contraed finoncialinstruments received fincluding TBA commitments)** 51,345.310 5— §— &= —
. Controlled cosh collaters! received inchuding TBA commilments)™ = - £200,000 5— = 51,800,000
Uneardrafied collateral recerd = §— - 45TAL3.T60 5—
Colloteral (piedged) finshuding TBA commiments)™ §— §- 5= s .

* Excludes premiums, I any. Included In Financial assets andfor Financial liabilities at fair value through soafit of bess on the Statements of financial pasition,
* Included in Financlal asseqs ang/or Financia) Fabilites ot fairvaiue thraugh profitor loss onthe Statements of inancial positian, .
| Addithanal collateral may be required from certain brokers based onindividual agreemenis.
* Comerind by master retting agreermnt (Note 8L
“ any over-collateralization of total financial and devivative net assets s not shown, Collateral may indlude amounts refated to unsettled agreements.
Hinchades curnant day's variation margin aaly 3 reported on (e Statements of fnancial position, which is not collateralzed. Collateral pledged Torinitial margin
on futures contracts and centrally cleared swap cantracts, which s not intluded in the table abowve, amounted to 51,086,621 and 56,303,865, respectively,
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: . : :
- - = o
F 33 z ¥ £s g R iE
2 2% 3 i di: i i 23
E £ 2 £ 253 E
g2 ik i 3f #3@ i i5 i
] 1
5 | o e 5 $- §= | - e
i s - M - Eonc R L e
IL6ITSI | 404L2M | - 1419700 . = am0m0 2170606
- 166731 | - 550,039 190,077 a7 g8l - -
= i =1 = 3107237 - 9,288,188 - | -
- - - 1,141,734 - 4353713 - -
- - - 248682 - 1163033 ¢ - | -
§3,667,153 4,305,690 §= | 48,537,800 510,177 $15,132,878 | 54305347 . 52,170.506
- 17546 412 4019 - 10750 18,135 -
7832.104 7,745,301 - 5873207 - - 8205645 1,435,106
- - - - - - 80,143 -
- 30,635 - 1134587 1L161 10326 - -
- - - 1,209,880 - Sa41232 - -
- - - TI05E3 - 540,118 ) - -
- - - 62,650 - 1232276 - -
57,832,104 48,134,082 $4422  $9,038,002 §33L,161  $11,263,082 . $8,373823  $1,436,106
5(4,164,351)  5[3,828,397) | S(4422) © (2,500,222)  S(140,984) 53,869,896  S(3978,5T6) . 5734,500
${3,966,21T) $(3,794,9030) - $(2,500,222) $(100,3800 — CE= $734,500
§- 5— 5= §— §— $3,600,000 $(3,838,561) §=—
$[198,134) §133,462) §l4,423) 5 $(a0,004) 69,896 S{L40,015) §=
= & 5— &— 5— 5 i— 5756,293
= &= i S— §— §— $3,800,000 536,000 §—
— §— - §— §— - 5 §—
53965217 - 5(3.794930) § 52520413 5{100,960] §=  S{3,838.561) §=
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Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)

[ =
2 : g g
$§ 0 ¢ i 2
- .
it £5 i £ b £
F3E Y Z5 E & E £3 Total
& §— - - §- 5 $ip82008 |
- - - - - - EEL130 -
- - - - - - 350,74
2257425 — - - - = 17946948
- 133463 S8 30 235,163 135,180 133,507 3198748 .
1TIA - - - 1,138,859 - 22,388,844
11,286,345 - - 123020 1,311,547 - 20,516,845
— _ - - - _ 1707513
_ - - - - - - 55288000
. $16,268,798 $133,469 §582,370 $358,183 52,490,216 §133,507 | $124,302,761
— — - — - . 941,795
- - - - - - H45T3
- - - - - - w2
6,628,235 - - - - - 38,475,843
- - - - - - 80,143
- 369,52 B55546 79470 152,313 34,918 4730042
1,940,184 -_ - - 1234 BT1 - 11 968,258
10,063,021 - - Pz 1550156 - 19,258,469
- - - - - - 1,408,012
§18,631,441 $369,521 §655,645 5907217 §2,937,140 §34918 577,385,043
4{2,361,641) 4(236,052) §[73,276) £(49,034)  §(446,924) 408,580 546,757,712
 ${2,361,643) §(236,052) §— §49,034)  $(403,847) 498,569
' §- §— §— §— e §—
- S straam S—  8i43,0m) -
5= 5 §— 5 5— 5112374 52,314 577
5 5 §— 5~ 5 5— 6,926,000
5= - §— - §mn §— §57413,760
§2,707,76T) §(250.957) §— SL10STH  $403,847) §om §417,694,545)
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] E = -

£ = §.. < £,
E & -E = br
:, g BI 3 ]

April 30,2019 Ez' E 2EE 5 53
- Assets: | .

i OTC Interest Jate SWaZ SoNLraces™ . §= ! 5= = | 5= L.
| Centialyclsrednterest rate swap contracts : B L
| OTC Total return swap contracts™ ) ) £377 | MI2T = 4183 -

CM:ralhrm'edlmlmwrnswapmmm:s'_ N - - 168,291 | i = -

OTE Credtt default contracts - pratection sold™ - | - | -: - -
| OTC Credit default contracts - protection purchased™ - - - - £43,037
: CMlmllyﬂurtdmdi:dthu_:Lmﬁtru:s‘ ' = - = - -
: Futures eantractsh - - - - -

Farward currancy contracts® h o : 110432 e - 68,511 -

Forwand u:ernidmm‘puuliunm:ﬂraﬂs-' . -1 6,031 © - ! - -
| Purchased swap options™™ ' 1,265,816 - = ! 134731 -
| Purchased options” ™ 28,539 - - - -

epurchase agreements® - - - - -
| Total Assets §1,409,184 ©  S3E0,605 . 5035607 $4049,125 4582,037
| Liabilities:

OTC Interest rabe Swap oonlracls™ - - - - -
i Centrally cleared interest rate swap contracts? . - = 1,008,888 - -
. OTC Tetal return swap contracts™ - 2,928 =i - =
. Cantralty cheared total return swap contractst : - - 244,371 - -
| OTE Credit default contracts - protection soid™ 151705 | - - - 1,481,356
- QTC Credit default contracts - protecBon purchased™ - - - _ - -
b Contrllyclesned credit default cantractst - - 11,289 = -

Futures contractst - - - - -

meard-mrerlcgrcnmracts' 122631 . 131,565 - 9353 -

Farwaed premum swap oglion contracts® . 296,031 82,229 - 414,863 -

WrilEn Swap options’ - - - 156,906 -

Written options® - - - - -

Total Liabilites $671,367 5246,722 51,284 548 S565,301 51,481,156

Total Financial and Derivative Net Assets 737,797 ! §121,962 ' 5{347,841) 4(257,176) 4(899,319)

Total financial instruments recelved (pledged)**t 5737797 §= = Sl232,418} 5(899,319)

Total cash collateral received [pledged)™t §— $121,952 _ §=1 - -

Met amaunt : R §— $zamaa) ${za,760) §—

Controfied fingnciol instruments neceived fncluding TEA cammitments)" §7T84027 §— = f— i—

Contrafied cosh collateral received finclrding TBA commitments)™ b S130,000 i— 5— i—

Uncontrofled colloleral received b= L &= i— f—

Colloteral (pledged) fincluding TBA commitments)” 5= 5 §— s(232416) §0912,263)

* Excludes premiums, If any. inclded 'n Financial assels aad/or Fingncial Fatlities at fair valug theough praht o lass oa (he Staterents of financial pagitien.

** Included in Financal assets and for Financial lisbeities at lairvalue through profit or oss on the Statements of financizl position. .

1 Additional collateral may ba requined fram cedtain brakers based on ndividual agresmients,

* Cavered by master netting agreement (Mote 8.

 hayover-collatesalization of total Financial and derivalive St 530008 8 0L s, Collateral may inchide ameunts related wunsetiled agresmaents.

% Inciuces current days wariation margin only 33 reported on the Staternents of inancial position, which is not collaseralized. Collatera! plecdged for initial margin
o futures contracts and centrally cleared swap contracts, which is not Included in the table abowe, ameunted to 52 17,098 and 96,242,052, respecinely.
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2 o a
b 2 - -

3 3 5% g 5 | 53 gE
i z i 38 83 2 Eg Sif
= =] E Z‘F = L] =} = s
i: 'i 3 855 3% i3 £8 i

e 3 E o< Sa 5a zE Eaw

= §— 54415 | - §5— 5 - | —
261 | = 55806 - e Came - -
1573066 — | e3EST - - 911,297 IMES -
- - - - - 26,503 — ] —
U915 | - Mases | 138,764 240,297 —- - -
- = - = 83,942 - = -

- - 585,432 - Ta13,187 - - -

- - - - 133,999 - - -

= - - a P _. - = - - e & ._ < - - - . - a allrﬁm
§1,044,047 §— | 51,696,918 4188,764 51,988,151 542,529 £33,875 431,774,000

14542 L5 ®Al - g0 57464 - -

2236312 - 1610772 - - IOEEES 298,183 -

- - - - - 8263 - -
49,214 -_ 215772 163046 135\..1513 - = . =

- - 235,881 - 1,768,545 - - -

= - 1010276 - 5,509,450 - - -

- - - - REIETE - - -
52,300,708 1,570 43,119,212 $163,046 47,500,491 4$3,105 416 £2949,185 §—
{555,761 {15700 $(1,222,294) 425,718 s478,660 802,182,887 439,690 830,774,000
§{516,516) §— . 5[1,156,851) 5— §—  SlzaeTEET) $39.630 §31,717,000
. 5= &= §= $380,000 §25,000 §= $57,000
$(39,245) 511,570) 5(65,443) 525,718 498,660 G b= f=
G S S 5= 5= 5— 1 s 5—

5= 5= §— 5 £380,000 525,000 - §57,000

- 5= | 5— 5= §— 5= §— 532,409,480
£[51,516) 5— ¢ 5(1,155,851) 5 §m §{7,332,236) S— -
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g % ¥ 5
) = !
&3 g -g& = ;
:%% "3 ﬁ: E !
Bel 23 £ 2 15
FRE 23 §§ E £8 Total
5— S— | 5— 5= 5= 54415 |
- - - - - 768,316 :
-1 — i - = - 168935 |
- i - - - - 168,251 |
364,374 - - - - LADIA06 |
— = = = - - |
- - - - - %503 |
Z 263,856 360443 BLI% 76940 | 2410063 |
4044 | - - - - BT
3,872,300 - — — — ' 13TsLae
- - - - - 21538
- ! - - - - 31,7000 |
Se400718 | 5283886 §360443 © $33L,194 §76,990  $54,031,953
- - - - - 1028888 |
- - - - - 161,557
- - - - - HE3TL
1751580 - - - - 011,208 |
- - - - - 1,289 |
- - - - - 8,263
- 118242 104,337 ThELL 2,517 1,295,817
216,167 - - - - 2506135
3,503,135 - - - - IATTET |
- - - _ - 1345 |
45,512,912 4118,242 104,337 476,811 424,517 $36,684,742
$i1,112,194) 5165,614 256,106 4254,363 $51,423 527,347,211
§l3,112,194) $35.614 5244,450 §— -
$=— $130,000 §- $254,383 [
- - 511,656 4= 452,423 !
- 5124887 524,450 5— 5— 51210736 |
5 $130,000 5— 5250,000 5— £882,000
= 5 §— §— §— 532409480
§(1.239,758) 5— — - §— 5(6.290,068) -

Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds {Cayman) 38

156/262



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

13. APPROVAL OF FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements were approved by the Trustees on August 4, 2020,

14, EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE
There were no significant post-Statements of financial position events through August 4, 2020,
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2020
458,845 48,344
1,895 200
456,950 48,144
20,625,030
53,370,145
6.10 643
6.20 653
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2014 12 92,450,090 97
2015 12 96,767,628 102
2016 12 65,195,828 69
2017 12 22,058,670 23
2018 12 14,992,655 16
2019 12 11,003,756 12
2020 15,383,445 16

100
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1937
2020 1,820 19.2
10 170
2020

2020

457,901,575
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
108,189,613 11,398,858 58,683,295 6,182,872
1,772,239 186,723 1,385,328 145,958
657,479 69,272
5,582 588 (18,314) (1,930)
110,624,913 11,655,441 60,050,309 6,326,901
12,944,383 1,363,820 15,921,723 1,677,513
6,488,771 683,657 4,266,249 449,492
16,282,005 1,715,472 4,182,074 440,623
79,814,077 8,409,211 25,380,067 2,674,044
28,551,256 3,008,160 31,953,077 3,366,576
15,773 1,662
3,120,870 328,815 2,818,062 296,911
147,217,135 15,510,797 84,521,252 8,905,159
(36,592, 222) (3,855,357) (24,470,943) (2,578,259)
288,343 30,380 28,842,124 3,038,806
(36,880,565) (3.885,736) (53,313,067) (5,617,065)
10
213,290 22,472 (3,393,595) (357,549)
213,290 22,472 (3,393,595) (357,549)
(36,667,275) (3.863,264) (56,706, 662) (5,974,614)
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2,779,923 292,893 2,664,967 280,781
11,233,515 1,183,563 13,481,003 1,420,358
3,484,160 367,001 1,691,072 178,171
13,774 1,451
22,502 2,371
465,760 49,072 454,834 47,921
17,999,634 1,896,441 18,291,876 1,927,232
813,403 85,700 1,136,253 119,716
5,644,402 594,694 1,908,612 201,091
303,732 32,001 248,269 26,158
234,341 24,690 6,087 641
6,995,878 737,086 3,299,221 347,606
(736,767) (77,626) (15,728,387) (1,657,143)
433,924,344 45,718,269 416,237,588 43,854,792
(414,741,713)  (43,697,187)  (377,861,148)  (39,811,451)
(7.442,108) (784,100) (7,655,398) (806,573)
11,003,756 1,159,356 14,992,655 1,579,626
17,999,634 1,896,441 18,291,876 1,927,232
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12 31
( )/
(15,728,387) (1,657,143) 416,237,588 43,854,792 (377,861,148) (39,811,451) (7,655,398) (806,573) 14,992,655 1,579,626
1,534,500 161,675 (1,534,500) (161,675)
(19,221,256) (2,025,152) 19,221,256 2,025,152
32,678,376 3,442,994 32,678,376 3,442,994
213,290 22,472 213,290 22,472
(36,880, 565) (3,885,736) (36,880,565)  (3,885,736)
(736,767) (77,626) 433,924,344 45,718,269 (414,741,713) (43,697,187) (7,442,108) (784,100) 11,003,756 1,159,356
75,317,769 7,935,480 277,551,117 29,242,786 (326,548,413) (34,405,141) (4,261,803) (449,024) 22,058,670 2,324,101
(2,000,332) (210,755) 2,000,332 210,755
73,317,437 7,724,725 277,551,117 29,242,786 (324,548,081) (34,194, 386) (4,261,803) (449,024) 22,058,670 2,324,101
2,971,270 313,053 (2,971,270) (313,053)
(141,657,741) (14,925,060) 141,657,741 14,925,060
49,640,647 5,230,139 49,640,647 5,230,139
(3,393,595) (357,549) (3,393,595) (357,549)
(53,313,067) (5,617,065) (53,313,067)  (5,617,065)
(15,728,387) (1,657,143) 416,237,588 43,854,792 (377,861,148) (39,811, 451) (7,655,398) (806,573) 14,992,655 1,579,626
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31

(36,592,222) (3,855,357) (24,470,943) (2,578,259)
(288,343) (30, 380) (28,842,124) (3,038,806)
(13,774) (1,451) 28,600,084 3,013,305

4,032 425 1,832 193

206,015 21,706

(269,009) (28,343)

2,247,488 236,795 (2.645,576) (278,738)

(1,793,088) (188,920) (1,691,072) (178,171)
206,196 21,725 148,787 15,676
(322,850) (34,015) 328,227 34,582

3,726,165 392,589 795,686 83,833

1,495 158 6,087 641

314,837 33,171 (31,739, 950) (3,344,121)

(32,304,049) (3,403,555) (59,777,971) (6,298, 207)
(1,000,000) (105,360)
12,106,770 1,275,569

(26,534) (2,796)

(26,534) (2,796) 11,106,770 1,170,209
(178,954,041) (18,854,598) (204,008,181)  (21,494,302)
211,632,417 22,297,591 253,648,828 26,724,441

(194,697) (20,513)

32,483,679 3,422,480 49,640,647 5,230,139
(38,140) (4,018) (216,094) (22,768)
114,956 12,112 753,352 79,373

2,664,967 280,781 1,911,615 201,408

2,779,923 292,893 2,664,967 280,781
252,145 26,566 160,856 16,948
15,773 1,662 399 42

19,221,256 2,025,152 141,657,741 14,925,060

1,534,500 161,675 2,971,270 313,053
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PAC
PAH
100
PAH PAH
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
14,992,655
2020
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1ASB
IFRS
2019 IFRS 16
IAS 17
IFRS 16
IFRS 16
12
2019 12 31
IFRS 16
2018 IAS 17
2019 406,249
393,971 2018 12 31

6,087
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2019 5.0
2018 12 31
IFRS 16 2019
2018 12 31 493,410
(80,302)
IFRS 16 1,709
2019 414,817
2019 (20, 846)
2019 393,971
IFRS

11
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2019 2018 12 31

2019 12 31
14,717,675 14,717,675
14,717,675 14,717,675
6,457,805 6,457,805
6,457,805 6,457,805
2018 12 31
15,172,075 15,172,075
15,172,075 15,172,075
3,044,865 3,044,865
3,044,865 3,044,865

2019 2018 12 31
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2019 2018 12 31 IFRS
2019
2018 12 31
2019 2018 12 31 36
2009 12 CDO
CDO
CDO 2017
CDO 2019 2017
812,868
2019

2018 12 31 4,032 1,832
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2019 2018 12 31
8,610,479 6,876,911
2019 2018 12 31
23,165,142,394 21,674,296,734
2019 12 31
657,479
2019 2018 12 31

11,233,515 13,481,003

173/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2019 2018 12 31

79,814,077 25,380,067
EIP
EIP
2018 301.7701-3
2018 2018 12 31 2019
PAH
2018 2018

31 2018 31
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2019 2018 12 31

2018

2018

modified separate return method

2019 2018 12 31
2019 12 31
13,774 2018 12 31

2018
2019 2018

probable threshold
IFRS
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2019
12 31 2018 12 31

AOCL

AOCL
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AOCL

IFRS 16

1771262



EDINETOOOO

OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

IFRS 16 2019 IFRS 16
406,249
393,971
2015 2019 IFRS
2017 2017
IFRS IFRS
11 IAS 12
1AS 23
2019 12 31
115,272 385,199 500,471
(115,272) (385,199) (500,471)
7,29 16,234 3,004 26,534
(435) (2,436) (1,161) (4,032)
7,296 131,506 388,203 527,005
(435) (117,708) (386, 360) (504,503)
6,861 13,798 1,843 22,502
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2018 12 31
92,610 115,272 385,199 593,081
(92,610) (113,440) (385,199) (591,249)
1,832 1,832
(92,610) (92,610)
(1,832) (1,832)
92,610 92,610
115,272 385,199 500,471
(115,272) (385,199) (500, 471)
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
248,791 453,306
215,441
1,528 1,528
465,760 454,834
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
215,766
18,575 6,087
234,341 6,087

2018

2019 12 31 2018 12 31
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248,269 163,500
302,117 242,040
(252,145) (160,856)
5,491 3,585
303,732 248,269
2018 12 31
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
10,486
3,288
13,774
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
302,117 242,040
302,117 242,040
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
(13,774) (3,141,297)
1,249,706
30,491,675
(13,774) 28,600,084
288,343 28,842,124
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
3,529,845

(2,000,332)

2018 12 31
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2018 12 31
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12 31

2007 12 31

17

EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
ooooodooooooooodd

181/262

(5,138,898) 21.00
1,728,313 7.06
12,341 0.05
(1,229,457) 5.02
2,982,276 12.19
30,491,675 124.60
(4,126) 0.02
28,842,124 117.86
2019
2019
2019
30,491,675
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2019 12 31
406,249 406,249
15,207 15,207
(202,649) (3.366) (206,015)
203,600 11,841 215,441
2019 12 31
210,470
2019 12 31
2020 214,700
2021 5,528
2022 1,843
222,071
(6,305)

215,766
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2010 31 uLC PIC ULC
6,740,991 PIC
uLC
2019 2018 12 31 736,767 15,728,387
2019 2018 12 31
2019 2018
12 31 12 31
U.S. PUSH
(6,492,992) (2,196,914)
PAH (9,889,692)
PIC ULC (8,592,762) (4,736,072)
PFTC (8,050,121) (1,833,679)
PSERV 183,429
PIA
342,641 139,108
PISCO 407,908 443,622
PIIL 422,278 (325,557)

PRM 2,351,458 687,105
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UK
PIL 3,910,823 (3,669,788)
PIM
14,780,571 5,109,978
543,502
(736,767) (15,728,387)
2019 2018 12 31
AUM
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
5,931,752 5,543,775
AUM 2,116,683,812 2,544,463,792
2019 2018 12 31 1,121,509
1,400,984
2019 2018 12 31
81 68
2019 2018 12 31
383,110 280,560
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2019 PFTC PFTC
PFTC
PAC
PIC ULC PIIL
PFTC PIC ULC PIIL
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
66,824,007 16,010,548
500,659
66,824,007 16,511,207
2,879,350 633,404
14,113,088 2,028,140
117,882

13,773,073 3,902,298
30,883,393 6,563,842

35,940,614 9,947,365
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2019
12 31 657,479
2019 2018 12 31 79,814,077 25,380,067
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
PIL 10 11,985,579 14,736,166
P1SCO 4,562,858 4,662,119
PIA 10 1,118,869 1,077,827
PIIL 2,264,478 1,792,348
PIC ULC 3,245,410 3,111,607
PFTC 2.28 1,114,561
PIM 55,522,322
79,814,077 25,380,067
32.5
20.25
2019 12 31
1,534,500
19,221,256
2018 12 31

2,971,270
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12 31
2020
1,186,340

EIP

EIP

401

2018 12 31

I1AS
2019 12 31
1,442,077
2021 778,390
2019 2018 12 31
1,699,433

EIP
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141,657,741
2019 2018
313,782 334,603
PUSH
2019 12 31
253,036
EIP
IFRS EIP

EIP
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2019 2018 12 31
794,334 744,829
2019 2018 12 31
349,159 346,261
2019 12 31
4,691,253
3.61
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
226,600 17.71 209,300 18.41
139,194 14.71 63,500 17.13
(31,400) 21.85 (33,200) 21.60
(11,000) 16.28 (13,000) 16.28

12 31

323,394 16.07 226,600 17.71
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
389,551 337,031
379,454 379,108
2,174,713 2,376,711
2,943,718 3,092,850
2019 2018 12 31 28,551,256
31,953,007
2019 12 31 2018 12 31
PUSH 18,962,389 14,648,105
PIM 21,552,193
PRM (496,566) (659,043)
PFTC (7,228,916)
PRM 1,664,855 1,528,552
PRM 2,961,219 2,112,186
PRM DCIO 4,764,235
PSERV DC 695,124
28,551,256 31,953,077
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2019 12 31 2018 12 31
913,465 994,733
1,957 271,260
417,388 404,845
408,449 388,305
383,110 280,560
4,032 1,832

202,649

3,366
786,454 476,527
3,120,870 2,818,062

10
2019 12 31 2018 12 31

(7,655,398) (4,261,803)
213,290 136,250

11

(3,529,845)

(7,442,108) (7,655,398)
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CDO
2014 28
2015 15
2018 21 2019
2020
12
ERISA
1,000,000 2019 2018 12 31
13

2019 2018 12 31

191/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

500,000,000
2019 12 31
2019 12 31

2025

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

263,594 255,707 5,915 1,972
2018 12 31

2024

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

493,410 246,705 246,705
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2019 2018 12 31
712,000 611,000
PIM PAC
10 2019 2018 12 31
2,850,000 2,326,000
14
2019 12 31 2020 27

CovID-19 2020
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For the Years Ended December 3,

In LSS 2019 2018
REVENUE

Investment adwisory fees, net. 102185613 358,683,255

Performmancoe fees 1,712,239 1,385,328

Bereice foe pevemse (Heote 3) 5T AT .

et mvedtrnent meomailozs) and other moormal(losg) 5 562 {18,314)
Total revenie 110,524 913 GO 050, 30F
OPERATING EXFENSES

Compensation and benefite 12,544 383 15,921,723

Professional and ecternal services G,488771 4,766,249

Drealer commissions 16,282,005 4,182,074

Service fee expenss (Mote &) 79,814,077 23,380,067

Allocated expenses fom Farent and affiliates, net (Hote 5) 28,551,234 31,953.077

Financing charges 15773 -

Other operating expenses (Hole ) 3 120,870 2,815,062
Total operating expenses 147 217 135 84 521,252
LSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (36,552,222} (24,470,543)
Income bax expense (Mole &) 288,343 28842124
MET LSS (36,580, 565) (33,313.067)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF INCOME TAXES {Mote 10):

Trems that may be reclassified sabsequently o income or loss
Unrealized foreign exchange gam/loss) on translation of foreign op erations, net 213250 (53,393, 544)
Teems that will mot be reclassilied to income or loss - -

Total other comp relensive galn/(boss) for the year, net of neame Laces 213,290 (3,393,595)
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (E36,667 2750 (356, T06,662)

The sccoarpanying notes are an integral part of thess financial fatements
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THE FUTHAM ADVISORY COMPANY LLC

BALANCE SHEETS

In LI5S

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ote 2)
Acoued mvestment advisory Fees receivable, nat (Mote 2)
Other recemables
Dreferred tax aszebs (Mobe &)
Capital aszets, net (Hote 3)
Other azsets (lote 4)
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMEBER'S EQUITY
Laatyilitees
Acorued compensation and employee benefits
Accounts payable and accnoed epenses
Cusrend b lability (Mate &)
Other habilities (Maote 5)
Total abalties

Meambar's aquity
Awcoounts recasrable from Parent snd affiliabes, net (Hote £)
Contributed surplus
Aocourrulated dafieit
Acoumulated cther comprédhense loss (Hobe 10)
Total mambea’s equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBER'S EQUITY

The scoompanying notes are an miegral part of thess fmmoal statements
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December 31,

2019 2018
32,775,523 32,664 56T
11,233,515 13,461,003

3484180 1,681,072
13,774 -
22,502 =

445 T80 4H48H

317,593,634 F18271 0746

£513,403 $1,136,253

364,402 15008612

303,732 248 269
234,341 &,087
36 935,878 33 295 121

(ET36,T6T) 315,728,387

433 074 44 416,237 588

(414,741,713) (377,861 145)
74421 (7655 378

1,003,754 4552055

317935634 318271 876
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JHE PUINAM ADVISORY COMPANY.LLC

STATEMENTS OF CASH FILOWS
For the Years Ended December 11,
I UEE 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Loz before income taxes (336 592.111) (524,470.9435)
Ingome 10X expense (1EE 343) (28,B42,124)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash flows used in oporating activities
Deferred income taxes (13,774) 28600084
Depreciation of capital assets 4,032 1,832
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 206,015 -
Changes in FVTPL securities - (265 009 )
(Increase)/ decrease in operaling assels
Accrued investment advisory fees receivable 2,247 48R (2645 .576)
Other receivables (1,793 D88) {1,691,072)
Cither assels 206,196 145,787
Incrense/ (decrease) in operaling liabdliti es:
Accrued compenzation and emploves benefits (322 .850) 328,227
Accounts payable and accnued expenses 3,726,165 TO5 686
Oher liabilities 1,495 6087
Chuanges in other operating assets and liabalities 314,857 (31,759 950)
et cash used in operating activities (32,304,049 (39.777.871)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchazes of investments - {1000, D00 )
Proceeds on sales of investments - 12,106,770
Additions to capital assets [26.534) -
Het cash (used in)/provided by investing activities (26.534) 11,106,770

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates (Note £) {178954.041) (204,008, 181)
Accounts payable to Parent and affiliates (Note 8) 211,632 417 253 6458 828
Payments on principal portion of leaze liability {194 597) -
Met cazh provided by financdng activities 32 ABIETD 49,640,647
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash ecquivalenis (38,140 (216 084 )
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 114256 TE3ASL
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1664 6T 1,511,615
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR £1770.023 £21.664.967

Supplementary Cash Flow Information:

Forei gn ingome tax paid (Note &) §252.145 $160,856

Inlerest paid 515,773 $399
Supplementary Non- Cash Flow InTormation (rom Financing Aciivities

Contribution-in-kind received from Parent (Note 8) 519221256 $141,657,741

Dividend-in-kind paid to Parent (Note §) $1.534.500 £2.671.270

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of these financial statements.

198/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE FUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in USS

1. Corporate Information

The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the “"Company™ or "PAC™) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Putnam
Advisory Holdings 11, LLC ("PAH 1), and is a wholly indirectly-owned subsidiary of Putnam Investments,
LLC (the “Parent™ or “Putmam™), the latter of which is a majoniy indirectly-owned subsidiary of Great-West
Lifeco Inc. (“Lifeco™). The Company's ultimate parent company is Power Corporation of Canada. The
Company is incorporated in the State of Delaware in the United States of America. The registered office and
prncipal place of usiness is located at 100 Federal Street, Boston, Massachusetts, 02110, United States of
Amernica, The U5, dollar ($)is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company’s primary business is to provide investment advisory services to institutional clients. In
connection with providing these services, the Company receives an investment advisory fee, which is based
upon the clients’ negotiated fee rate and the average assets under management. Company revenue is largely
dependent on the tofal value and composition of assets under management (* AUM™), which include domestic
and imternational equity and debt assets (the “Company Funds'y accordingly, fluctuations in financial
markets and in the composition of assets under management affect revenues and results of operations,

Om June 1, 2018, the Company distributed all ofits subsidianes to PAH 11, and subsequently reorganized as a
subsidiary of PAH II. PAH 11 is a subsidiary of the Parent, and now holds all of the Parent’s non-U.5.
operating companies. As this was a common control transaction, it was recorded using carrving values at the
date of the transaction and has been presented as if the distributed subsidiaries had never been consolidated.

The Company, its Parent and its affiliates have significant ierdependencies, as described in Notes 2, 6, and
&, The accompanying fnancial statements have been prepared from the separate records maintained by the
Company and may not be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations that would have
existed if the Company had been operated as an unaffiliated company.

Economic dependency

The financial statements have been appropriately prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to
a going concern, however, the continuing operations of the Company are reliant upon the ongoing support of
the Parent. The Company has an ending Member's equity of $11.003,756 and 314,992,655 at December 31,
2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.

Beginning in Jamuary 2020, global financial markets have experienced and may continue 1o experience
significant volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirus that causes a disease known as COVID-
19, The pandemic has resulted in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower
consumer demand and general market uncertainty. The effects of the pandemic has and may continue to
adversely affect the global economy, the economies of certain nations and individual issuers, all of which may
negatively impact the Company's performance. The operational risk due to current market fluctuations is
being kept under review and monitored by management.

The Parent has commitied to funding the operations of the Company for the foreseeable fiture,
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THE FUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in USS

2. Basis of Preparation and Summary of Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Eeporting Standards (“IFRS™), as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board ("TASE™). The
policies set out below were consistently applied o all the penods presented unless otherwise noled. If
applicable, the Company will adopt, or has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of
new or amended accounting standards that are relevant to the business as described in Changes in Accounting
Falicies within this Note,

On January 1, 2019, the Company adopted [FRS 16, Leases, using the cumulative catch up method, which

replaces [AS 17, Leases. The standard prescribes new guidance for identifying leases as well as the
accounting, measurement and presentation of leases by the lessee. Under IFRS 16, the Company recognizes a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date on the Balance Sheets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measwred based on the indtial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs 1o dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentive received. The asset is included within Other assets on the Balance Sheets,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determaned, the Company shall use itg incremental bomowing rate. Generally, the Company uses ils
incremental borrowang rate as its discount rate, The lease liability is measured at amontized cost using the
effective interest method and is included within Other liabilities on the Balance Sheets.

The Company has elected to apply the following practical expedients upon the initial application of IFRS 16:

+«  The Company elected not to reassess whether or not a contract contained a lease,

= The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for shor-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less as well as leases of low-value assets.

*  The Company has applied a single discount rate to a porfolio of leases with reasonably similar
charactenstics

The expenses related to short-term leases and low-value leases were nil for the year ended December 31,
2019,

As previously noted, the Company has elected o adopt IFRS 16 using a cumulative catch up approach and
accordingly the information presented for 2018 has nol been restated. It remains as previonsly reported under
IAS 17 and related interpretations.

Om initial application, the Company has elected to measure right-of-use assets at an amount equal to the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating 1o that lease recognized on
the Balance Sheets immediately before the date of initial application. As of January 1, 2019, rght-of-use
assets of $406,249 were recorded within Other assets on the Balance Sheets and lease liabilities of $383,971
were recorded within Other liabilities on the Balance Sheets. Accrued lease payments and accmed rent
allowance that were included in Accounts payable and accrued expenses and Other liabilities, respectively, on
the Balance Sheets al December 31, 2018 and totaled $6,087 were reclassified 1o decrease right -of-use assels.
When measuring lease liabilities, the Company discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing
rate at January 1, 2019, The weighted-average rate applied is 5.0%.

7
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THE FUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in USS

The following table reconciles the Company's operating lease obligations at December 31, 2018, as

previously disclosed in the Companys financial stalements, to the lease liabilities recognized on initial
application of [FRS 16 at January 1, 2019:

Operating Lease Commitments at December 31, 2018 £493 410
Non-lease components included in operating lease commitments {80,302)
Other adjustments due to IFRS 16 adoption 1,709
Gross lease liability at January 1, 2019 414,817
Discounting amount using the incremental bomowing rate at January 1, 2019 {20,846)
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $393,971

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make significant
judgments involving estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of assets and liabalities at the balance sheet dates and the reponted amoints of revenne and expeises
during the reporting period. Althongh some uncertainty 15 inherent in these judgments and estimates,
management believes that the amounts recorded are reasonable, Key sources of estimation uncerfainty and
areas where significant judgments have been made are listed below and discussed throughout the notes to the
financial statements including:

= Inthe determination of the fair value of financial instromenis, the Company's management exercises
judgment in the determination of fair value inpus {Note 2).

*  The Company operates within various tax jurisdictions where management judgments and estimates
are required when interpreting the relevant tax laws, regulations and legislation in the determination
of the Company”s tax provisions and the carrying amounts of its tax assets and liabilities (Note 6).

*  Legal and other provisions are recognized resulting from past events which, in the judgment of
management, have resulted in a probable ot flow of economic resources which would be passed 10 2
third-party (o settle the obligation. Management uses judgment 1o evaluate the possible outcomes and
risks in determining the best estimate of the provision at the balance sheet date (Mote 110,

*  The Company uses estimates to determine certain components of share-based amortization expense
including the share price and forfeiture estimates (Note 8).

+«  Management wses judgment in determining the incremental borrowing rate used to discount lease
payments based on the applicable reference rate, coupled with a credit spread and lease specific
adjustments (Note 2).
The significant accounting policies are as follows:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and demand deposits with banks, which are readily
convertible into cash. The camying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates their fair value.
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Fair Value Measurement

The Company's financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value have been categorized based upon the
following fair value hierarchy:

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 1 utilize observable, unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access.

Financial assets and liakilities categonized as Level 2 wtilize observable inputs other than Level 1 unadjosted
quoted market prices, The fair values for some Level 2 securities were obtained from pricing services, The
pricing service inputs include, but are not limited to, benchmark vields, reported trades, broker/'dealer quotes,
issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, offers and reference data.

Financial assets and liabilities categorized as Level 3 utilize one or more significant inputs that are not based
on observable market inputs and include sitmations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or
liability.

In certain cases, the inpuds used to measure Fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy.
In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement inits entirety falls
has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its
entirety. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a panticular input to the fair value measurement in
its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

The following table presents information about all of the Company's financial assets and Labilities measured
at fair value on both a recurring and non-recuming basis as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and indicates the
fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized by the Company to determine such fair value:

December 31, 3019
Azeets megzered af fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other financial instruments i) R 14,717,675 . 14,717,675
Total linancial assels 5- $14,717675 5- U460
Linhditis measured at fair vale
Other financial instruments "= . £,457 805 . £,457 805
Total lnancial lakdities 5- %,457005 5 RS

P Other Gimimcied insruments inelude Acenoed investment advisory fess receivable, Other seceivablas,

Bererued compensation and employes bensdits snd Aecounts payable and aceroed expenses.

¥ ther fimemscied iestruments are initially resceded at fair value and subsequently measursd at amortized cost osing
the effective interest rate method The amortized cost of other finenoal instruments approoimates their fair value.
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Dhecember 31, 2018
Asgete meanured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Other financial instruments "' 15172073 . 15,172,073
Total Mnancial assels §- 15172072 5- $15,172075
Lighiities measwred of foir value
Other financial instruments ' 30044865 . 3,044,865
Total Mnancal Babilities - 5044 865 5- £3.044 865

" Other financial insnsments mclude Accrued investment advisory foes receivable, Other receivables,

Aecrued campensation and employee benefits and Accounis payable and acorued eqpenses
 Other financial nstnements are initially recorded at Bair valie and ssbsequently measured & amortized cost using
the e fective interest rate method The amortized cost of ether Gnancial insnaments approxinates their fair value.

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no transfers made between any level
categories,

Other Finandal Instruments

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, Other recervables, Accrued compensation and employee
benefits and Accounts payable and accmed expenses are classified as being measured at amonized cost, and
initially recorded on the Balance Sheets at far value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, unless shon-term, where interest would be insignificant. The carrying value of
Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, Other receivables, Accrued compensation and employee
benefits and Accounts payable and accrued expenses approximates its fair value,

Investment Impairment

In accordance with IFRS 9, Fimaneial Instaments, financial assets were evaluated at December 31, 2019 and
2018, where management used judgement 1o assess impaimment through the expected credit loss model for
each class of financial assets, The Company’s Anancial assets primarily consist of cash and cash equivalents,
as well as various receivable balances. A majority of the Company’s receivables balance at December 31,
2019 amnd 2018 consists of accmed investment advisory fees owed from third party entities for services
performed in accordance with investment management agreements. The Company assessed the expected loss
rate on these recenvables over a period of 36 months before December 31, 20019 and 2018 and concluded
based upon historical data that the sk of expected credit loss is insignificant 1o the Company, The remaining
receivables consist of other receivables, which based on the nature and history of the receivables, the expected
credit loss is insignificant to the Company. Cash and cash equivalents consist of liquid funds held at banks
with high credit-ratings. The probability of defanlt for these counterparties is considered immaterial and
management concluded that the expected credit loss is insignificant to the Company.

In December 2009, management of the Parent fully impaired its investment in a collateralized debt obligation
{(CDO), for which the Company was the asset manager, based upon declining market conditions, Under the
temms of its offering memorandum, the CDO was required to hold an annual auction of its portfolio to provide
liquidity, beginning in 2017, In that same year, the CDO was successfully auctioned. In June 201%, the
Company received a final distribation from the 2017 anction that resulted in proceeds of $812,868. This
amount represents previously earned fees that were held back from the initial payment and is recorded in
Performance fees on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
10

203/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE FUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in USS

Capital assets, net

Capital assets, net are carried al historical cost less accwmulated depreciation computed on a straight-line
basis over their estimated nseful lives, which vary from three (o seven years, Capital assets are evalusted for
impairment on a quadedy basis. Assets no longer used, and the associated accumulated depreciation, ane
removed from the Balance Sheets with a charge recorded in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss
for the net carrying value of the assets. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the life of the lease.
Depreciation of capital assets for the vears ended December 31, 2001% and 2018, included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, is 54,032 and $1,832, respectively,

Offsetting and Presentation of Intercompany Receivables and Payables

Intercompany receivables and payables are offset and the net amount is presented in the Balance Sheets. This
occurs when the Company and its Parent and affiliates owe each other a determinable amount, the Compamny
has the right to set off the amownt owed with the amount owed by the affiliates, and the Company intends to
zet off the amount owed and the right is enforceable by law by a Putnam Master Netting Agreement, It is the
Company’s policy to include Accounts (receivable fromppayable to Parent and affilistes, net as a component
of Member's equity on the Balance Sheets, as periodic settlement usually only occurs in the form of a non-
cash accounting transaction.

Revenue Recognition

Investment advisory fees, net

The Company provides investment advisory services on a daily, monthly or quarterdy basis, The Company
believes the performance obligation for providing investment advisory services is safisfied over time becanse
the customer is receiving and consuming the benefits as they are provided by the Company . Fee arrangement s
are based on a contractual percentage applied to the customer's average or period-end assets under
manzgement. Fees are eamned daily as they relate specifically to the services provided in that period, which
are distinct from the services provided in other periods, and are received monthly, quarterly, semi-annually or
anmually. Investment advisory fees, net are recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
net of expense limits and rebates of $8,610,479 and $6,876,911 for the vears ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

The Company. as agen. is the sponsor for a number of structured entities. These structured entities include
institutional funds and other investment products. The nature and purpose of these entities is to provide
investors with a variety of investment opportunities through managed investment strategies. As of December
31, 2019 and 2018, total AUM relating to the institutional portfolios and other investment products of the
Company was 523,165, 142,394 and $21.674,296,7 34, respectively.

Berformance fees

As additional consideration for the investment advisory services noted above, the Company receives fees that
vary based on specified performance measures, for example, when a fund exceeds a specified benchmark or
comtraciual hurdle over a contractual performance period or the life of a fund, These fees are camed once
acconnt retims have exceeded these specified performance measures and are calculated as a percentage of
acconnt retwrns, These performance fees are considered variable consideration as the uncentainty is dependent
on the value of the assets at fture points intime as well as meeting a specified compound hurdle rate, both of
which are highly susceptible to factors outside the Company’s influence. Revenues are recognized once it is
probable that a significant reversal will not occur. Performance fees recognized in the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss in the comrent period are primarily related to performance obligations that have been
satisfied in prior periods and management is assured of their realization.

11
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Service fee revenne

The Company receives revenue in accordance with a transfer pricing program established with an affiliate, in
order to compensate the Company for investment management services it provides to this affiliate, which is
presented as Service fee revenue in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (Mote 8). The Company
believes that the performance obligation is satisfied when the operating costs are incurred. This revenue is
recognized as eamed, Service fee reveme for the year ended December 31, 2019 is 3657479,

Met investment income/{loss) and other income/(loss)

Met imvestment income{loss) and other income/{loss) includes interest income and dividend income. This
income is recognized in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as eamed.

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net

Accrued investment advisory fees receivable, net reported in the Company’s Balance Sheets include
811,233,515 and 513,481,003 of receivables from contracts with customers at December 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2013, respectively,

Service fee expense

The Company has established transfer pricing programs with certain of its affiliates, all of which result in the
Company paying a service fee expense to the affiliates based on the terms of the program. These expenses are
presented as Service fee expense on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (Note 8), and ane
expensed as incurred. Service fee expense for the yvears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 15 379814077
and 525,380,067, respectively.

Certain of these transfer pricing programs are with affiliates for which the Company provides all investment
advisory services related to the affilistes third-party clients. In exchange for these services, the Company
collects the contractual revenue and incurs the contractual expenses related to the third-pany relationships.
Additional details on these arrangements are described in Note 8.

Dealer Commissions

Dealer commuissions include dignbution fees incumed for certain share classes of the Funds, which include
costs incumed at the time of the sale as well as recwrring commissions based on assets wmnder management.
Distribution fees are presented on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and paid by the Company
when due, pursuant to the contractual agreement.

Share-Based Payments

Share-based payment awards for restricted Class B shares and options on Class B shares granted to employees
under the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Flan (the “EIP") (MNote 8), are accounted for as equity-
settled awards. Under this method, compensation cost recognized includes compensation cost for all share-
based payment arrangements granted based on the grant-date fair value, which is determined using both the
market and income valuation approaches as outlined in the EIP. The Company uses the graded vesting
method to amortize the awards, The effect of forfeitures on restricted shares is estimated when recognizing
compensation cost. Share-based compensation is recorded as a component of Compensation and benefits on
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,
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Deferred taxes on the amortization of share-based payments are based on the estimated tax deduction at the
end of the reporting pericd and are re-measured each reporting period to reflect the change in the current
share price. When the fulure tax deduction is expected 1o excesd the grant date compensalion expense
recognized, the excess tax benefit is recognized as Conmtributed surplus, Any tax deduction shonfall is
recognized as additional tax expense.

Income Taxes

Effective June 1, 2018, the Company elected to be treated as a disregarded entity pursuant o Treasury
Fegulation Section 3001.7701-3 for federal income tax purposes, Generally, disregarded entities are nol
subject to entity-level federal or state income taxation and, as such, the Company is not required to provide
for income taxes after the date of the reorganization. The Company’s U5, federal and state taxable income or
loss is taxable to PAH 11 stanting from June 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 and during the entire year of 2019,
Income iax expense or benefit has been recorded in the Company's 2018 financial sialemenis since it is
considered a taxable corporation up through May 31, 2018, However, all U5 federal and state deferred tax
balances as of May 31, 2018 have been eliminated through the income statement, other comprehensive loss,
or the equity section of the financial statements. The Company has no U5, federal or state tax assels or
liabilities on its Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018,

Prior to June 1, 2018, the Company was taxed as a corporation under U.5. tax law. The Company and its
Parent participated in a written agreement (" Tax Sharing Agreement™) with a U.S. affiliate of Lifeco, with
which it files consolidated federal and certain combined state income tax retums. The U5, affiliate assumes
ultimate responsibility for the payment of all taxes in accordance with federal and state laws with respect o
congolidated and'or combined retums, The Company 15 responsible for all taxes prior to June 1, 2018 and
prior year separately filed returns. During that time, the Company accounted for income taxes on the modified
separate retum method on its separate company financial statements. Under this method, current and deferred
tax expense or benefit are determined on a separate retum basis, based on the financial position and results of
operations as presented herein, g consideration 15 given o taxable income or losses from other members of
the affiliated group in evaluating the realizability of its defierred tax assels,

The Company's Singapore branch operation is subject to local tax in the jurisdiction in which it is located.
The related current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are disclosed on the Balance Sheets at December 31,
2019 and 2018, respectively, and the related cash tax payments are made by the branch. The branch operation
has 813,774 deferred tax assets on the Balance Sheets at December 31, 2019 and nil at December 31, 2018,

The Company’s tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred income taxes. The Company has not
provided for any U.S. federal or state tax expense after June 1, 2018, Tax expense related to the Company’s
branch operation reflects the foll year result of 2019 and 2018, respectively. Tax is recognized as an expense
or benefit in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to tems that are recognized owtside profit or loss
{whether in other comprehensive loss or directly in equity), in which case the tax is recognized in other
components of the financial statements.

Under the IFRS liability method, a provision for tax uncertainties which meet the probable threshold for
recognition is measured based on the probabality weighted average approach, There were no uncertain tax
positions recorded by the Company in either year presented.
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Current Income Tax

Current income tax is based on taxable income for the year. Current tax liabilities (assets) for the cument and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected (o be paid to (recovered from) the taxation anthorities
using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted af the balance sheet date. Current tax assets
and current tax liabilities are offset, it a legally enforceable right exists to offset the recognized amounts and
the entity intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
U5, current taxes are seftled throngh the intercompany account, while the remaining non-U. 5, taxes are paid
by the Company's branch. The current tax expense represents the current tax obligation of the Company’s
branch operation for the full vears ended December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018,

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences ansing between the
camying amowits of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in
the computation of taxable income. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences whereas defermred tax assets are recognized (o the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable
profits will be available to wilize the asset.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. The unrecognized deferred tax asset is reassessed at each balance sheet date and
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assel
1o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been emacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assels against cwrrent tax liabilities and the deferred
income taxes relate to the same taxable anthority and the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend to settle cumrent tax liabilities and assets on a net basis. Deferred taxes related to U.S. taxes have
been reported through the intercompany account { Accounts Payable to Parent and affiliates). In accordance
with the cash management policy with the Parent, the Company shall seftle, via an intercompany transaction,
an amount equal to the provision or benefit for income taxes using the Company's stand-alone tax rate
computed using the Company's individual apportionment factors. Such amounts are settled periodically. The
deferred tax expense represents movement in the overall deferred tax balances.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s financial statements are prepared in United States dollars, which is the functional and
presentation currency of the Company. For the foreign branch, exchange rate differences arising from the
translation of monetary assets and liabilities are recorded to unrealized foreign exchange losses on translation
of foreign operations, net in Accumulated other comprehensive loss (& AQCL™),

Assels and labilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into United States dollars at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the balance sheet dates and all foreign denominated income and expense items are
translated at a monthly average of daily rates. Unrealized foreign cumrency translation gains and losses on the
Company’s net investment in its foreign operations are presented separately as a component of AOCL.
Unrealized gains/{losses) will be recognized in Met investment income/(loss) and other income/(loss) on the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss when there has been a disposal of the investment in the foreign
operations.
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Foreign currency translation gains and losses on foreign currency transactions are included in Other operating
expenses in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Member’s Equity

Contributed surplus represents capital contributions made to the Company from the Parent. Accumulated
deficit represents the accumulated losses of the Company . AOCL represents the total of the unrealized foreign
exchange gaing(losses) on ranslation of foreign operations, On the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss, this activity is classified by natre and grouped between items that will be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss and those that will not be reclassified. Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net
represents transactions between the Company and other subsidiaries of the Parent.

Leases

Under IFRS 16, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date on the Balance Sheets, as previously described in Note 2 as well as below,

The right-of-use asset is initially measured based on the initial amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred. as well as an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to regtore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentive received. Lease modifications are treated as a new lease if the
modifications represent a substantive change in scope or consideration paid. The asset is depreciated to the
earier of the useful Life of the nghi-of-use asset or the lease term wsing the dright-line method and is
included within Other assets on the Balance Sheets, Depreciation expense on right-of~use assets is included
within Other operating expenses on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company shall use its incremental bomrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses ils
incremental bormrowing rate as its discount rate and the rate is applied to portfolios of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics. The lease liability is measured at amontized cost using the effective interest method
and is included within Other liabilities on the Balance Sheets. Interest expense on lease liabilities is included
within Financing charges on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.
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Changes in Accounting Polices

The Company has implemented changes in accounting policies for the adoption of new or revised accounting

sandards, as follows:
Amendment/ New Standard Summary of Changes in Aceounting Policies
IFRS 16 — Leases Effective Janmary 1. 2019, the Company adopted the guidance

of IFES 16, Leares, As presiously discussed in Mote 2, the
adoption of this standard introduces new guidelines for
identifying leases as well as the accounting presentation of
leases by the lessee. The adoption of this standard resulted in
the recogmition of right-of- use assets of S406,24% within Cther
assels and lease labilities of 393,971 within Other liabilities
o the Balance Sheets,

Anmual Improvements 2015 -
2017 Cyele

Effective January 1, 2019, the Company adopied the guidance
in Amnuad Imprevements 2005 - 2007 Cyele, which clarifies
non-urgent namow  scope  amendments o IFRS.  Four
amendments were included in this issue relating to IFRS 3,
Business Combinations, IFRS 11, Soint Arrangements, IAS 12,
fucome Taves and TAS 23 Bormrowing Cosis,

The adoption of these amendments had no impact on the
Company's financial statements.
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3. Capital Assets, net

The carmying value of capital assets, and the changes in the camyving value of capital assets, are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Furniture and EDP Leasehold
fixtures Equipment  Improvements Taotal
Carrving value, beginning of year £ §115,272 £385,199 £500.471
Less: accumulated depreciation = (115.272) (385,199} (500471
Wet carrying value, beginning of vear - - - -
Additions 7,206 16,234 3004 26,534
Depreciation (435) {2.436) {1.161) {4.032)
Carrving value, end of year 1,296 131,506 3BB.203 527,005
Less: accumulated depreciation (435) (117,708) (386,360) {504,503)
Net carrying value, end of year $6,961 $13,798 $1,843 $21,502
For the Year Ended December 31, 2018
“Furniture and EDF Leasehold
fixtures Equipment  Improvements Total
Carrving value, beginning of year £02.610 §115.272 §385,199 £503.081
Less: accumulated depreciation (92.610) (113.440) {385,199) (591,249)
Met camying value, bepinning of vear - 1,832 - 1,832
Retirements (92,6100 - - (92.610)
Depreciation - {1.832) - {1,832)
Accumulated depreciation retirements 92,610 = = 92610
Carrying value, end of year - 115272 385199 500471
Less: accumulated depreciation - (115,272) (385, 199) (00471 E
Net carrving value, end of vear [3 [3 5 §-

4. Other Assels

Other assets consist of the following:

Drecember 31, 2019

December 31, 2018

Prepaid assets $248,791 $453,306
Right-of-use asset 215441 -
Cther assets 1,528 1,328
Total 465,760 454,834
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5  Other Liabilities

Other liabilities consist of the following:
Decemnber 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Lease liability 8215766 5-
Other liabilities 18,575 6,087
Total 5234341 56,087

6. Income Taxes

(a) The Company has cument tax liabilities related to its branch operation. In accordance with the Tax
Sharing Agreement previously mentioned in Note 2, cwrrent and deferred tax liabilities or assets related o
U.5. federal and state income taxes are reflected in the Accounts (receivable from)‘payable to Parent and
affiliates, net, and the balances have been settled with the Parent as of JTune 1, 2018, Tax payable for the
branch is as follows:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Current tax liability, net, beginning of year £248.269 5163,500
Expenses during y ear 02117 242,040
Payments made on account (252,145) (160,856a)
Other 5491 3,585
Current tax Hability, net, end of year 303,732 5248, 269

(b} The following table identifies the major components of Deferred tax assets at December 31, 2019 and

2018:

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Performance compensahion 810,486 &-
Other 3288 -
Deferred tax assets 513774 =
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ic) Income tax expense for the year is comprised of current and deferred taxes:

(i) Current tax

For the year ended

December 31, 2018
5242040

For the year ended
December 31, 2019

Current tax expense 3302117

Total curremt tax §302,117 $242,040

() Dreferred tax
For the year ended
December 31, 2018

For the year ended
December 31, 2019

Ongination and reversal of temporary difference (513,774} (53,141,297)
Changes in tax rates or mmposition of new taxes - 1,249,706
Impact of reorganization - 30,491,675
Total deferred tax exp ense ($13.774) $25,600,084
Total income tax expense $258. 345 $25.542,124
{iii} Tax recorded in Member's equity
Forthe vear ended For the venr ended
December 31, 2019  December 31, 2018
Total tax recorded in other comprehensive loss 5- 53,529,845
Tatal tax recorded in accumu lated deficit - (2,000,332}
{(d) The Company’s effective income tax rate is derived as follows:
For the year ended
December 31, 2018
11.5. Federal statutory rate (55,138,898) 21.00%%
Incrense {decrease) in the income tax rafe resulling from;
1.5, stabe taxes - net of U8, federal meome tax benefit 1,728,313 T.06%
hleals aned entertainm ent 12,341 =0.05%
Impact of foreign operadions {1,229457) 5.02%
Post reorganization loss 2982 2T -12 195
Impact of recrganization 30,491,675 -1 60%%
Crther (4,126} 0.02%
Effective income tax rate applicable to respective year $2$.$4£N -117.56%

A rate reconciliation is not included for the 2019 year end as the Company is no longer subject to U5, federal

and state income taxes,

The Company does not have any unrecognized tax bene fits recorded in the periods ending December 31, 2019
and 2018, The Company’s policy is to include penalties and interest related to uncertain tax positions in its
income tax provision. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company did not recognize
any interest and pemalties in its income tax provision and does not have any accrued interest and penalties at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, The Company®s U5, Federal and State net operating losses are subject 1o

adjustment and examination for tax vears ending December 31, 2007 and thereafier.

1%

212/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE FUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in USS

The overall impact of the reorganization in the year ended December 31, 2018, resulted in income tax expense
of 330,491,675 which iz primarily the elimination of the deferred tax balance arising during the pre-
reorgarization perod and the unsettled intercompany balance relating to the US federal and state deferred tax
balances,

The Company’s branch located in Singapore is taxed at the statutory rate of 17%% with exemption and rebate
allowed up to a nominal amount. The difference between the federal tax rate of 21% and the rate the branch is
subject (o is reflected within the effective income tax rate schedule,

7. Leases

The Company leases buildings for office space and equipment nsed in the normal course of operations. These
leases have remaining terms of between 1 and 3 years.

(a) Right-of-use asset

Right-of-use asset  Right-of-use asset  Right-of use asset

December 31, 2019 Property Equipment Total

Balance, bepmning of the year 5406,24% - 5406,249
Additions - 15,207 15,207
Diepreciafion (202,649 {3,366) {206,015)
Net carrying amount, end of vear $203,600 $11.541 §215.441

The Company leases an office building in Singapore and equipment.

There were no leases with residual value guarantees or leases not vet commenced to which the Company is
committed, amd there were no costs relating to variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate
for the year ended December 31, 2019, The total cash ou flow for leases amounted 1o $210,470.

(b) Lease liabili ties

Maturity Analysis
December 31, 2019
20020 5214, 700
2021 5,528
2022 1,843
$222071
Less: Unearned interest (6,305)
5215, 766

8  Related Party Transactions

The Company has significant interdependencies with its Parent and its affiliates, which are described below,
The Company is responsible for and has established processes to identify all related parties and (o disclose all
significant transactions involving related parties.
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213/262



EDINETOOOO
OO000O00oo00o0Do00DOo00oo0gononOO(Es262)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

THE FUTNAM ADVISORY COMPANY, LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in USS

Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net

The Company instructs third-parties to remit cash directly to the Parent or affiliates and instmucts the Parent to
disburse cash on its behalf. The receivables or pavables on the Balance Sheets represent amounts for which
the Parent has vet lo pay or receive on the Company’s behal £ The Parent also allocates certain expenses (o the
Company. Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net represents the net of intercompany transactions
between the Company, the Parent and affiliates due to (i) the above mentioned receipt and payment of cash by
the Parent on its behalf (i) intercompany service fees and allocation of expenses from/io other affiliated
subsidiaries of the Parent (i) the previously described Tax Sharing Agreement, and (iv) subordinated debe,
On March 31, 2010, Putnam Investments Canada ULC (“PIC ULC™) executed a non-interest beanng
subordination agreement with the Company in the amount of 36,740,921, The repayment of this amount is
subordinate to the claims of the other creditors of PIC ULC. The loan is callable, however it has no maturity
date, and repayment is not expected within one year.

These talances are recorded as corresponding increases or decreases in the Member's equity section of the
Balance Sheets as the Company neither pays or receives, nor anticipates paying or receiving cash related to
these balances. The gross changes in receivable and payable for the vear related to these transactions ane
disclosed separately on the Statements of Cash Flows as financing activities. As of December 31, 2019 and
2018, the Company had a net intercompany receivable balance of (3736,767 pand (315,728,387 respectively,
which is included in Accounts receivable from Parent and affiliates, net in the Balance Sheets.

Intercompany balances due to (from) affiliates as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

December 31, 2009 December 31, 2018

Non-interest bearing, unsecured receivable

Due from Putnam U.S. Holdings 1 ("PUSH1") (56,492 007 (52,196,914)
Due from PAH 1T - {9,889 607)
Due from FIC ULC (8.592,762) (4.736,072)
Due from Putnam Fiduciary Trost Company, LLC ("PFTC") (8.050,121) (1,833,679)
Drue to Putmam Investor Services, Inc, ("PSERV") 183,429 -
Due to Putnam Investments Australia Pty Ltd. ("PLA") 342,641 135,108
D to Putnam Investments Securities Co,, Ltd, - Tapan ("PISCOM) 407 508 443,622
Due to {from) Putnam Investments (Ireland) Limited ("PIIL") 422278 (325,557
Due to Putnarm Retail Management LP ("FRM") 2351458 687,105
D to {from ) Putnam Investments Limited - UK ("PIL") 3910823 (3,669, T38)
Due to Pomam Investments Management, LLC ("PIM™) 14,780,571 50109.978
Due to Putnam International Distributors, Lid. - Cayman - 543,502
Total accounts receivable from Parent and amiliates, net (5736,767) (F15.728,38T)

Revenue and Expenses earned from/paid (o Affiliates

A portion of the Investment advisory fees, net included in revenue on the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss is attributed to sub-advised institutional clients and an affiliaste who are related parties.
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The total revenne and ending AUM for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2013 are as follows:

Forthe Year Ended  Forthe Year Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
ERelated Farty Revenue $3,931,752 55,543,775
Related Party AUM §2,116,683,812 §2,544 463,792

The receivables associated with the revenue received from these related parties are $£1,121,509 and
£1,400,984 as of December 31, 20019 and 2018, respectively, and are included in Acemed investment advisory
fees receivable, net on the Balance Sheets.

In addition to the sub-advisory fee income disclosed previously, the Company receives revenue for
investment advisory services it provides to certain affiliated funds. Of the Investment advisory fees, net on the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss, approximately 81% and 68% was earned from these affiliates
respectively, for the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,

The Company also incurs expenses from centain affiliates for sub-advisory services that the affiliates provide
for cenain ingtitutional portfolios. Total expenses paid to affiliates for the yvears ended December 31, 2019
and 2018 are $383,110 and $280,560 respectively, and are included in Other operating expenses on the
Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Transfer Pricing Programs

The Company has multiple transfer pricing arrangements, the first group being with certain of its affiliates in
which the Company receives the contractual third-party revenue and also incurs the contractual third party
expenses as compensation for the investment advisory services it performs for the affiliates. These agreement s
are summarized below,

Effective January 1. 2019, a transfer pricing agreement was established between the Company and PFTC to
compensate the Company for investment advice and securities trading services it provides to PFTC. The
terms of the transfer pricing agreement allow for PFTC to receive a return on its gross revenue to account for
its ficciary risk, and for PAC to receive the contractual fees and expenses as it performs all remaining
functions and bears all remaining risk. The Company also has a transfer pricing agreement with PIC ULC and
PIIL in which the Company performs all investment management services on behalf of these affiliates. The
Company collects the contractual revenue and assumes the contraciual expenses on behall of the two
affiliates, and in exchange pays a service fee expense based on the affiliates’ assets under management.

The total impact of the assumption of the contractual revenue and expenses by the Company as a result of
these transfer pricing agreements on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss (excluding service fee
expenses, which are disclosed separately in the subsequent service fee pamgraphs) is summarized by Anancial
statement line item on the next page.
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Contractual revenue and associated expenses {PFTC, PIC ULC, il PIIL}

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Revenue
Investrnent advisory fees, nef S66,824 007 216,010,348
Performance fees - 500,659
Total revenue 66,824 007 16,511,207
Operating expenses
Professional and extemal services 2870350 633404
Dealer commissions 14,115 088 2028 1440
Other operating expenses 117,882 -
Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net 13,773,073 3.902,208
Total operating cxpenses 30,883,393 6,563,842
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 35040614 9,947 365

Service Fee Revemie received from Affiliates

Additionally, as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company received
8657479 of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2019, pursuant to a transfer pricing agreement with
various affiliates. This revenue is included in Service fee revenue in the Statements of Loss and
Comprehensive Loss,

Service Fee Expense paid to Affiliates

Finally, as described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, the Company paid 579,814,077 and
825,380,067 for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, pursuant to transfer pricing
agreements with certain of its foreign and domestic affiliates. This expense is included in Service fee expense
in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss and is ontlined below by affiliate:

Transfer pricing Methodology Wear Ended Wear Ended
AdTiliate December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
PIL Cost Plus 1096 £11,985,579 £14,736,1 66
PISCO Cost Plus 924 4,562,858 4,662,119
FlA Cost Plus 1096 1118869 1,077,827
PIIL @ bps on average AUM 2,264,478 1,792 348
PIC ULC 9 bps on ending ATM 3.245410 3,111,607
FFTC 2.28% of gross revenue 1,114,561 -
PIM Various® 55,522,322 -
Total service lee EXpense Eald to alMliates $79.514,077 825,380,067

“% bps on fixed income AUM, 32.5 bps on equities AUM and 20,25 bps on global asset allocation AUM

Intercompany Settlement

During the vear ended December 31, 2019, the Company distributed 1,534,500 as a non-cash dividend-in-
kind to the Parent and received $19,221,256 as a non-cash contribution-in-kind from the Parent as a result of
a group-wide exercize carried out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical imtercompany balances

3
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between Putnam affiliastes. The Company’s Accounts {receivable from)'payable to Parent and affiliates, net,
and Contributed surplus were impacted as a result of these transactions.

During the yvear ended December 31, 2018, the Company distributed $2,971,270 as a non-cash dividend-in-
kind to the Parent and received $141,657,741 as a non-cash contribution-in-kind from the Parent as a result of
a group-wide exercise carried out by the Parent to reassign and settle historical intercompany balances
between Putnam affiliates. The Company’s Accounts {receivable from)'payable to Parent and affiliates, net,
and Contributed surplus were impacied as a result of these transactions,

Retirement Plan

The Company, the Parent, and affiliates of the Parent sponsor a tax-qualified 401{k) defined contribution
retirement plan (the “Plan") covering substantially all employees. Under this Plan, employees may defer a
percentage of eligible compensation into the Plan, subject to certain limitations, a portion of which is matched
by the Company. The Company also provides for an annual discretionary contribution as determined by the
Parent’s Board of Directors, For the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s share of the
annual expense to the Plan totaled $313.782 and $334,603, respectively. These amounts are included in
Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss.

Capitalized Software

The Parent capitalizes cenain costs related to sofiware developed for internal use as long-lived assets. The
amaortization expense is allocated to each subsidiary of the Parent, by PUSH I, based on the subsidiary’'s
usage of each capitalized software project. For the year ended December 31, 2018, these costs were amortized
on a straight -line basis over the lesser of three years or the estimated useful life, For the yvear ended December
31, 2019, management determined that it was appropriate, based on its historical expenence with software, (o
change its estimate for the amontization of these costs from three vears (o five years. This change in estimate
was in accordance with IAS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes fn Accounting Estimates and Errors and
resulted in an approximate reduction of $1,442,077 in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in
the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss for the yvear ended December 31, 2019, The estimated fiuture
impact of this change approximates $778,390 and $253,036 for the vears 2020 and 202 1, respectively, and is
de minimis after that period. Overall amonization expense allocated to the Company during the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018 was 31,186,340 and 31,699,433, respectively.

Equity Incentive Compensation

The Parent sponsors the Putnam Investments, LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the “EIP"). Certain employees of
the Company are eligible to participate in the EIP, under which they are eligible to receive restricted shares of
the Parent"s Class B common shares and Class B gock options,

The Parent recogmzes expense for awards granted under the EIP over the stated vesting period and based on
the grant date fair value of the award. A portion of these expenses is allocated to the Company in a manner
consistent with the grant of such share-based payments.

The Company accounts for the awards issued under the EIF as equity awards in accordance with the [FRS 2
guidance related to share-based payment transactions among group entities. The Company receives the
services of the employees granted the share awards, but has no obligation to settle the share awards, That
obligation belongs to the Parent.

The Company has employees who were granted restricted Class B common shares of the Parent pursuant to
the EIP. The Company was also allocated a portion of the compensation charged to the Parent. The fair
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market value of the Class B common shares was determined using both the market and income wvaluation
appreaches as outlined in the EIP, which includes consideration of the range of values determined by a
nationally recogmzed independent valuation firm chosen by the EIP Committee, Compensation expense for
these awards is being amotized over the vesting penod of up o five yvears, Compensation expense directly
charged to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was $7%4,334 and $744 829,
respectively, and is included in Compensation and benefits in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive
Loss, Compensation expense allocated to the Company for the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 was
2349, 159 and 346,261 respectively, and 15 included in Allocated expenses from Parent and affiliates, net in
the Statements of Loss and Other Comprehensive Loss. As of December 31, 2019, there was 54,691,253 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to the Company's portion of restricted Class B commaon shares.
The weighted average period over which that expense is expected to be recognized is 3.61 years.

Restricted Class B Shares
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 For the Year Ended Decemnber 31, 2018
Weighted Average Weighted Average

Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Unwested balance at January 1 226,000 217.71 2005 200 21841
Granted 139,194 14.71 63,500 17.13
Wested (31,4007 2185 {33,2000) 21,60
Forfeited (11,030} 16,28 {173,000} 16,25
Unvested balance at Drecember 31 323,394 Slaa7 226,600 S17.71

Key Management Compensation

Key management of the Company includes certain executives of the Parent that have the awthority and
reaponsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company. The individuals that
comprise the key management personnel are the Board of Directors, as well as certain key management and
officers. A portion of the compensation eamed by these individuals is allocated to the Company on the same
basis as the other expense allocations from the Parent and 15 included in Allocated expenses from Parent and
affiliates, net on the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss as foll ows:

For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

Salary 389,551 £337,031
Share-based compen=ation 379454 370,108
Anmual non-share-based incentive compensation 21174713 2,376,711
Total compensation 52,943,718 53,092,850

Allocated Expenses from Parent and affili ates, net

The Company shares office facilities, persommel and other amangements father described in this note with
other subsidiaries of the Parent. Accordingly, the related costs of such amrangements have been allocated by
the Parent and by affiliates among the varous subsidiares in 3 manner which management believes is
representative of the actual costs incurred. This includes the costs associated with capitalized software and
key management compensation as disclosed above, Additionally, in the course of the Company's day-to-day
business operations certain personnel from other subsidiaries of the Paremt are utilized 1o support the
Company, the related costs of which have been allocated to the Company, in a manmer which management
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believes is representative of actnal costs incurred. The Company also allocates certain of its own costs among
various affiliates in a manner which management believes is representative of the actual costs incurred.

During the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company was allocated 328551256 and
831,953,077 of costs, respectively, as outlined below. These charges are included in Allocated expenses from

Parent and affiliates, net in the Statements of Loss and Comprehensive Loss,

Forthe Year Ended  For the Year Ended
December 31,2009 December 31, 2018
General & Administrative Expense from PUSH [ $18,962, 350 514,648,105
Investment Management Expense from PIM 21,552,193
Institutional Expense 1o PRM {496,566) {659,043)
Intitutional Expense to FFTC {7.228916)
Global Investment Strategies Expense from PRM 1664 555 1,528,552
Marketing Expense from PRM 1961219 1112186
DCI0 Expense from PRM 4,764,235 -
DO Operations Expense from PSERY 695,124 -
Total ABecated expenses rom Parent and afliliates, net 18,551,205 $31.953.077
9. Other Operating Ex penses
Other operating expenses consist of the following;
For the Year Ended  Forthe Year Ended
December 31, 2019 Drecember 31, 2008
Travel & Entertainment 5913 465 §004,733
Rent 1957 271,260
Facility maintenance & utlities 417 388 404,545
Industry dues & filing fees A08 449 TR, 305
Expenses paid to affiliates B3010 280,560
Depreciation of capital assets 4032 1,832
Lease depreciation expense - property 202 549 .
Leaze depreciation expense - equipment 3366 -
Miscellaneous other operating expenses T8H A5 476,527
Total other operating exp enses £3.120.5T0 $2 815,062

10. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Unrealized Foreign Exchange Loss on Translation of

Fordam Operations, net

For the YWear Encled For the Year Ended
December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Balance, beginning of year (57,655 3098) (%4,261,803)
Other comprehensive gain, el 213,294 136,250
Income (ax expense - (3,529, 845)
Balance, end of year (57,442.108) (87,655, 399)
26
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11. Commitments and Contingencles

Claims, Lawsuits, Provigions and Other Contingencies

From time to time, the Company is subject to legal actions, including class actions, angéng in the normal
course of business. I is not expected that any of these legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the
financial position of the Company.

In addition. the Company receives inquiries, including requests for documents and information. in the course
of its business from various state and federal regulators inquiring about certain of the Company's policies and
procedures. Each of these matters is handled in the ordinary course of business. The Company fully responds
to these requests and fully cooperates with all regulatory inquiries, and there are no such matters pending that
the Company believes could have a material adverse effect on its results of operations, cash flows or financial
position.

Other Litfgation

The Company became a defendant in an action that alleges the Company violated state law by allowing
ancther entity to pick poor performing assets (underlying collateral) for a CDO. Claims against the Company
are for frand, negligent misrepresentation and negligence, The Company filed a motion (o dismiss, The
Company’s motion 1o dismiss was granted on April 28, 2014, Litigant filed an appeal and on April 15, 2015
the Court reversed the district coun's dismissal and remanded the case to the district cowt for further
procesdings. Cross motions for summary judgement were filed on September 21, 2018. In September 2019,
the Court granted in part and demied in part Putnam’s Motion for Summary Judgment. Trial is scheduled for
July 6, 2020, The Company deems that the claim is not probable of being successful and no contingency has
been recorded.

12. Capital Management

The Parent monitors the amount of consolidated capital available, and the amounts deployed in its various
operating subsidiaries, including the Company. The amount of capital deployed in any particular company or
country is dependent upon local regulatory requirements as well as the Parent’s internal assessment of capital
requirements in the context of its operational risks and requirements and strategic plans. The Parent’s practice
15 to maintain the Company's capitalization at a level that will exceed the relevant minimum regulatory
captal requirements in the jurisdictions in which they operate.

The Company must maintain minimum member's equity of 31,000,000 in certain jurisdictions subject to rles
under the Employee Retirement Income Secunty Act ("ERISA”™). During the vears ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, respectively, the Company was in compliance with all minimum capital requirements.

13. Risk NManagement

The Company has policies relating to the identification, measurement, monitoring, mitigating and controlling
of risks associated with financial instruments. The key risks related to financial instruments are credit risk,
liquidity risk and market risk {(cumency, interest rate and equity). The following sections describe how the
Company manages each of these risks,

Management is responsible for establishing capital management procedures for implementing and monitoring
the capital plan. The Board of Directors of the Parent reviews and approves all material capital transactions
underaken by management.
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(a) Credit Risk

Credit nsk is the fsk for financial loss resulting from the failure of debors making payments when due.
The Company regularly reviews its credit exposure from each counterparty, The Company momitors its
credit risk management policies continuously to evaluate their effectiveness, These policies include, but
are not limited to, dealing only with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The maximum credit
exposire is the camving value of the assets on the Balance Sheets, net of any allowances for losses, Thene
are no allowances for vears ended December 31, 2019 and 20138,

(b)Ligquidity Risk

Liquidity nisk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet all cash outflow obligations as they
come due. The following policies and procedures are in place to manage this risk:

& The Company closely manages operating liquidity through cash flow matching of assets and liabilities,
¢+ The Company has the financial support of its Parent, which maintains a 3500,000,000 revolving credit
agreement with a consortium of banks,

+ The Company does not have a significant amount of financial assets that are past due at December 31,
2019,

# The Company anticipates that its financial liabilities will mature within the next fiscal year,

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into contracts that give nise to commitments of
fiture minimum payments that impact short-term and long-term liquidity,

Payments due by vear 2z of December 31, 2019

Total 2020 02l 22 iz 2024 Thereafter

Leases $263,3%4 $235,707 £5.915 51972 5 5 -

Pavments due by vear as of December 31, 2018

Taotal X019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Thereafter

Operating Leases ~ $493.410  $246,705  $246,705 $- 5. 5 8-

{c) Market Risk

Market rigk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of 4 financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market factors. Market factors include three types of risks: cumency nisk, interest rate
risk, and equity risk.

(i} Currency Risk

Currency nisk relates to the Company operating in different cumrencies and converting non-LU 5, dollar
eamings al different points in time at different foreign exchange levels when adverse changes in
foreign cuwrmency exchange mates occur. The Company's fnancial instruments are  generally
dencminated in U. 5. dollars and do not have significant exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates.
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(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists if asset and liability cash lows are net closely matched and interest rates change
cansing a difference in value between the asset and liability, The Company, through instruction from
the Parent, momitors inferest rate risk by regularly assessing this fsk and establishing policies and
practices to protect against the adverse effects of these potential exposures. The Company’s primary
exposures to interest rate risk arise from fee revenue eamed by the Company that is dependent on the
debt portfolios of Putnam sponsored funds, A one percent increase or decrease in the vield of these
funds would have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately 712,000 and $611,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively,

(iif) Equity Risk

Equity nisk is the uncertainty associated with the valuation of assets ansing from changes in equity
markets, The Company through instruction from the Parent has investment policy guidelines in place
that provide for prodent investment in equity markets with clearly defined limits to mitigate price risk.
The Company's primary exposure 1o equity risk anses from fee revenue earned by the Company that is
dependent on the equity portfolios of PIM sponsored funds, PAC institwtional clients. A ten percent
increase or decrease in equily markets would have resulted in a change in net loss of approximately
£2,850,000 and 52,326,000 for the vears ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

14. Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions occuming after December 31, 2019 through May
27, 2020, the date these financial statements were authorized for issue,

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experenced and may continue to experience
significant volatility resulting from the spread of a novel coronavirus that causes a disease known as COVID-
19, The pandemic has resulted in travel and border restrictions, quarantines, supply chain disruptions, lower
consumer demand and general market uncertainty, The effects of the pandemic has and may continue o
adversely affect the global economy, the economies of certain nations and individual issuers, all of which may
negatively impact the Company's performance. The operational risk due to cuwrent market fluctuations is
being kept under review and monitored by management.

The Company is not aware of any other subsequent events which would require recognition or disclosure in
the financial statements.

)
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Report of Independent Auditors

To CIBC Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putnam Diversified
Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and to MaplesFS Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Putham
Diversified Income Trust (Cayman)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Putnam Diversified Income Trust Funds (Cayman)
(comprised of Putnam Diversified Income Trust (Cayman) Master Fund and Putnam Diversified Income Trust
(Cayman)) (collectively the "Fund"), which comprise the combined statements of financial position as of April 30,
2020 and April 30, 2019, and the related combined statements of comprehensive income (10ss), of changes in net
assets attributable to holders of redeemable units, and of cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statementsthat are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
we consider internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statementsin
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund' s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Fund as of April 30, 2020 and April 30, 2019, and its financia performance and its cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
August 4, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

To The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC (the
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of
loss and comprehensive loss, changes in member's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related

notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financia statements referred to above present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial
position of The Putnam Advisory Company, LLC as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting

Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Notes 1, 2, 6 and 8, the Company has significant transactions with its parent and its affiliates.
These financial statements may not necessarily be indicative of the financial position or the results of operations
had the Company been operated as an unaffiliated company. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

May 27, 2020

262/262



	表紙
	本文
	第一部証券情報
	（１）ファンドの名称
	（２）外国投資信託受益証券の形態等
	（３）発行（売出）価額の総額
	（４）発行（売出）価格
	（５）申込手数料
	（６）申込単位
	（７）申込期間
	（８）申込取扱場所
	（９）払込期日
	（10）払込取扱場所
	（11）振替機関に関する事項
	（12）その他

	第二部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）管理報酬等
	（４）その他の手数料等
	（５）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３受益証券の譲渡
	４資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	５受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書
	（３）投資有価証券明細表等

	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第三部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４その他

	監査報告書

